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Notes for Participants Consent Agenda - Business Development Plan Review -
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New Cllr Member  & Goodbye to Resident Member

1

To Note - Presented by Dirk Paterson

5:05 PM 2. Declarations of Interest 2
To Note - Presented by Dirk Paterson

5:07 PM 3. Consent Agenda:  For the Chair to approve
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Colchester Borough Homes Limited 
 
Minutes of the Hundred and Eighteenth Board meeting held on Zoom on Wednesday 19th May 
2021 at 5.00pm 
 
Present:   

Dirk Paterson (DP) Chair 

Karen Smout (KS) Vice Chair 

Cllr Tina Bourne (TB) Board Member  

Julie Parker (JP) Board Member 

Cllr Nigel Chapman (NC) Board Member 

Justin King (JK) Board Member 

Nicola Davey (ND) Board Member  

Fiona Marshall (FM) Board Member 

 
In attendance: 

Karen Loweman (KL) Director of Operations 

Matt Armstrong (MA) Director of Business Improvement 

Geoff Beales (GM) Colchester Borough Council  

Jo Paget (JP) Governance Business Partner 

Karen Green  Community Housing Officer  

Karen Williams Head of Housing Management  

Stewart   

Ash Lawson  
Communications & Marketing Business Partner 
 

 
1 
 
1.1 

Apologies and Quorum. 
 
Apologies were received from Lorna Preece, Paula Goddard and Lesley Scott-Boutell. 
The meeting was confirmed as quorate 
 

2. Declarations of Interest by Board Members and Officers 
 
There was one Declaration of interest noted from Justin King. JK advised the Board that 

he had started a new position as Housing Needs & Standards Manager at Babergh & Mid 

Suffolk Council, and that part of his new responsibilities would include managing the 
Choice Base Lettings Team. It was noted that Colchester Borough Home is part of 
Gateway that includes Babergh & Mid Suffolk. 
 

3. 
 
3.1 
 
 

Consent Agenda  
 
The Chair advised he had received a request for the Health and Safety Item to be moved 
for Board discussion from Justin King, and this had been moved to Agenda Item 4.  
 
The Chair noted that with regards to the Consent Agenda the Executive had responded to 
a number of questions raised by members previous to the meeting and confirmed that 
members were happy with the responses provided.  
 
The Chair also asked for it to be formally noted the exceptional performance at Q4 
including 93% Customer Satisfaction, 100% repairs satisfaction and 17 rough sleepers 
still accommodated and extended his thanks from the Board to all staff at CBH for their 
dedicated work and efforts demonstrated in this performance.  
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There being no objections or amendments the Chair resolved to APPROVE 
1. Minutes of Previous Meeting and Action Tracker 

2. Performance Pack  

3. Finance and Audit Chairs Report 

4. Code of Governance Action Plan  

 

4. 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
4.2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 

Health and Safety  
 
JK advised he wanted to raise how further enhancements could be made to future Health 
and Safety reports regarding reconciliation of data to make sure CBH were servicing the 
correct number of assets and to include information around fire risk assessments and the 
actions that were coming from these FRA’s.  
 
KL advised members that CBH in were in the process of transferring from a bespoke 
Health and Safety system called Assure which they used in conjunction with their Health 
and Safety database – currently used both to compile the Health and Safety Report. In 
the future Health and Safety and risk assessment would be moved to the new Housing 
Management system. KL confirmed that the Board report in September would incorporate 
the action plans requested and the validation on data.  
 
KL advised members that new compliance officer post had been recruited to in the asset 
team who would be working on the Health and Safety report to make sure the data 
validated against the asset management system, with the stock overall, against the gas 
compliance and against other contracts that were in place. This would mean the data 
would be overlaid so properties could be identified rather than numbers being presented.  
 
JK advised that he had made a comment in convene regarding recent fire incidents – 
particularly a fire in a bin store which was close to residential buildings and he would like 
to see in future reports assurance to members that CBH were picking this up and 
assessing the risk appropriately.  
 
 
DP queried whether questions added in convene should be raised at the meeting? Or 
answered before? Members advised that they would like questions on convene to be 
raised at the meeting so all Board can discuss.  
 
DP requested that questions raised prior to this meeting were circulated to the Members 
following the meeting.  
 
 
 

The Board resolved to: 
i.NOTE the improvement works to the Health and Safety Report  
 

5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 

Ops and Performance Chairs Report 

 
TB advised Member that the meeting in May was the inaugural meeting of Ops and 
Performance Committee 
 
TB asked the Board to Note the minutes, note the Terms of Reference and asked 
members to approve the People Plan KPI’s based on Committee’s recommendation.  
 
TB highlighted members to the minutes which noted CBH were struggling to recruit 
experienced staff due to the remuneration offered as neighbouring authorities were 
offering higher salaries for similar roles. 
 
 

Colchester Borough Homes Board Meeting Page 5 of 235



 3 

5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.7 
 
 
 
 
5.8 
 
 
 
5.9 
 
 
 

The Committee’s recommendation to Board was to keep the KPI’s for 21/22 the same. It 
was felt that the organisation had done well to nearly achieve the KPI’s that were set for 
20/21 despite the pandemic. TB advised that she wanted to give a big thanks to the HR 
Team for the last year as they managed to keep the People plan progressing despite the 
large volume of unplanned work due to the pandemic. 
 
KS advised that CBH would need to ensure that salary restrictions should be escalated to 
the Risk Register. MA confirmed that this was already on the register. 
FM asked with regards to the Hong Kong arrivals and funding, would CBH receive the 
funding or would CBC receive? KL advised that CBC would receive the grant funding but 
CBH worked in partnership with the strategic team to put together the bids.  
KL advised that this funding would most likely go the community team in CBC as they 
would carry out the hosting work and direction, however if there was to be an effect on 
homelessness and temporary accommodation this would be included in the bid for 
funding.  
 
FM asked if CBH used a Job evaluation scheme? As the staff survey had also identified 
concerns from staff in the differences in pay.  
MA advised that the organisation used the HAY job evaluation scheme, which was also 
used by CBC. He advised that HAYS did not take into account market activity, and 
although CBH did have a market supplement policy this was fixed at 1-2 years.  
MA continued that he did say pay as an issue and that he and KL were considering 
whether a pay review should be conducted or a comparison exercise on specific roles 
were CBH struggled to recruit.  
MA did ask members to note that turnover in the organisation was low at around 10-12% 
so that showed that people did enjoy working at CBH despite the pay.  
 
DP noted that the staff survey had reflected that staff enjoyed working for CBH as the 
percentage of those who would recommend CBH as an employer had increased from 
78% to 82%, and those that felt supported by their line manager had increased from 78% 
– 86% despite a difficult year.  
 
MA advised that the live events had helped, the fact that CBH had not used furlough and 
had been thoughtful of childcare issues had seen benefits and this was represented in the 
survey.  
 
NC commented that he endorsed the re-implementation of the committee to enable deep 
dive into operational topics.  
 
 

The Board resolved to: 
i.NOTE the Ops and Performance Chairs Report 
ii.APPROVE to keep the KPI’s for 21/22 the same 

6 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 

Interim CEO Verbal Update  
 
KL updated members on the national landscape and highlighted the following  
 

Make things Right campaign.  Social Housing Complaints – If you're unhappy with the 
service from your social housing provider, make it right (campaign.gov.uk)  
Campaign to raise awareness and understanding of the complaints process for social 
housing residents. Building on reforms in the ‘Charter for Social Housing Residents’ to 
speed up complaints process.  
It has been created to ensure all social housing residents are treated with respect and 
dignity and sets out what every resident should expect from their landlord:  
 
New “debt breathing space” launched. New scheme to give people in problem debt 
breathing space launched - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)  
Under the scheme, people will be given legal protections from their creditors for 60 days, 
with most interest and penalty charges frozen, and enforcement action halted. They will 
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also receive professional debt advice to design a plan which helps to get their finances 
back on track  
 
Grenfell Inquiry  Homepage | Grenfell Tower Inquiry  

• Safety notices in all blocks   
• Personal Evacuations plans provided to those residents who need one  
• Listening to residents and reviewing complaints  
 

Domestic abuse bill  Domestic Abuse Act: Factsheet - Home Office in the media 
(blog.gov.uk)  
The Domestic Abuse Bill passed both Houses of Parliament and was signed into law on 
29 April 2021. Places a duty on local authorities in England to provide support to victims 
of domestic abuse and their children in refuges and other safe accommodation.  
 
Damp and mouldy homes Housing Ombudsman call for evidence: Investigation into damp 
and mould - Housing Ombudsman (housing-ombudsman.org.uk)  
The Housing Ombudsman has launched a call for evidence on investigation into damp 
and mould. The call closes on the 4th of June.  We will be participating with the Nat 
Fed ALMO’s feedback  
 
End of eviction ban  
The government legislation to extend the ban on bailiff enforcement of evictions and the 
requirement for landlords to provide six months’ notice when seeking possession of a 
residential property are extended to 31 May 2021.  The Government says it will then 
carefully consider their approach to tapering down notice periods from 1 June 2021, 
considering public health requirements and progress with the national roadmap. In 
addition, the court arrangements and rules that were introduced in September to respond 
to the pandemic will apply until at least the end of July 2021. Including prioritising the 
most serious cases, such as anti-social behaviour, and requiring landlords to provide the 
courts with information on how the pandemic has impacted their tenants.  

 
Building safety bill  
Making it clear where the responsibility for managing safety risks lies throughout the 
design, construction and occupation of buildings in scope. There will be tougher sanctions 
for those that fail to meet their obligations. Central to ensuring the regime is effective will 
be a powerful new Building Safety Regulator housed within the Health and Safety 
Executive. It will have responsibility for implementing and enforcing the more stringent 
regime for higher-risk buildings and will oversee the safety and performance of all 
buildings.    
 
MA update the Board on the following 
 
Government Road Map – Due to the changes that came into force on Monday 17th May, 
CBH were now offering a full repairs service and in sheltered accommodation the shared 
lounges were now open and activities have been restarted within safe guidelines.  
 
New build properties – 
Hardings Close – 2x 2 beds and 3x 3 beds coming online at the end of June 
Creffield Road – 2 flats available mid-June  
Scarfe Way and Buffet Way – 6 lots of 2 bed flats coming online 12th August  
Military Road – 3x 1 bed flats 2x 2 bed flats and 2x 2 bed houses coming online February 
next year.  
 
Staff Volunteering  
CBH give staff 1 day a year to volunteer in the local area, which had been impacted by 
the pandemic. Various staff have however volunteered as stewards in the vaccination 
sites and helping is hospitals, as well as helping local charities 
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Project Aurora 
End date at the end of July. Went live at Easter with Phase 2A – Phase 2B in mid-July.  
 
Elfreda House 
Looking to appoint contractor at the end of this month with a start date in June or July, 
and a finish date in mid-2022.  
 
Mercury Theatre  
 
This project has now reached practical completion and photos of before and after can be 
found on Convene for member to peruse.  
Visits will be arranged  
 
MA highlighted the success of this project despite several issued such as funding issues, 
Covid (continued through pandemic), archaeological issues (found intact roman plaster 
with painting and tiles), asbestos issue and material shortages (people travelling to Leeds 
to get plaster!) 
 
DP asked for thanks from the board to be passed to Lee Spalding and his team for their 
determination and brilliant result.  
 
Local election results 
Key date is 26th May – full council meeting when we will know about new administration 
and position changes.  
 
GB asked members to note that the Mercury Theatre had been a nationally recognised 
project which continued whilst the rest of the country shut down through the pandemic.  
 
KL creffield road flats – would you appreciate a look before the flats are let?! Yes! DP and 
TB to join too. KL to arrange.  
 

The Board resolved to: 

i.NOTE the interim CEO update 
 

7. 
 
7.1 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
7.3 
 
 
 
 
 
7.4 
 
 
 
 
7.5 
 

Focus on Frontline - Community Housing Officer 

 
Karen Green joined the meeting, highlighted her role and experiences and welcomed 
questions from the Board.  
 
KS asked where Karen had commented on estate improvements in her bio, what would 
be her proudest achievement? KG advised the team had done a lot of ground works at 
Rectory Close and made some lovely beds. She advised that sadly one of the tenants 
passed away whilst works were underway so they had arranged for a commemorative 
bench to be put there as well. Tenants used the area a lot 
 
NC asked how Karen saw the future of the Credit Union and whether there was anything 
CBH could do to support the union further? KG advised that without the help of CBH she 
was unsure that the Union would still be running, especially in the last year. She 
continued that a lot of credit unions had had to merge in order to keep running and this 
was something she could see happening in the future of the Colchester credit union.  
 
KS asked what Karen’s perceptions were of the new Housing Management system? KG 
advised that she had had some issues with the system but could see the advantages it 
would bring. She advised that all of the system was currently working and when the task 
manager was in place this would make life more efficient.  
 
FM asked KL about workload and Karen’s comments about wanting to spend more time 
with residents in her bio. Did CBH do any benchmarking against other organisations 
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7.6 
 
 
 
 
 
7.7 
 
 
 
 
7.8 
 
 
 
7.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.10 
 
 
 
 
7.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.12 
 
 
 
 

regarding caseloads? KL advised that formal benchmarking was carried out with 
Housemark for cost comparisons and in Colchester the Housing officers remained 
generic and keen to keep the generic model to get to know their patch. The benchmark 
was 500 properties per patch but in Colchester there was not large travel times and quite 
a high proportion was sheltered accommodation when support was on site and ASB and 
Lettings team were also supplementary teams to the patch. Housing officers were lead 
contacts for their area.  
Cost wise –Housemark - 6th lowest in housing management cost  
  
DP asked KG how fellow Housing Officers were doing and how they had coped through 
the pandemic? KG advised that morale was ok and everyone was itching to get back out 
there. She advised that there had been issues with the new housing management system 
as it had been a challenge, but the benefits of the system would mean that they could 
spend more time with residents and focus on delivering good customer service.  
 
DP noted that Karen was the top arrears collector at CBH and what was her secret? KG 
advised early intervention was key, knowing when to refer for specialist help, building 
relationships with people, having empathy, putting yourself in their situation – and enjoy 
my role  
 
TB advised that KG was a great role model for new housing officers and that she could 
vouch for her work in Greenstead .TB added that new tenants were noticeably becoming 
more vulnerable over time which brought about a lot of challenges for housing officers. 
 
ND asked whether having to recently move patch and not knowing residents so well 
would cause any issues as people moved out of the pandemic? KG advised that now that 
they could start to get out more this should easy any issues and she would be looking to 
organise an estate tour with the caretakers where they would let residents know they 
were coming so the team could meet and greet and answer any questions residents may 
have.  
 
ND asked if the estate tour would happen across the borough? She advised that in 
Greenstead there was a lot of unsettlement and unease amongst the residents. KG 
advised that estate tours were a requirement of the role and would happen across the 
borough.  
 
ND advised that sometimes not all Housing Officers and Caretakers were empathetic with 
residents and she had heard of some inappropriate comments made to residents. DP 
advised that this was also raised at the last residents voice panel and asked KL what 
steps could be taken to improve this? KL advised that any issues should be raised to the 
Housing Managers or Head of Service and this would be looked at immediately. KL 
advised the reason why patches were changed was so that Housing officers could 
develop customer skills, meet new people and avoid any favouritism.  
 
DP noted shadowing in Karen’s report – advised the Board to join an Estate tour if they 
wanted to – contact KL or Karen Williams if interested.  
 
DP thanked Karen Green for her time  
 
 

The Board resolved to: 

i.NOTE the Focus On frontline  
8 
 
 
8.1 
 
 
8.2 

Governance and Remuneration Committee Verbal Update  
 
KS advised that the meeting had taken place prior to the Board Meeting so would update 
members as Agenda items and matters that would need approving through Convene.  
 
Items covered at the meeting were  
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8.3 
 
 
 

 
Chairs Renumeration 
Terms of reference 
Board Expenses Policy  
Board Code of Conduct  
 
JP to send matters for approval through Convene.  

The Board resolved to: 
i.NOTE the Governance and Remuneration Committee Verbal Update  
 

9 
 
 
9.1 
 
 
9.2 
 
 
9.3 
 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
 
 

Communications Update - Business Service Delivery Model   

 

Stewart Henderson and Ashely Lawson from Colchester Borough Council joined the 
meeting.  

SH provided a presentation to members to inform them of the current and future 
communications support for Colchester Borough Homes and asked Members for any 
questions.  

DP advised that he was looking for SMART measurable objectives to know what CBH 
were aiming for. He advised he would be looking for measures against brand awareness 
and customer engagement included in the communications plan.  

FM advised she felt there were three main measures she would be looking for which was 
external brand awareness and what CBH want that brand to look like, to look at tenant 
comms as to review why messages were not landing with tenants and thirdly to review 
organisational comms to staff and if they were having the required impact.  

It was agreed that a revised communications plan would be drafted by CBC and 
communicated to DP with concrete deliverables.  

The Board resolved to: 
i.NOTE the communications update  

10. 
 
10.1 
 
 
 
10.2 
 

 CBC and CBH Management Agreement and Timings 
 
KL advised this was an updated plan to the one presented at the last Board Meeting in 
February, and that herself, MA and Geoff Beales met regularly to review and complete 
the actions.  
 
There were no questions received from the Board.  

The Board resolved to: 
I. NOTE the CBC and CBH Management Agreement and timings  
 

13. 
 
13.1 

AOB 
 
GB advised the Board that a provisional date of the 17th August had been set for CBH’s 
annual review at Scrutiny Panel.  
 
 

 
 

Date of Next Meeting – Wednesday 28th July 2021 
Via Zoom  
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Action Tracker 
 
 

Item Action  Who By When  Complete 
4.2 Updated Health and Assurance 

Report for assurance  
KL/DB September  Rolling  

4.5 DP requested that questions 
raised prior to this meeting were 
circulated to the Members 
following the meeting.  
 

 
JP 

 
ASAP 

 
Questions added 
to Convene 
library 

7.12 Members were encouraged to 
join an Estate Tour and to 
contact KW if interested  

Board/KW  
ongoing 

 

Board Members 
to contact 
Karen Williams 

9.5 It was agreed that a revised 
communications plan would be 
drafted and communicated to 
DP with concrete deliverables. 

 
CBC/DP 

 
ongoing 

 
Chair has 
requested 
agenda item for 
July meeting for 
Board to set 
direction of 
comms to brief 
CBC 
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Building Trust • Delivering Tenant Led Services • Commitment to our Communities 
Delivering Professional Services • Providing Value for Money 

 

 

 

Medium Term Delivery Plan 

2018–22 

 

 

 

 

Performance Report 
2021/22 

Quarter 1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Completed 
In Progress/on 

target 

Not started/ 
behind schedule/ 

below target 

Unlikely to 
achieve target 

Cancelled / on 
hold 
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Building Trust • Delivering Tenant Led Services • Commitment to our Communities 
Delivering Professional Services • Providing Value for Money 

Customer 
Highlights 

• Resident Voice held meetings in the last period reviewing the Gateway to Homechoice 
bidding process and Mutual Exchange process.  

• Tenant Task and Finish group held to review “safety in the home” agenda, with some 
recommendations from tenants as to how we might improve this.  

• 2021 Survey of Tenants and Residents (STAR) launched  

• 70 tablet devices delivered to our involved customers, training and additional support 
delivered by CBC digital access team. 

• New fencing process working well within CSC and tenants, trying to reduce 
unnecessary contact and better communication with the tenants about when there 
fencing works will be inspected then completed. 

Forward look: 

• Results of 
STAR 

• Launch of 
NEC 
Housing 
Online 
portal. 

• Working 
with digital 
skills team 
to channel 
shift 
customers  

• Launch of 
CBH 
Customer 
Charter  

• Review of 
Service 
Standards 

Risks, issues & actions required: 

• The number of surveys has been low during 2020 and 2021 due to a combination of 
restricted activities during the pandemic, system issues caused by the changeover to 
NEC and the handover of customer satisfaction reporting to the new Customer 
Experience team. There were no returns for antisocial behaviour, gas servicing, 
complaints or adaptations during Q1. This means that figures appear to be fluctuating 
from month to month but this is not necessarily a true reflection of satisfaction. 

• The number of surveys being sent is beginning to increase as the availability of system 
reports returns and the new Customer Experience Team carries out the surveys. The 
focus remains on increasing the number of surveys sent/returned, before using that 
data to carry out added-value activities. As returns increase, results will become more 
accurate and representative. Currently it is too early to say whether the apparent dip in 
satisfaction is real, but the true picture should emerge throughout the year. 

• In common with many other landlords, satisfaction with a number of areas appear to 
have dipped from pre-pandemic levels. Response rate have still not returned to typical 
levels (e.g. 110 responses in Q2 2020/21) so may not be representative. 

• ISSUE: Increase number of complaints to the repairs team now all enquiries are being 
handled as a complaint. 
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Building Trust • Delivering Tenant Led Services • Commitment to our Communities 
Delivering Professional Services • Providing Value for Money 

Housing Options and Homelessness 
Highlights 

• Taken on the management of CBC’s Sanctuary Scheme from Housing 
Management  

• New funding approved from MHCLG for Rough sleeper move on accommodation 
and support.  6 properties will be acquired, a 7 bed supported housing unit due to 
open in September and Housing First project extended 

• Review of temporary accommodation to ensure standards  

• Housing acquisitions (100 Homes project) should bring relief to number of 
households in temporary accommodation  

• Significant increase in applications to the Housing Register 

Forward look 

• Planned targeting of 
Letting Agents and 
Landlords 

• Review of 
incentives for 
landlords etc to 
encourage them to 
work with us 

• Review Insurance 
options for 
landlords 

• Tenancy support 
and Sustainment 
officer JAS written 
and evaluated for 
the Rough Sleeper 
Move on 
accommodation 

Risks, issues & actions required: 

• RISK: Main duty accepted has increased due to lack of prevention and relief 
options 

• RISK: Eviction ban has now ended with increasing numbers of households 
expected to become homeless and require prevention support or temporary 
accommodation.  Liaison in place with local letting agents and landlords 

• RISK: Increasing numbers in interim accommodation – expect that budget for 
temporary accommodation will be exceeded 

• RISK increasing numbers on Housing Register and no significant increase in 
Social Housing becoming available -  all applicants are advised early in process 
as to the likely waiting times.  
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Building Trust • Delivering Tenant Led Services • Commitment to our Communities 
Delivering Professional Services • Providing Value for Money 

Repairs and Maintenance 
Highlights 

• Full repairs service resumed on 17th May. Moved from emergency and 
urgent service. 

• Ensure sub-contract supply chain is sufficiently resourced ready for the 
repairs service to resume normal services. 

• In-house and supporting contractors continues to perform well within 
challenging environment. 

• Backlog works scheduled in; main area of concerns has been plumbing 
works. 

• Financial year end position completed, under spend mainly on materials, 

fuel, and contractor’s payments. 

• New Fencing process is working well, and inspections are being booked 

for each Wednesday. Now we have supply issues for fencing materials. 

• Fire risk assessment repair works all being tracked via Microsoft teams,  

• Completing “My contributions” with all the trade operatives (training 

completed) 

• Undertaken a H&S toolbox talk for Asbestos Management. 

• To sign off the vehicle defect form within NEC 

• Review of current disrepairs claim protocol now going to be managed by 

the work planners. 

• CDM training for works manager and three supervisors. 26th May 

• Temporary arrangement for covering plumbing supervisor and glazer. 

• Electrical testing certification system (Easy cert) now set up on operative 

tablets using Samsung tablets (iPad’s given back) 

• Continued with NEC Wednesday morning training - Review of person 

warning within NEC, etc. 

• Consultation with review of Tenants Alterations policy provided by repairs. 

• Seek alternative Car Washing facility, currently providers close van 

clearing. 

Forward look: 

• Review of two to attend 
procedures. 

• Working with Trade 
operatives to develop 
their knowledge of NEC 
mobile and resolve any 
system issues. 

• Supervisors working 
more from site using 
the mobile inspection to 
complete pre and post 
inspections.  

• Working on repairs 

manual of “how we 

work” – internal 

document only to 

support the 

development of the 

team. 

• Work Manager looking 

to arrange training for 

Housing Health and 

Safety Rating system 

training (HHSRS). 

 

Risks, issues & actions required: 

• ACTION: Q3 and Q4 2020/21 data awaiting confirmation from Repairs & 
Maintenance 

• ISSUES: Number of staff absent due to Covid impacting on service 
delivery 

• ISSUES: Very sporadic supply chain due to various problems caused by 
materials shortages 

• ISSUES: Loss of two employees following knee operations, plumbing 
supervisor and glazier. 

• ISSUES: Reporting from NEC for repairs performance problematical.  

• ISSUES: Increased materials cost across all trades planned from 
suppliers 
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Housing Asset Management 

Highlights 

• Currently exceeding the capital element target by 1.3%. Reviewing 
profiles for completion targets to ensure that reporting remains 
accurate and current. 

• NEC (formerly NPS) Planned Maintenance module implemented - 
starting to add contracts to take advantage of the enhancements 
this will bring to our project management processes. 

• A number of properties identified for inclusion within the 
Supplementary/Housing Investment Programme/Climate 
Emergency projects - works to these properties will commence later 
this year. 

Forward look 

• Commencement of stock 
condition surveys. 

• Procurement, training & 
project management 
working groups designed 
to improve overall service 
delivery. 

• Working with ‘Parity 
Projects’ to establish 
baseline data, and 
scenarios for energy 
efficiency works to allow 
more informed decisions 
to be made for 
Supplementary Projects & 
new Asset Management 
Strategy. 

 

Risks, issues & actions required: 

• Increasing indications that cost of materials/works will increase over 
short to medium term. Material shortages also being reported in 
several areas. No significant impact on capital programme at this 
time; however, we have been exploring the use of alternative 
products for some works. Monitoring the situation closely as it may 
be necessary to reprogramme some works should the current 
programme become undeliverable.  

• There are currently 216 properties which we have been unable to 
access in order to complete the electrical tests. Works to address 
these using our access procedure will commence following 
recruitment of Compliance Support Officers within Housing Services 
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Housing Management 

Highlights 

• Sheltered Communal lounges re-opened for groups of 6 tenants to meet, in line with 
Government guidelines. Wellbeing activities within the sheltered schemes reinstated. 
Sheltered scheme guest rooms have been updated ready for opening when restrictions are 
lifted.  

• Supporting income collection: Community Housing Officers visiting those tenants with high 
arrears. 59 new Discretionary Housing Payment awards worth £41K made this period. CBH 
have been working with the Green Doctor who are helping tenants to maximise their 
income. An example CBH case on their website shows how they supported a tenant to 
increase their income by £320pa alongside other efficiencies.  

• Worked with CPAG (Child Poverty Action Group) and Rightsnet on successful appeal 
against DWP’s approach to legacy benefit (non-Universal Credit) claims which have been 
closed in error. This was a high profile case which will set a precedent for other appeals 
and could result in a legally binding decision by a higher court. 

• New Hoarding Policy agreed and published. Success with two of our long-term hoarding 
cases, improving the health and wellbeing of both tenants. 

• Estate Tours reinstated involving tenants, CBC teams and elected members.  

• Antisocial behaviour: CBH led first social landlords ASB forum - looking to extend this to 
include private landlords and CBC private sector team. Team are successfully using CCTV 
to prevent and evidence ASB. 

Forward look: 

• ASB 
awareness 
week 
activity  

• Launch of 
NEC Mobile 
Tenancy 
module 

• Make a 
difference 
day on 
Greenstead 
29th July – 
all welcome 

• Job 
Shadowing 
with Board 
members  

• Compliance 
Officer 
recruitment  

• Wellbeing, 
diet, and 
exercise 
sessions 
within 
sheltered 
schemes. 

Risks, issues & actions required: 

• Number of households in arrears is only 9% higher when compared to the end of June 
2020. This is a drop from the end of May, when the number of households in arrears was 
21% higher compared to the previous year. However, there are 65 more households with 
arrears of £901+, compared to June 2020. We are seeing fewer households with low 

arrears, and more households with higher arrears. 1577 tenants claiming Universal 

Credit with arrears of £494,386 and 457 Alternative Payment Arrangements in place 

• Serious delays with Court waiting times e.g., application made in Feb 2021 received a 
review date November 2021, where the judge will only review whether the case can have 
a full hearing.  
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Letting Homes 
Highlights 

• DocuSign successfully launched to enable officers to sign up new tenants out in 
the community.  

• Working with Breyer to improve performance  

• Working with Teams & contractors to improve on site H&S.  

• Working closely with team(s) to ensure voids delivery is met in the most efficient 
way.  

• Review applications for Chargehand Role & shortlist for interview.  

• Working with SSE on next stage of the online portal. 
 

Forward look: 

• Pre 
termination 
inspections 
to be 
reinstated in 
sheltered 
schemes.  

Risks, issues & actions required: 

• There have been some delays because of final offers and appeals. Housing 
Management and Housing Options team reviewing processes to mitigate this 
moving forward.  

• Still experiencing some delays as incoming applicants have tested positive for 
C-19 and have had too self-isolate. 

• We now have monthly analysis in place to monitor how long clearances are 
taking by CBC and how long each work force is taking on average (in-house 
and contractor). 
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Corporate Facilities Management 
Highlights  

• R&M works, including Mechanical & Electrical, General Building works.  

• PPM tasks: Weekly electrical checks/Tests all update. 

• Weekly Mechanical Checks; AHU's, Pool Plant equipment, pumps and 
motors all up to date. 

• Pool Plant Operations: All areas on going. 

• Leisure World is open, albeit with reduced capacity. All facilities are 
functional and operational. 

• Working with suppliers to make sure we have access to materials. 

• No shortage of chemicals used in swimming pools as believed there 
might have been a supply issue.  

• Further NEC training required to consolidate Technician skills using 
Opti time.  

• Technical team all provided with new tablets following upgrade needed 
following implementation of NEC.  

• Bike ability training carried out by team members.  

• Ongoing performance management workshops and webinars.  

• Working on Energy Bureau tender with CBC, 12 submissions to 
evaluate. 

• Instruction for the replacement of the Hunwicke Shopping Centre sign 
and associated repairs to the paving and walls following MP and Cllr 
complaints. Working with CBC and CAHL to establish procedure for 
future HRA shopping precinct repairs. 

Forward look 
• Review of Corporate SLA 

review.  

• Working with new Energy 
Bureau provider following 
the procurement exercise 
completed. 

• Working with CBC health 
and safety team to 
produce a compliance 
dashboard for corporate 
buildings. 

Risks, issues & actions required: 

• ISSUES: Number of corporate repairs now coming back to normal 
levels following opening of all buildings.  

• ISSUES: Problem with some of the pools tiling following long-time pool 
heat reduced. 

• ISSUES: high number of roofing leaks during this quarter. 
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Compliance 
Highlights 
• All gas servicing completed for this quarter 

• FRA reviews (Fairfield gardens, Mary frank, Ivor brown, Stuart Pawsey, 
Worsnop, Britannia court, Oatfield close, Cherry tree house, Dedham)  - 
current status fully compliant    

• GHO working and office area review for July 19th opening to public.   

• New H&S systems/Apps – fire logbook roll out and team training completed.  

• Lone working people safe system review/ device usage.   

• HSE incident investigation training booked. 

• Meeting with asset manager to review overdue FRA actions – new monthly 
fire actions meeting to be implemented so overdue and pending actions can 
be discussed.   

• Peeps documents roll out for sheltered – tenants to now receive a copy.  

• New fire box documentation sent to YD for implementation early July – Peep’s 
summary folder, contractor folder - to include - contractor H&S sheet, signing 
in sheet and contents page detailing all required service/building records.   

• New H&S systems/Apps – continued rollout of H&S audits to CBH teams   

• CBH data export expected from Assure – information to be reviewed and 
stored in SharePoint (Assure archive area) date not confirmed?   

• Fire logbook app to be rolled out for sheltered schemes  

• Data protection now resides in ICT team (formerly HR & Governance) 

• Data protection e-learning completion rate stands at 86% (as at 29/06/21) 
which is up from 75%.   

• From June 2021, the new CBC 365 Solutions Data Breach Reports App has 
been in use which contains a risk matrix to understand and manage 
associated risks.  

• 12 Freedom of Information Requests (down from 15), 2 Subject Access 
Requests (down from 8), 3 Police data requests processed (up from 0); 3 
Domestic Homicide Review (scoping exercise) processed (up from 1).  100% 
of both FOIs and SARs have been processed within statutory timescales. This 
figures us up from 80% (FOIs) and 87% (SARs) in previous quarter 

• The new Asset Management Assurance Officer is now carrying out regular 
audits against our property compliance dashboards/KPIs. 

Forward look: 
• Awaiting CBH 

specific updates to 
the new Microsoft 
365-based 
Information Asset 
Register which will 
allow data flows to 
be recorded.  

• CBH will be using 
the new 365 
Solutions Data 
Privacy Impact 
Assessment App 
when available. 
This will allow 
improved 
monitoring of new 
data processing. 

• Looking to go live 
in July with the 
NEC and Mears 
interface.  

• Lone working 
device review – 
Programme sent 
to heads of 
service.   

• FRA reviews for 
sheltered and 
offices to continue 
throughout June 
and July –
 status fully 
compliant. Risks, issues & actions required: 

• 8 data protection breaches – (up from 3) – all were minor, not requiring 
referral to Information Commissioner. However, the increase is a concern and 
we are working with the CBH/CBC Data Protection Officer. An all staff email 
was sent on 07/07/2021 detailing types of breaches taking place and action 
required by staff to reduce the risk.  Visits to team meetings and further 
communications specific to NEC users to follow. 
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CBH Strategic Plan Assurance Report 

Q1 2021/22 
 
 
 

Customer plan 

Top 25% ALMO for satisfaction by 2022 

 

Value for money and technology plan 

Lowest 25% cost per property in the East by 2022 

 

People plan 

Times top 100 not-for-profit employer by 2022 

 

Business development plan 

£420k from trading income by 2022 (subject to annual review) 
 

Leadership plan 

Leadership that inspires trust and confidence in CBH by 2022 

 

Community plan 

A community enabling leader for Colchester by 2022 

 

 

Key 
 

On target 
Currently below 

target but expected 
to achieve target 

Unlikely to achieve 
target 
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Customer plan 

Top 25% ALMO for satisfaction by 2022 
 

Highlights 

• Standard resident survey (STAR) launched  

• Show and Tell event with tenants to showcase “Housing Online” – 
receiving some great suggestions for FAQ’s  

• Customer Experience team now in place following restructure 

• Notice board in blocks of flats have been refreshed with Fire safety 
information 

• Focus group held to review priorities for residents to understand 
health & safety requirements (Social Housing White Paper) 

• Customer insight data report delivered to Board  

• Our Residents Voice are undertaking scrutiny training and now 
publish impact assessments along with live Zoom events on our 
website 

• Tenants are now able to raise issues through the residents panel 
through direct email address 

• CBC’s Digital Skills Team commissioned to help launch housing 
online  - this project includes installing iPads across the Borough at 
community locations to enable customers to access services  

• Commissioned short film to launch our Customer Charter  

• Making complaint has been made simpler including our complaints 
web page. We have updated our self-assessment for dealing with 
complaints 

Forward look 

• Launch of Housing 
Online customer portal 
– soft launch initially 
with involved residents 
This will allow tenants 
to check/pay rent and 
report repairs online 

• Results of STAR 

• Website accessibility 
project to be started to 
understand scope of 
work and resource 
needed to meet 
accessibility 
requirements 

• Complaints audit 

• Complaints annual 
report. 

• Launch of Customer 
Charter 

Risks, issues & support required 

• ISSUE: CBH website requires work to ensure we are web 
accessibility compliant (WAC) – Accessibility statement placed onto 
the website to website to comply with legislation. 

• ISSUE: following implementation of Housing management system 
our Customer satisfaction survey data relies  on permission for 
outcome surveys, leading to low levels of responses from 
Customers.  This is work in progress 

• ISSUE: Due to Covid restrictions the level of resident engagement 
is restricted and leads to lower level of completed resident impact 
assessments 

 

Progress measure 
2020/21 
outturn 

Latest 
Current 
target 

2022 
target 

% overall satisfaction 93.3 91 92 92 

% satisfaction that we listen to & act on views of 
customers 

65 NA 66 71 

% customers accessing services digitally n/a NA 
No 

target 
No target 

Completed resident engagement impact 
assessments 

21 3 26  60 
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Value for money and technology plan 

Lowest 25% cost per property in the East by 2022 
 

Highlights 

• Tablets purchased for Asset Management Team and 
Health and Safety team to allow more productive working 
using Microsoft 365 apps 

• ICT & Business Intelligence service review Phase 2 – 
consultation & appointments complete 

• Aurora – launch of asset management, mobile assets, 
contractor module, mobile repairs. Good progress on 
phase 2b ahead of July go live. 

• Automatic arrears processing working and ready to be 
rolled out as directed by housing management team 

• New ICT Service Level Agreement with CBC, to include 
training and Microsoft 365 resources 

• Assure H&S system decommissioned of, saving £28K per 
year 

 

Forward look 

• New ICT team structure in 
place from August 

• Final project Aurora modules to 
be ready for go live July 
(Customer Relationship 
Management, Housing Online, 
dashboards, mobile tenancy) 

• Purchase of tablets for mobile 
solution 

• Replacement of all existing i3 
laptops to upgrade to CBH 
standard by Q2/Q3 

• ICT equipment to support office 
refurbishment and new ways of 
working 

• Further development of ICT 
competency framework 
including staff survey for skills 
assessment  

• Joint Microsoft tenancy with 
CBC (due Q3) 

• Endpoint management on 
devices to enhance security 
and control via remote 
management. 

• Workflows built into NPS 
system to improve automation 
& efficiency 

• Exploring new solutions for 
H&S, risk & compliance 
management/reporting 

• Performance audit 

Risks, issues & support required 

• ISSUE: Ensuring correct devices are procured for mobile 
tenancy management to support new ways of working. Trial 
tablets purchased to allow device comparison for best use 
of Housing mobile tenancy management app. 

• ISSUE: Suite of NPS reports incomplete and a number of 
data issues remain outstanding – additional external 
resource on Aurora team extended 

• RISK: The cashable savings KPI was initially set at £190k 
which was the CBH pension deficit determination. In 
agreement with CBC the first year (2020/21) was funded 
directly by CBC, hence the target of £0k. Year 2 (2021/22) 
is 50% of the determination (£90k) and in year 3 (2022/23), 
CBH is required to fund 100% of the determination. 

Progress measure 
2020/21 
outturn 

Latest 
Current 
target 

2022 
target 

£ cost per unit (repairs & housing management 
combined) 

842 
(2019/20) 

842 
(2019/20) 

1048 (top 
quartile 
19/20) 

Top 
Quartile 

% staff satisfied with how CBH supports them 
in the technology they use 

69 
(March 
2021) 

69 
(March 
2021) 

60 60 

£ cashable savings achieved £0k  £0k £90k 
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People plan 

Times top 100 not-for-profit employer by 2022 
 

Highlights 

• Annual review of the People Plan at Board and risk register updated, 

• Commencement of accommodation review project across Rowan 
House, Gosbecks and Greenstead offices- Including staff 
accommodation survey, 

• Programme 2020 ICT & Business Intelligence service reviews, Phases 
1 and 2 completed. Rough Sleeper Team restructure completed to 
comply with funding 

• Government Kickstart funding agreed and 4 vacancies advertised, 

• Art of Performance Management training courses delivered to all line 
managers, 

• Draft updated online induction module ready for launch to staff in July, 

• New secondments policy launched, 

• Finance Apprentice started apprenticeship, 

• Introduction to First Aid eLearning, PREVENT and updated Data 
Protection Awareness eLearning module launched, 

• HR Portal launched to staff, launch of Special Leave form and Sickness 
self cert form in portal, 

• Wellbeing initiatives- Menopause awareness workshop, caring for 
wellbeing in challenging times, How to be Resilient in difficult times 
and Men – It’s good to talk, 

• Policies reviewed, Probation, Staff Code of Conduct and Redundancy 

• Volunteer Pack created and liaison with Community 360 for volunteer 
opportunities, 

• Participation in One Colchester Tackling Racism Working Group 
 

 

Forward look 

• IIP assessment 

• Salary 
benchmarking 
for 12 key roles 
across CBH, 

• Managers 
Recruitment 
Guide 

• Community 
Caretaker 
apprenticeship 

• Customer 
Service and 
Induction 
eLearning 
module launch 

• Recruitment 
Phase 2 of iTrent 
launch of online 
shortlisting for 
managers 

• Kickstart 
programme; 2 
further vacancies 
to be advertised. 

• Working 
practices review  

• Accommodation 
review 
 

Risks, issues & support required 

• RISK:  Covid leading to high staff absence rates, isolation. (Staff working 
from home where they can, PPE provided, Rowan House is Covid safe) 

• RISK: CBH unable to recruit suitable staff for certain positions 
(Benchmarking data is being sought, wider advertising of roles and use of 
market supplements where necessary). 

• RISK: Staff performance remains static or reduces due to poor working 
culture and environment (Visible leadership, regular monitoring through My 
contribution, manager performance management training). 
 

Progress measure 
2020/21 
outturn 

Latest 
Current 
target 

2022 
target 

% of staff who feel empowered to make decisions and 
have ownership of their work 

80 
 

80 
81 84 

% of staff who are supported by their manager to do 
the job to the best of their ability 

86 
 

86 
86 86 

% of employees who would recommend CBH as an 
employer 82 

 
82 
 

84 84 
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Business development plan 

£420k from trading income by 2022 (subject to annual 
review) 

 

Highlights: 

• Mercury Theatre project complete – reopened 26/06/21. 

• Pre-start meeting for enhanced landscaping works at Balkerne Gate 
held 23/06/21. 

• Hardings Close – houses largely complete, handover expected 
16/08/21.  

• Buffet / Scarfe Way – piling and ground beams complete, walls being 
constructed. 

• Military Road – piling and ground beams complete, walls being 
constructed. 

• Elfreda House – Kier Construction appointed to deliver works. Start 
on site expected September 2021. 

• Shrub End Depot – Phase 1 works agreed and being progressed. 

• Rowan House refurbishment – Design & Construction Management 
(DCM) Team brief has been expanded and revised fee bid has been 
prepared. Project expected to go out to tender September 2021. 

• Town Hall boiler flue project on site. 

• Architectural Services for Phase 3 Garage Sites project has been 
tendered. Tenders currently being analysed. 

• DCM Team assisted Colchester and Ipswich Museums Service with 
Arts Council MEND fund application. 

• External repairs at Town Hall and Hollytrees Museum project out to 
tender. 

• Next phase of Roman wall repairs out to tender. 

• Highwoods Visitor Centre entrance redevelopment out to tender. 

Forward look 

• Enhanced landscaping 
works at Balkerne 
Gate starts on site 
26/07/21 

• Hardings Close 
completes 16/08/21 

• Buffet and Scarfe Way 
completes January 
2022 

• Military Rd completes 
February 2022  

• Elfreda House starts 
on site September 
2021 

• Town Hall boiler flue 
project completes 
September 2021  

• Town Hall and 
Hollytrees Museum, 
Roman Wall and 
Highwoods Visitor 
Centre project tenders 
returned. 

• Rowan House 
redevelopment project 
out to tender 
September 2021.  

Risks, issues & support required 

• Issue: Awaiting instruction from Client following submission of 
Sheltered Housing Options Appraisal in April 2021. 

• Risk: Fee income target for 2021/22 may not be met.  

• Mitigation: Expanded DCM brief for Rowan House project will help to 
close income target gap.  DCM to continue to pursue other projects 
and portion of company reserves to be ring fenced to cover possible 
fee shortfall. 

Progress measure 
2020/21 
outturn 

Latest 
Current 
target 

2022 target 

£ additional revenue per annum (net of 
direct costs)  

£685k £37k £440K £420K 

£ profit per annum (after supporting the 
General Fund budget shortfall) 

£131k (£47k) £110K £0 
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Leadership plan 

Leadership that inspires trust and confidence in CBH by 
2022 

 

Highlights 
• Board Strategic Plan Working Party inception April 

• Interim CEO arrangements in place to cover incoming 
CEO notice period 

• Board risk workshop took place in June to review and 
implement a more streamlined Strategic Risk register 
and review the Risk Appetite.  

• New Councillor Board Member  

• ALMO Board members online event April 2021 

• Operations and Performance committee inception 
meeting in May. Terms of reference approved.  

• Governance and Remuneration committee inception 
meeting in May. Terms of reference approved  

• Customer stories continue to feature in Board meetings. 
May meeting - sheltered accommodation residents and 
reflections on Covid 

• Compliance status against the NHF Code of 
Governance was completed in May and CBH are well 
positioned against the criteria  

• CBH Communication Strategy being reviewed with CBC 

Forward look 
• Leadership Plan review at Board in 

July 

• To review resumption of Board 
meetings in various venues (Covid 
permitting) to ensure members 
understand the stock 

• Resident Board Member recruitment  

• Board Tour of Creffield Road new 
build properties 

• AGM to take place at the Mercury 
Theatre in September 

• Resident feedback to Board in July 
regarding the Complaints process 

• Progress on Board Training Plan 

• Board Away Day to be planned  

• External review of Board 
Effectiveness procurement to begin 
in September  

• Garden competition winners 
Presentation July  

• Inductions and Board values training 
to be carried out for new Board 
Members 

Risks, issues & support required 
• RISK: Change of CEO. Early engagement with Board 

and staff from incoming CEO in place. 

• RISK: – Suitable quantity and quality of candidates for 
Board Member position 

• ISSUE: Progress measures below to be re-evaluated 
since turnover in the Board 

Progress measure 2020/21 outturn Latest 
Current 
target 

2022 
target 

Board skills required vs current board 
skills matrix 

70% 70% 75% n/a 

Board diversity:- 

• % gender 
• Average age 

• Average tenure 

• % BAME 

• % Disability 

67% (F) 33% (M) 
53 Q4 

3.26 years 
0% Q4 

11% Q4 

67% (F) 33% (M) 
53 Q4 

3.26 years 
0% Q4 

11% Q4 

n/a n/a 

Councillor/Resident/Independent 

3 Councillors 
4 independent 

3 resident 

3 Councillors 

4 independent 

3 resident 
n/a n/a 

Resident voice – increase in resident 

participation and representation 

(members) 

10 11 25 n/a 
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Community plan 

A community enabling leader for Colchester by 2022 

 

Highlights 

• Stakeholder survey commissioned to MEL for feedback which will support the 
foundation work for the new Strategic plan 

• Working in partnership with C360 and CBC to establish a Town Centre 
Community Hub 

• Anti-social behaviour week – National campaign supported with local 
initiatives and social media  

• CBH Best kept garden competition judging 23 July 

• Work at Mercury theatre complete and handed over with good connection 
with Mercury for taking forward with residents  

• Nomination for RESPECT award for work to deter anti-social behaviour – Box 
Smart 

• Small grants programme distributed to support local groups  

• Communication by social media and local press has increased to support 
positive local perception of CBH services 

 

Forward look 

• Consultation for 
Strategic plan 
with residents and 
community 

• Investors in 
People planning 
will include the 
impact of CBH 
staff on the wider 
community 

• Good Neighbour 
awards 

• Annual General 
Meeting to be 
held at Mercury 
theatre Risks, issues & support required 

• ISSUE: Volunteering – take up from staff remains low due to limitation of 
Covid restrictions – we continue to promote and support the benefits of 
volunteering to staff and encourage take up where restrictions permit 

• SUPPORT REQD: Encourage residents and stakeholders to return the STAR 
and stakeholder survey 

• RISK: Social impact value will be limited by Covid-19 restrictions as relies on 
number of resident hours attending community events, meetings and 
volunteering  

Progress measure 
2020/21 
outturn 

2021/22 
outturn 

Current 
target 

2022 target 

The value of our social impact on 
communities 

£351,000 Not available No target No target 

% staff who agree that CBH has a 
positive impact on the wider local 
community 

81% 80% 85 88 
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES  

Board Meeting  

28th July 2021 
 
 

 
Report Title 0003iii Business Development Plan Annual Review 

Author Matt Armstrong 
matthew.armstrong@cbhomes.org.uk  

Report Objective: 
The report provides an update on the progress of the Business Development Plan 
over the past 12 months and provide the key performance targets for 2021/22. 

Matters to 
note/Exception 
Highlights 

This is the last update to the plan which concludes in March 2022. 

 
 
 
Link to Consumer 
Standard objective 

Tenant involvement and empowerment☐ 

Home☐ 

Tenancy☐ 

Neighbourhood and community☐ 

Sensitivity Commercial  Action Assurance  

Confidential  Noting  

Open  Approval ✓ 

 

Recommendations 
The Board is asked to: 
 
   i.APPROVE the key performance targets for 2021/22 outlined within section 2.3 of the report. 

 

Executive summary 
 

The Business Development Plan action plan has now been completed as we enter the final year of the 
plan.  The current forecast fee position falls £10k short of target, which will result in a year end deficit 
however upcoming commissions will turn this into a positive year end position. 
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 Implications:  

 

Regulatory/Legal 
 

All work delivered through this plan adheres to current procurement, planning and 
construction regulation and legislation. 

Financial/Budgetary The success of this plan is key to the year end outturn of the business due to its 
target to cover the General Fund deficit, created from the underfunded general 
fund services CBH performs for CBC. 

Health & Safety All health and safety aspects are taken into account when delivering works.  The 
CBH H&S team support the Design and Construction Management team when 
required.   

Risk Assessment  The plan has 2 strategic risks on the risk register: 
 
013 High staff fixed cost making it likely that CBH would make a loss if net 
turnover reduces; and 
041 Trading fails to generate planned amounts of additional revenue. 
 
Both risks are amber with likelihood scores of 3 and impact scores of 3.  This 
score fails into the risk appetite of the Board and is managed through a number of 
mitigations. 

Human Resources The team is fully staffed at present.  In the past it has been difficult to recruit roles 
due to the competitive market and this remains the case should any team member 
leave. 

Equality and 
Diversity  

The plan adheres to the CBH E&D policy. 

Value for Money Projects are analysed on completion to ensure the pricing framework covers the 
cost of the work the team undertakes.  The team is approximately 20% cheaper 
than the open market, making a saving on design and project management costs 
for CBC on the projects commissioned. 

Environmental and 
Sustainability  

The team are heavily involved in CBC’s environmental and sustainability agenda.  
All commissions work towards reducing the carbon footprint of the Council both in 
delivering the projects and the materials used.  Team members sit on the relevant 
CBC meetings, panels and committee’s to contribute and stay updated with the 
Councils vision. 
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1. Progress over the last 12 months 
  
1.1 
 

The plan exceeded its targets in the financial year 2020/21 which is a great achievement 
for the Design and Construction Management team and had a significant effect on the year 
end accounts, covering deficits in other parts of the business. 

  
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The following table shows the KPI outcomes for 2020/21 in comparison to previous years. 
 

 2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn 

2020/21 
Outturn 

£’s net additional revenue per annum 
(net of direct costs) 

£384k £525k £1368k 

£’s DCM Team delivery costs £(486k) £(438k) £(1,009k) 

£’s General Fund Deficit £(75k) £(147k) £(240k) 

£’s profit per annum (after GF deficit is 
deducted and minor projects added) £(152k) £(37k) £130k 

 

  
1.3 
 

One of the reasons of this success was the two key workstreams, Garage site 
development and Sheltered Housing Refurbishment, both of which were undertaken by the 
team during the year but are not guaranteed workstreams for future years. 

  
1.4 All actions in the Business Development Plan Action Plan (appendix 2) have now been 

completed. 
  
2. Planned works for the next 12 months 
  
2.1 The guaranteed work for 2021/22 currently falls short of meeting the organisations General 

Fund deficit.  Further instructions are expected from CBC which will make up this shortfall 
and pressure is being applied to ensure the workflow continues.  The key commission will 
be the next sheltered scheme refurbishment. 

  
2.2 The DCM team have operated and managed its contracts well during the pandemic and 

whilst further minor disruption is being planned for such as material shortages and 
contractors having to self-isolate, it is not expected to affect the overall 2021/22 
programme. 

  
2.3 The targets for 2021/22 are as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 2021/22 
Target 

£’s net additional revenue per annum 
(net of direct costs) 

£499k 

£’s profit per annum (after GF deficit is 
deducted and minor projects added) £0 

Colchester Borough Homes Board Meeting Page 32 of 235



 
The forecasted general fund deficit is for 2021/22 is £156k and the DCM teams’ delivery 
costs are currently forecast at £377k.  This leaves a current position of £34k below target 
but is expected to be recovered through commissions received over the next few months 
and the minor projects profit. 

  
3. Future Challenges 
  
3.1 The Finance & Audit Committee agreed at its meeting of the 21st April 2021 to ringfence 

£100k of reserves to cover any future shortfall in the fee income of the DCM team.  This 
will allow for timing of invoices not to influence the year end position. 

  
3.2 Discussions are being held with CBC, as part of the Management Agreement Action Plan, 

to forward plan and guarantee garage development and sheltered refurbishment 
workstreams.  This will provide assurance that the team remains on target each year to 
meet the DCM teams’ overheads and the organisations general fund deficit. 

  
3.3 A greater emphasis on providing sustainable, energy efficient designs has identified a 

skills gap within the DCM team which is currently filled through external consultant 
appointments.  This is not uncommon and is used in other areas of specialism, however 
the Councils climate emergency plan has meant all future commissions require 
environmental sustainability to be part of the design or replacement of mechanical and 
electrical systems.  Consideration is currently underway to recruit and provide this 
specialism in-house.  

  
3.4 The organsations general fund deficit increases each year meaning the DCM team’s 

financial target also increases in order to cover it.  The Management Fee and its financial 
mechanisms are being discussed with CBC as part of the Management Agreement Action 
Plan, ready for the 2022/23 financial year (new Management Agreement starts in August 
2023). 

  
4. 
 

Appendices 
 
The following documents are appended to this report: 
 
Appendix 1 – Business Development Plan 2018 - 2022  
Appendix 2 – Business Development Plan Action Plan (with progress updates for 2021/22) 
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1. Introduction & purpose 

In an environment of rent reductions, welfare reform and a diminishing 
housing stock, it is vital that we adapt as a company in order to remain 
financially sustainable and protect the core services we deliver. All of the 
company’s core income streams are under pressure or already reducing, 
and therefore the need to develop new business opportunities that will 
deliver additional income is pressing. 

This business development plan sets out our approach to achieving the 
increased income which we have identified as an important factor in 
achieving our mission of delivering great value services that make a 
difference. 

2. Strategic aims 

CBH’s overall ambition as set out in our Strategic Plan 2017-22 is to be 
the trusted choice for local housing, property and community 
services. 

We plan to do this by delivering services that are valued by our 
customers and serving our communities. Our headline measures of 
value for money, customer satisfaction and positive outcomes in the 
community will only be deliverable if we manage to achieve both savings 
and new income to invest in our services. 

The aims of this plan are therefore: 

• To protect services by looking after the future of the business 

• To bring in extra income to invest in our services and our 

communities. 

3. Our ambition by 2022 

Over the last few years we have secured a number of fee-generating 
projects and new income streams, and currently around £450,000 of 
additional income comes from outside the management fee we receive 
from the Council for the delivery of core services. Our aim is that by 
focusing on business development we will be generating £420K 
additional revenue from trading by 2022. 

To deliver this we will need to demonstrate that: 

• We have a social enterprise mindset and skill base 

• We are able to create capacity to invest in business development 

• We have new income streams. 
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4. How we will achieve our aim 

We plan to achieve our aim of generating £420K additional revenue from 
trading by 2022 by: 

• Ensuring the company has access to the required commercial 

skills 

• Developing a clear product offering, market appraisal and pricing 

strategy 

• Developing a flexible resourcing strategy to ensure availability of 

key skills 

• Developing our marketing and sales capability 

This will be supported by the projects and workstreams in the Business 
Development Action Plan which accompanies this document. 

5. How we will measure progress 

We will monitor the following indicators to ensure we are on track over the 
course of the plan. All of the indicators measure performance relating to 
income which does not come from the management fee paid to us by the 
Council for the delivery of core services: 

• £ per annum additional revenue 

• £ profit per annum 

6. Consultation 

The following were consulted during the drafting of this plan, and input 
incorporated: 

• Directors Management Team 

• Senior Management Team 

The following were consulted as part of the strategic plan consultation 
which informed this plan: 

• CBH Board 

• Staff forum 

• All CBH staff (via roadshows & survey) 

• Colchester Borough Council – Housing Portfolio Holder & senior 
officers 

• CBH customers (via focus group & survey) 

• Mondrem UK (external consultant). 
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7. Related documents 

The CBH Strategic Plan 2017-22 gives overall direction to this plan. 

The CBH Business plan will guide how much additional income we need to 
raise to support business sustainability and the level of investment required 
into new income generation to create revenue which we can reinvest in the 
business. 

The CBH Value for Money, Technology and Investment plan will help us 
supplement additional trading revenue and will set out investment priorities for 
any additional income and savings generated. 

The CBH Medium Term Delivery Plan 2018-22 sets out how we will deliver 
services on behalf of Colchester Borough Council to fulfil our management 
agreement obligations. This plan will guide us and help us to demonstrate 
how we are able to continue to deliver our obligations as a low-cost, high 
value provider. 

The CBH Customer Plan will guide the levels of investment need to improve 
our services for customers. 

The CBH People Plan sets out how our staff are supported to develop the 
business. 

The CBH Community Plan sets out how we will invest in delivering our 
services to make a difference in the community in line with our social purpose 
using additional income. 

The CBH Leadership Plan sets out how the Board and management of the 
company will be supported ensure good risk management and prudent 
business development decisions. 
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Business development action plan 

 2018/19 Outturn 2019/20 Outturn 2020/21 Outturn 2021/22 Target 

£’s net additional revenue per annum 
(net of direct costs) 

£384k £525k £1368k £499k 

£’s DCM Team delivery costs £(486k) £(438k) £(1,009k) £(377k) 

£’s General Fund Deficit £(75k) £(147k) £(240k) £(156k) 

£’s profit per annum (after GF deficit is 
deducted and minor projects added) 

£(152k) £(37)k £130k £0* 

Highlights 

• Practical completion of the Mercury Theatre in April 2021. 

• Elfreda House contractor appointed (Kier), work on site starting 

July 2021, completion January 2023. 

• Military Road – completion due February 2022. 

• Competed year with profit of £359k (£130k after GF deficit).  Team 

outperformed 5 year forecast and reserves at healthy level. 

• Minor projects profit of £11k continues to consistently perform well. 

• Note* - The current profit per annum figure is £(21k) but expect 

increased revenue throughout the year will bring to target of £0k 

Forward look 

• Garage Development P3 – approx. 30 homes across 5 sites.  

• Sheltered Refurbishment programme to be discussed in June 

following an options appraisal of the next 5 sites. 

• ZeroCarbon programme  

• Further roles commissioned from CBC – possible Employers 

Agent role. 

• Further work commissioned from CBC such as 100 homes, 

supplementary projects and carbon reduction programme. 

Key risks & issues 

• RISK: Not enough work commissioned from CBC to cover team 

costs. Garage development and Sheltered refurbishment work not 

been guaranteed by CBC for future years. 

• RISK: Delayed payments due to project timelines cause big ‘swing’ 

effect on financial year end. 

• RISK: Increasing cost in redundancy and pension strain if DCM 

team was closed. 

Support/resources required 

• Retro-fit Coordinator role - specialist in energy efficient 

surveying, product specifying, procurement and contract 

management. 
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• RISK: Increased cost in materials and sub-contracted specialisms 

put profit margins and project losses at risk. 

 
 

Completed  

In progress/on target  

Cancelled / on hold  

Unlikely to achieve target  

Not started/behind schedule/below target  

 

Focus 
Actions/projects/ 
workstreams 

Lead Due by Success measure Progress Notes 

Developing a 
flexible 
resourcing 
strategy to 
ensure 
availability of key 
professional 
skills 

Establish project team 
resources to drive the 
business development 
plan forward 

DMT leads 

 

January 

2018 

Project team is established 
so that the Business 
Development plan is 
appropriately resourced to 
deliver actions on time and 
budget. 

  

Restructure the property 
services directorate to 
meet the anticipated 
business development 
needs for the Strategic 
Plan period. 

Director of 
Property 
Services 

 

March 

2018 

A structure with inbuilt 
capacity to flex at minimal 
cost so that risks can be 
contained wherever 
possible within forecast 
budgets 
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Focus 
Actions/projects/ 
workstreams 

Lead Due by Success measure Progress Notes 

Developing our 
product offering, 
pricing strategy 
and market 
appraisal 

Deliver a product and 
pricing strategy for 
relevant services and 
assess the market 
opportunity. 

Project 
team 

 

March 

2018 

Agreement on profitable 
product offering and 
confidence about market 
opportunity 

 

BDP 

decision in 
2018 to only 
accept CBC 
commissions 

Review framework and 
basis for assessing and 
prioritising business 
opportunities 

 

Project 
team May 2020 Improved confidence in 

targeting appropriate 
opportunities and in 
bidding process 

 

Part of DCM 
Service 
Review 

Use existing procurement 

channels to test product 
and pricing strategy and 
generate market insight 

 

Service 
lead 

Ongoing 

Business development 

plan assumptions are 
validated and learning is 
generated for the business 

 

Framework 

and scopes 
of Service 
amended to 
generate 
profit but 
benchmark 
market rate. 

 

Developing our 

marketing and 

sales capability 

Develop sales and 
marketing plan driven by 
the outcomes of product 
and pricing strategy.  

Project 
team with 
external 
support 

April 

2018 

Clarity on product offering 
and our approach to the 
market 

 
BDP 
decision in 
2018 to only 
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accept CBC 
commissions 

Proactively target 
potential customers and 
tender/bid for business 
opportunities. 

Service 

lead 
July 2018 

Increased level of bidding 

activity and learnings 
generated for future 
opportunities 

 

BDP 
decision in 
2018 to only 
accept CBC 
commissions 

Ensuring the 
company has 
access to the 
required 
commercial skills 

Agree skills plan to 
support business 
development 

Project 
team/HR 

Oct 2019 
Clarity on skills gaps and 
agreed approach to meet 
needs 

  

Design/select and deliver 
internal skills 
development programme 

Project 
team/HR 
 

Dec 2020 

Key staff members 
increasingly confident and 
competent at exploiting 
new business opportunities 

  

Source required external 
skills 

Project 
team 

Dec 2020 

Company has access to 
commercial skills that are 
not suitable for internal 
development 

 

Architect, 
structural 
engineer, fire 
specialist 
and energy 
efficiency 
specialist 
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Foreword from Chair of the Board, Dirk Paterson

The Board and Directors

CBH at a Glance

Responding to Covid-19

Our Performance from April 2020 to March 2021

Providing Quality Homes

KEEPING RESIDENTS SAFE

Listening to your views

Stories from our customers

Getting things right

Delivering the Mercury Theatre

100 Years of Council Housing

Looking Forward

Company accounts

Colchester
Credit Union

We support local organisations to help us deliver a range of services:    
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I’m delighted to be celebrating after one of the hardest, but 
most successful years in the history of Colchester Borough 
Homes. I can honestly say it’s been a privilege, and at times 
a moving experience, to chair CBH this year. 

This year we celebrated 100 years of Council Homes. The 
provision of secure and affordable homes in Colchester is 
vital to support residents. Good housing helps individuals 
fulfil their educational goals or personal aspirations and 
enables us to contribute to society. It’s vital that we 
continue to build more homes to support residents.

But we’re not just about great value high quality housing. 
We’re so much more than that. 

We’ve always said we’re here for the community. This year 
we’ve really lived that out. 

During the year staff made over 10,000 calls to the most 
vulnerable customers during the various lockdowns, 
ensuring they had the support required. The Older Persons 
Service Team made just under 30,000 welfare calls to 
tenants in sheltered schemes. The Financial Inclusion Team 
provided specialist financial advice to 1300 customers.

We also provided £40,000 of funding to 23 local groups 
through CBH’s Community Initiative Fund.

As a board, we stayed close to our staff and residents during 
lockdown. The board has been enormously impressed with 
the resilience shown by staff and residents.  

Our urgent and emergency repairs work was outstanding. 
The repairs team was available 24/7 to deliver emergency 
repairs. There was a 100% completion on reported 
emergency and urgent repairs with over 100 cases each 
month. 

One of the most important contributions we’ve made 
to the Colchester community this year has been housing 
rough sleepers during lockdown. This year an unprecedented 
101 people were accommodated and out of those 68 have 
gone into long term accommodation. I’m so proud that our 
front-line staff continue to work selflessly to support the 
most vulnerable in our society during these unprecedented 
times. We’re also very thankful to our partners for their 
continued work in helping to house homeless households 
and rough sleepers. By working collaboratively, we helped 
protect vulnerable residents, as well as the general public, 
during the outbreak of Covid-19. 

Communities of course are not just about what our staff 
do. Communities are all of us working together.  It’s been 
great to see our residents building communities across the 
borough. The Good Neighbour Awards shine a light on our 
tenants and leaseholders who have reached out to support 
others in their community, and it’s been truly inspiring 
hearing how residents have been looking after each other 
throughout Covid-19.

This year we said goodbye to Gareth Mitchel, our CEO who 
has retired. Gareth did a superb job to build our reputation 
as an excellent provider of housing in the community.  
It’s possibly because of our reputation that were able to 
attract an extremely strong field of candidates to replace 

him. We have made an outstanding appointment to 
continue Gareth’s excellent work. The CBH Board, staff and 
stakeholders were impressed with the ability and leadership 
of Philip Sullivan as well as his outstanding track record in 
delivering good quality homes. We know that he will lead 
a team that will deliver for residents, inspire staff and work 
well with the board. I look forward to working closely with 
Philip to deliver an ambitious strategy to meet the long-
term need of social housing across Colchester.

In recognition of all we’ve delivered the Council agreed to 
extend our management agreement until 2028. This shows 
the trust they place in the CBH team. We’ve demonstrated 
that as an arms-length management organisation of the 
Council, we’re fully aligned with their strategic priorities. 
I’m honoured that they believe we’ve demonstrated good 
governance to ensure the organisation is well run and 
excellent value for money for our customers.

We are now well placed to tackle the challenges and 
opportunities that lie ahead for our customers and our 
organisation.

We must build on our success in Colchester. As we look to 
the future, we need to be ambitious and work towards a 
future which provides far greater numbers of sustainable, 
low carbon, high quality social housing in our communities 
over the next 10 years. I look forward to working with 
colleagues to make this a reality for our communities.

CHAIR OF THE BOARD

Dirk Paterson

Foreword Foreword from Chair of the Board
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OUR BOARD as of 31 March 2021

Nigel 
Chapman

Council

LORNA 
PREECE

Tenant

Justin  
King

Independent

Nicola 
Davey 
Tenant

DIRK  
Paterson 
Chair of the 

Board 

KAREN 
SMOUT 
Vice Chair  

(Independent)

PAULA 
GODDARD

Tenant

Tina 
Bourne
Council

Lesley 
Scott-
Boutell

Council

Fiona 
Marshall

Independent

Karen 
Loweman   
Director of 
Operations

Matt 
Armstrong  

Director 
of Business 
Improvement

Also served:
Gareth MitchelL, 
Chief Executive 
Officer, who 
retired in May

DIRECTORS as of 31 March 2021
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CBH at a glanceCBH at a glanceHOMES OWNED AND MANAGED

Number of general 
needs Properties

Number of sheltered 
Tenant Properties

Number of  
leaseholders

Number of homes let 
to new tenancies 

5,865 595

1,332 474  
re-lets

RESIDENT PROFILE

Number of mutual  
exchanges which took 

place between  
Apr 2020 – Mar 2021

Average cost of  
weekly rent for  

general needs homes

Number of homes 
bought through  

right to buy

42 £95 46

tenants where 
lead tenant 
is from BAME 
community 

5%
 tenants have 

held a  
tenancy for 
more than 10 

years 

45%

tenants where 
the lead  

tenants has  
a known  
disability 

46%
tenants where 

the lead  
tenant is  
over 60 

36%

tenants where 
a woman is 

the lead  
tenant 

63%
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Responding to the 
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A number of our services needed to be adapted or 
suspended to meet demand for our core services. 
Staff worked throughout the pandemic and we are 
very proud of our staff’s response, here is a brief  
overview of how we rose to the challenge.

Tracey Brushett, 
HOUSING OPTIONS MANAGER

On 23 March 2020, the Government 
announced the ‘Everybody In’ 
campaign to protect rough sleepers 

from catching Covid-19. All Rough Sleepers as of 26 March 
were to be provided with accommodation that was self-
contained and not a shared dormitory style provision. Our 
Rough Sleeper Team liaised with a local hotel and another 
section of Colchester Borough Homes to help refurbish a 
decommissioned sheltered scheme, set for redevelopment, 
to provide further units of accommodation.

The team co-ordinated furnishing the rooms, processing 
referrals and co-ordinating our partners to ensure those 
accommodated had access to food, medication and white 
goods. During the period between the 26 March 2020 
and September 2020 we provided accommodation for 57 
individuals. To ensure that at the end of this people did not 
end up back on the streets, a pathway plan was developed 
and the Rough Sleeper Team worked with individuals to 
assist them to access alternative accommodation in the 
private sector, supported housing and reconnect them back 
with family or friends. Work on the pathway plan was co-
ordinated through the multi-agency Colchester Homeless 
Action Panel (CHAP’s). This could not have been completed 
without the assistance of the whole Housing Options team 
and our partners both internally and externally.  Thank you 
to everyone for your support.

the amount of noise they made, while also reminding 
residents that the lockdown was tough for everyone and 
an increase in noise was to be expected.

We also experienced an increase in Cuckooing and drug 
activity across the borough. By working with our partners, 
such as Essex Police, we have used the courts to enforce 
conditions of tenancy and this has resulted in a several 
closure orders which provided safety to neighbours and the 
wider community.

Nathan Suley, 

COMMUNITY SAFETY MANAGER

The Antisocial Behaviour team 
experienced an increase in service 
demand during the pandemic with 

people staying home all day. This impacted residents’ 
tolerance levels with neighbours and noise, which created 
an increase of complaints. By working with residents’, we 
reminded them how to be a good neighbour and consider 

Karen Williams, 

HEAD OF HOUSING MANAGEMENT

Whilst we had to change the way we 
offered services during the pandemic 
this did not stop us from reaching 

out to our tenants. We made phone calls to every single 
tenant over the age of 65 in the first lockdown and 
arranged prescriptions and food parcels to be delivered. We 
also wrote out to our tenants directly on four occasions, 
keeping them informed of how to remain safe in their 
homes and updates on the Government restrictions. 

We increased the frequency of content on social media to 
update our customers on service delivery and how they 
could access support. A major highlight was the creation of 
the Resident Voice platform, an online panel which meets 
every two months. This allowed us to receive feedback with 
a particular focus on service provision during the pandemic.

Mark Wicks, 
HEAD OF ASSET MANAGEMENT

Following the first lockdown and 
Government’s guidance, Asset 
Management paused all non-essential 

work in peoples’ homes. Work resumed in June with strict 
covid-secure measures to keep customers and staff safe.

Frequent communication with customers was in place to 
reassure them of the safety measures in place, what they 
needed to do when we visited and digital forms were created 
to help us carry out the necessary checks of a property 
without needing to be in the home. The service recovery 
proved to be challenging, however the team managed 
to complete a total of 1,232 projects including 172 new 
kitchens, 290 heating replacements and 119 new bathrooms. 
This is a huge achievement despite the circumstances.

6       A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0 / 2 0 2 1

Colchester Borough Homes Board Meeting Page 50 of 235



  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0 / 2 0 2 1       7    

Yvonne Day, 

HOUSING MANAGER –  
OLDER PERSONS SERVICE

The Older Persons Service Team was 
flexible in our service provision to keep 

older tenants safe and secure during the pandemic. We 
produced a regular newsletter with quizzes, ways to stay in 
touch, ran a decorate your window for Christmas competition 
and creative poetry during lockdown competition. The team 
maintained daily contact by phoning our tenants in sheltered 
accommodation every month and offering support. David Barthram,  

HEALTH, SAFETY AND FIRE 
MANAGER

Keeping our employees and customers 
safe was our main priority. Initially we 

made sure that all employees had the necessary personal 
protective equipment to protect themselves and advised 
them on how to follow the correct risk assessments and 
safe systems of work. 

We had to balance employee/customers safety and 
building inspections to maintain compliance for some 
of our higher risk buildings. All of our buildings were 
considered covid-secure, including 19 sheltered schemes.

Mark Healy,  
RESIDENT ENGAGEMENT OFFICER 
AND VOLUNTEER

At CBH, staff are encouraged to 
volunteer in the community and 

support others where possible. To support with the 
vaccination rollout, I volunteered at the Essex Suffolk & 
North Essex NHS Foundation Trust. The advert explained 
they were looking for support in wards at the hospital with 
bed making, spending time with the patients who didn’t 
have covid and any other ward-based tasks. 

Volunteering is such a rewarding experience, and I would 
encourage everyone to take up an opportunity to support 
their community and really make a difference.

Karen Loweman,   
DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS – ONE 
COLCHESTER AND PARTNERSHIP WORK

The pandemic has demonstrated how 
important working with local partners 

is to make sure residents receive the support they need. 
One Colchester, the local strategic partnership which 
we’re part of, supported the community response to 
Covid-19 by helping local communities and supporting 
the borough’s recovery in a covid-secure way.

Our Community Fund provided £40,000 funding to 23 
local groups who provide a range of support to residents 
across the borough. I’m so proud of our approach to 
partnership work and this year has highlighted the 
importance of how working together can offer residents 
the best opportunities available.

Jigna Marzell, 

FINANCIAL INCLUSION OFFICER

Despite the exceptional circumstances 
of the past year, the Financial Inclusion 
Team has continued to provide day to 

day services whilst still managing significant growth in the 

number of tenants now subject to Universal Credit. The 
team has continued to operate as normal as possible and 
provide support to our outreach day surgery at Greenstead.

During the year, thanks to technology, we’ve stayed 
in touch with regular catch ups and team meetings, 
made the most of specialist online training courses and 
continued to provide highly successful communication 
with tenants. We’re proud to have offered special 
financial support and advice to 1300 customers, which 
has hopefully made a big difference.

Kirk Braker,  
HEAD OF REPAIRS AND 
MAINTENANCE

Our response to the initial lockdown 
had us focus on the critical services we 

provide and delivering these in an efficient and safe way. 
We reverted to essential and emergency repairs while in full 
lockdown, working with our customers to manage repairs in 
a covid-secure way.

All gas servicing and repairs continued, as we knew these 
services would be more important than ever. By putting in 
various control measures for employees and customers, we 
were able to continue with work in empty properties.

Terry Rundle, 

COMMUNITY CARETAKER  
TEAM LEADER

The Community Caretaker Team 
adapted quickly to support our tenants. 

We supported the Housing Options Team with getting 
accommodation ready for residents who were homeless 
or rough sleeping. It was our role to install additional hand 
sanitising units across the sheltered and corporate buildings, 
increasing the safety of residents and staff.

We’ve helped more vulnerable residents get their 
important benefit documents quickly and securely to 
the Financial Inclusion Team and delivered food bank 
parcels to residents in need and also to those who found 
themselves needing to isolate.
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Our Performance Our Performance 

Satisfaction  
with the service 

provided 

94%*
Satisfaction 

with our  
letting service 

95%

from April 2020 to March 2021

Satisfaction with 
quality of home 

87%**

% of rent  
collected 

£
98%

% Leasehold service 
charges collected 

£
98%

No of people on  
housing register  

Mar 2021 

3015

Average call 
wait time
14 Seconds 

100%

People satisfied  
with service received  

from Antisocial  
Behaviour Team

properties with  
a valid gas safety  

certificate

Average number  
of days taken to  
re-let empty homes

27DAYS

TO LET

*  This result is calculated from our MTDP result which is 
made up of results from responsive repairs (in-house 
and contractor), new tenancies (voids), HIP, adaptations, 
customer service centre, complaints and ASB. % has 
been calculated from 1,401 responses.

**  Result is from our most recent voids survey and is 
made up of responses to the following question,  
“How would you rate the standard of your new  
home overall?”

customer satisfaction  
with repairs

98% 100%
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Providing Quality Homes
It’s important that tenants and leaseholders live in a home that meets the standards they deserve. 
With limitations in place for how we worked over the past year, the Asset Management team still 
managed to complete the following when in improving the homes of our tenants and leaseholders:

119
New BathroomsFlat Roof

Replacements

3 70
Level Access 
Showers

Replacement 
Heating systems

290 172
New  
Kitchens

Air Source Heat Pumps

3 30
Roof Insulation

Wall Insulation

160186
Replacement

Doors

Did you know, 
Electrical testing 
of properties has 

moved from  
every ten years  
to every five
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Keeping Residents SafeKeeping Residents Safe
Throughout the pandemic, we remained 
committed to providing housing and 

homelessness services and administrating 
the Housing Register. We continued to 
support applications for residents who 
needed a new home and our Outreach 
Team provided essential support and 

advice to those who were rough sleeping 
or homeless. Even under immense pressure, 
to team provided the service Colchester 

expects and made a difference to so 
many lives.

*  Includes Temporary, Permanent, Supported and reconnected with family/friends

Outreach team

No. of people on  
housing register  
END OF Mar 2021 

3015
No. homeless  

applications received  
during the year 

APPLICATION

1403 

No. of times where 
homelessness was  

prevented:
No. of homeless  
applicants which  

were housed; 

No. people in temporary 
accommodation end of 

March 2021 

81
109*146
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Listening to your viewsListening to your views
The views of our tenants are so important to us, as they shape the services we deliver. Our Engagement Plan 
seeks to ensure that we continue to place residents at the heart of what we do, and outlines how we will 
achieve this. Over the year, the way we connect and listen to resident has drastically changed but with the 
help of digital technology, Residents have still managed to engage with us. 

The Resident Voice 
We were proud to launch  
our Resident Voice meetings  
in February 2021. 
Open to all tenants and leaseholders, the  
panel works together to make positive  
changes in the way we operate. By holding 
regular and informal discussions, these involved 
tenants and leaseholders have lead the way for 
positive changes in Colchester Borough Homes 
and the service provided. Visit cbhomes.org.uk/
resident-voice to find out more.

 Resident Voice meeting

We’ve highlighted some of our key 
achievements from the last year to 
ensure we’re engaging with our customers 
and understand your views.
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WE made the  
commitment to begin 
the TPAS Accreditation  
process November 2021.

we introduced  
the “Support in the 
Community” page  
to the CBH website. 

More than ninety tenants 
and leaseholders 
have been actively involved during the year sharing  
their lived experience as CBH looks to continually  
improve its services.

Following feedback from our 
previous STAR survey, our Housing 
News and Views now highlights 
tenant feedback and the actions 
we’re taking to resolve.

Task and Finish groups  
reviewed Complaints &  
Compensation policies, as  
well as a new ASB publication

We provided all involved customers 
with a device (along with data) to 
enable them to carry out activities and 
incentivise more involvement across the 
wider CBH Customer audience. 

we awarded Twenty-three 
different groups and 
charities WITH funding 
awards

We provided our final Resident 
Panel meetings via Zoom, until the 
Resident Voice launched. 
We were able to increase the frequency of meetings 
when we began the recovery phase. The panel was 
able to review seven service areas and played a key 
part in CBC/CBH management review.
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Making communities greener

We’re proud to celebrate tenants who work hard to 
make their outdoor spaces something special in our Your 
Garden Awards. Not only do these tenants enhance the 
community but they all play a part in making Colchester 
a greener borough for all residents. We were blessed with 
perfect weather when visiting the five winning gardens! 

Looking out for each other in lockdown

During the January lockdown, 
tenants in our sheltered 
schemes were encouraged 
to get creative in a lockdown 
competition. They were asked 
to produce a piece of work 
which highlighted how they 
felt throughout lockdown. We 

received poems, paintings and more and were delighted 
to announce Gerry’s poem as the winner! 

You can read Gerry’s poem by  
scanning the code or visiting  

cbhomes.org.uk/lockdown-competitioncbhomes.org.uk/lockdown-competition

The benefits of ongoing support

Following the Everyone In campaign, the Outreach Team 
found temporary accommodation for Robin* who was 
identified as rough sleeping through a Streetlink referral. 
Through constant welfare checks and linking him to 
support groups, Robin was eventually reconnected with 
his estranged family and received help identifying what 
he would need when moving into supported housing. 

Looking back at the help received, Robin said: 

“The Outreach Team supported me 
 before I was housed, making sure I was  
safe and well – if it wasn’t for the team I 
would still be on the streets – the team  
go out of their way to help everyone.”

*Name changed to protect identity

Stories from our CustomersStories from our CustomersOur customers are at the heart of 
everything we do. We’ve looked  

back at some highlights from tenants 
and residents over the past year.

Being a good neighbour
Our annual Good Neighbour Awards celebrates residents who 
go out of their way to support others in their community. This 
year, we awarded residents who went the extra mile during 
the pandemic to ensure their neighbours had the support they 
needed. The care and support our three winners demonstrated 
was truly exceptional and really demonstrated the importance 
of supporting others in your neighbourhood.

One of our Good Neighbour winners, Mrs Hart, who helped keep the

community gardens tidy and enhanced the area by supplying plants

and bulbs throughout the first nationwide lockdown.

One of five winning households, Maureen and Paul. 

Gerry, winner
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We received an increase in complaints about the  
repairs service, in particular the delays which were 
caused by the pandemic. Covid-19 restrictions lead  
to changes in service provision, with repairs being  
limited to urgent and emergency at certain times.  
From all the complaints we received, we will review  
our service delivery to improve customer satisfaction.

We are committed to learning from all contacts and 
complaints and to put in place positive changes.

We are delighted to have logged 
109 compliments from customers. This 
includes feedback on how staff from 
various teams performed and supported 
you throughout the pandemic.

We always want to ensure that our customers 
are receiving the best service possible. That’s why 
it’s important customers share their feedback with 
us. Last year, we received a total of 87 formal 
complaints, with 37 of these upheld. On average, it 
took 9 working days to respond to a complaint.

Upheld complaints

Formal Compliments: 109

2019/20 (22) 2020/21 (37)

Responsive repairs 43% 59%
Housing Management 16% 9%
Asset Management 22% 14%
Antisocial Behaviour 6% 4%
Gas 5% 0%
Other 8% 14%

If you have some to share with us, you can contact us by calling  
01206 282514, emailing complaints@cbhomes.org.uk or visit 
cbhomes.org.uk/complaints-and-compliments. Use your 
phone or tablet’s camera to scan here to visit our website to 
share any feedback you may have.

Getting things rightGetting things right

59%

4%
14%

2020/21 (37)

 Responsive repairs

 Housing Management

 Asset Management

 Antisocial Behaviour

 Gas

 Other

9%

14%
37
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Mercury Theatre
Delivering the 
   Mercury Theatre

Working with Colchester Borough Council, the construction of the revamped theatre was 
completed at the end of March and will open to the public in summer 2021.  Along with 
enhancing the surrounding area, the new building will become a community hub for all 
residents of Colchester to enjoy.

During the year, we focused on two phases which were:

Phase 1 
Development of the new production block which was completed on  
11 September 2020.

Phase 2 

Enhancing the existing theatre, box office and creative learning suite which was 
completed on 29 March 2021.

The theatre opened to the public in June 2021 and will be a key venue in  
Colchester to bring residents and communities together.

Throughout the pandemic, we have continued working with partners 
to support the delivery of the Mercury Rising Project which was the 
only arts council england project to continue during the pandemic. 
Mercury Rising is the Mercury Theatre’s redevelopment project, which 

includes a £9.8 million extension and refurbishment of the theatre. 
This exciting project aims to safeguard the future of performing 

arts in Colchester and the surrounding area.
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Years of 
Colchester Housing
Years of 
Colchester Housing

Looking at why it’s important to mark the centenary, Paula Goddard, 
tenant and board member, said 

“I’m proud to have been a tenant since July 2014. There are many 
stories across the borough of residents who require secure and 
affordable housing and it’s because of the Council and CBH that this 
has been achievable.

“Not only does my family have a secure home and tenancy, but we 
have access to valuable services such as financial advice and support 
from organisations who work in partnership with CBH. Tenants and 
leaseholders also get to take part in the annual Your Garden and Good 
Neighbour awards, as well as Resident Voice panel meetings to share  
their views on CBH. The services provided and opportunities available  
are so valuable and really highlight the benefits Council housing  
brings to the borough and its communities.”

Dirk Paterson, Chair of the CBH board, echoed Paula’s comments  
“It is great to celebrate all we have achieved with council housing  
across Colchester and I’m very proud of the value for money and  
high-quality housing we offer to communities. 

“It’s vital that we continue to build more homes to support residents.  
The history of good quality housing shows that it vastly improves the  
life chances of people, helping individuals fulfil their educational goals, 
their personal aspirations and enabling them to contribute to society.  

“We must build on this legacy in Colchester. As we look to the future, we 
need to be ambitious and work towards a different picture, one which 
provides far greater numbers of sustainable, low carbon, high quality  
social housing in our communities over the next 10 years. I look 
 forward to working with colleagues to make this a reality.”

In February, CBH and  
Colchester Borough  
Council celebrated 
the centenary of the 
borough’s first council 
homes. Some of the 
earliest council homes 
in Colchester were built 
more than 100 years ago in 
Defoe Crescent. Today, the 
council provides around 
6000 affordable homes 
to tenants which are 
managed by us.
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Looking forward
Transforming our future

Following our immediate response to Covid-19, we 
looked at how CBH could develop certain practices going 
forward. This lead to the creation of The Transformation 
Project, which has been a huge success with many 
projects and initiatives being established and completed. 
The project focused on the following projects:

 Sustaining and enhancing  
community enablement
Reviewing how we work with local charities and 
organisations to best support communities across the 
borough.

Preparing for an increase in 
homelessness
Ensuring the best practices and resources are available to 
cope with the predicted rise of homelessness.

Delivering gigabit broadband
Utilising the new technology which is available to our 
tenants so they have a fast and reliable connection to our 
online services, those provided by the Council and other 
partners.

Funding of energy efficiency projects
We’re committed to supporting the Council achieve 
carbon neutrality by 2030 and will be improving energy 
efficiency in our homes and also helping tenants reduce 
their fuel costs.

Improving workforce resilience 
Looking at workforce resilience, health and wellbeing, 
induction and the development of a suite of updated  
HR forms.

Enhancing the use of IT
Assessing how technology can assist CBH to work more 
effectively and better communicate with our customers.

In order for us to continue providing excellent services 
for our customers, we must continue to transform and as 
an organisation. The completion of this project should be 
the catalyst for teams to carry on pushing the boundaries 
in finding alternative and innovative ways of overcoming 
external challenges and improving our service provision 
and ensuring residents and communities are at the heart of 
everything we do.

Creating an accessible platform

To provide customers and staff with a better digital 
experience, the Council procured and supported the 
implementation of a new IT system from Northgate Public 
Services (NPS), on behalf of Colchester Borough Homes. 
The new system will provide tenants with access to more 
digital services and will provide time saving benefits to 
staff.

Managing the project remotely due to Covid-19, NEC 
(previously NPS) worked in partnership with Colchester 
Borough Council and Colchester Borough Homes to ensure 
the system went live in just over 11 months. Typically, 
similar transformations would take at least 18 months 
to implement and sometimes longer. The new IT system 
will provide a huge range of benefits, including allowing 
customers to view online rental statements, manage 
payments and report repairs from home.

Housing staff working remotely will be able to update 
tenancy records from any device and analyse data such 
as the geographical location and condition of properties 
at the touch of a button, which will help them to make 
informed decisions on when and where to target resources.

Looking forward

 Involved tenant receiving their tablet device
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Providing quality
accommodation

We are proud of what we’ve achieved this year when 
making improvements to people’s homes. We’re excited to 
see a major project come to life in 2021/22. Elfreda House, 
in Shrubend, is to be replaced by a larger, three-storey 
complex, increasing the number of homes from 32 to 36.

The new building will offer tenants their own bathrooms, 
kitchens, living rooms and bedrooms. Each apartment will 
also have its own outside space, either in the form of a 
balcony or a courtyard for those on the ground floor. There 
will also be shared communal spaces where residents can 
socialise and lifts to the upper floors.

We’re working towards
becoming accredited with TPAS,
the tenant engagement experts. 

TPAS are dedicated to improving tenant engagement 
standards across the country. They bring tenants, landlords 
and contractors together through a wide range of services, 
independent and impartial advice, support, consultancy, 
and training. Supporting over 200 Housing Associations, 
Local Authorities, resident groups and contractors covering 
over 2.5 million homes, the accreditation will demonstrate 
our commitment to tenant engagement and ensuring we 
have to skills to develop this.

Resident Voice
Our Resident Voice meetings will still be held every other 
month. We encourage all tenants and leaseholders who 
want to have their say on our services and the homes they 
live in to attend. It’s a great way to have an informal chat 
with other tenants and leaseholders and have your views 
shared with the board, which could lead to positive steps in 
the service we provide.

Elfreda House design

‘Scan the QR code 
to learn more 
about the Resident 
Voice and how YOU 
can get involved!
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Company AccountsCompany Accounts
2020/21 – OPERATING COSTS BEFORE
PENSION ADJUSTMENT

Capital Investments, 
repairs and  

maintenance

£9,540,000

Housing Management

£2,672,000 Services for  
older people

£549,000

Support services  
from CBC

£316,000

Business Support  
and overheads

£1,668,000
Premises

£256,000

TOTAL: £15,001,000
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Contact us

Phone: 01206 282514

Email: info@cbhomes.org.uk

Colchester Borough Homes
First Floor Rowan House
33 Sheepen Road
Colchester
CO3 3WG

Find us on
Colchester  

Borough Homes
@ColBoroughHomes

Colchester  
Borough Homes
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4. Interim CEO Verbal Update –
Operational highlights and spotlight on
national landscape - Karen Loweman
To Note



 

5. Celebration of Frontline Staff  - David
Shipley
To Note
Presented by Dirk Paterson



 

6. Focus on Frontline – Repairs team –
Craig Lewis (electrical supervisor)
To Note



 
   

FOCUS ON CBH FRONTLINE –  
 
Craig Lewis – Electrical Supervisor Repairs   
 
 

1. Tell us about your job 
 
I am one of 3 supervisors working in the CBH Repairs & maintenance team as a team we supervise 
all repairs to our domestic properties between us. 
 
I am responsible for managing my team of 3 electricians and 1 apprentice. I inspect jobs before they 
are assigned and advise my team on the best course of action, and to look for any potential issues or 
problems (health and safety or installation). I also inspect a number completed jobs to make sure the 
customers are happy with the work and my team; I do this for my two contractors as well who are 
Whitehall Electrical and Protect & Detect (door entry system); this means that when I get their invoice 
for signing, I know exactly what we are getting charged for. 
 
I have regular daily contact with customers services either by phone or email with customer issues, 
complaints and even some compliments which is always good to hear. My team are also in constant 
contact asking for solutions to problems they have, issues with customers or sometimes just to check 
in with each other. 
 
As a supervisor for my team, we have quarterly one to one meetings where I can sit down with each 
individual for a period of time and ask them how they are doing, give them feedback on how they are 
working in the business, and address any personal or work issues they may have at that time. I also 
offer them friendly support and let them know of the services we have to offer if they do have any 
issues. Pre-covid 19 we used to meet on a monthly basis during our lunch time to all sit down together 
and have lunch together for team morale and have a chat about any work issues. It is a great time to 
give positive feedback on works that has gone well and just to have a chat on a friendly basis as a 
team building exercise. 
 
I also answer email enquiries for other colleagues that need me to go and inspect potential jobs or offer 
advice over the phone or via email this also includes helping the work planners with time aspect with 
jobs being booked in.  
 
When an electrician visits site and completes a test or installs a new circuit they must complete the 
necessary certificates for these works. As the Qualifying Supervisor for CBH I then must check these 
certificates for accuracy. Once my team have filled them out on site making sure all the right boxes 
have been filled out with the right results. Every year I am inspected by an assessor from NIC EIC 
(National Inspection Council for Electrical Installation Contracting) to make sure I am testing the right 
way and competent to sign off the certificates. This help CBH demonstrate that I have the technical 
knowledge and continuing to develop my knowledge of the electrical industry all year round. 
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2. How did you get into this role?  
 
I joined CBH in October 2018 as an electrician doing day to day repairs or installs, then in November 
2019 CBH invested in me and put me on my City and Guilds 2391 test and inspection course which 
help me develop. 
 
In January 2020, the job for my now role was advertised, and I applied I was unsuccessful at first due 
to this being my 1st time in this type of role, however I was seconded which was an exciting time for 
me, the transition from being on the tools and then coming into the office took some time, but I got 
there. I wanted to prove to myself I am worthy to do the role. In January, this year all my hard work and 
training CBH gave to me paid off as I applied for the vacancy again this time, I was successful. 
 
 
 

3. What is the best part of your job?   
 
The variety! No two days are ever the same, I never get bored, and I meet some charming and 
interesting people. 
 
I like to face new challenges every day which push me forward to becoming a better person for my 
role, even in my position I learn new skills and new ways of handling situations. 
 
I really like hearing all the positive feedback I get from colleagues and customers which makes me 
realise I am improving all the time. 
 
Training that I have received from CBH has helped me get where I am now and going forward with my 
team, I want to develop them to get where they want especially our apprentice who has really shined 
throughout lockdown, and I feel is going to be a really good electrician.   
 

4. What is the worst part?   
 
Not having enough time to complete all the task I need to on a daily basis. 
 
Currently it is quite challenging understanding how to use our new housing management system NPS. 
It is very different to our old system and has brought several teething issues which means processes 
have been taking longer to action. It is still early days for us, but I am hopeful that in time it will enable 
us to do our jobs more efficiently and enable us to deliver a better service for our customers. 

 
Another frustration is dealing with our apprentices’ college, I see so much potential in him, but he is 
getting held back by Colchester institute, particularly when he turns up to college and there is no 
teacher to teach him! 
 

 
5. What would you change about your role?   

 
Not much really, but a little less time in the office and a bit more time out in the field but this could be 
due to me being still new to this role.  
 
 

Colchester Borough Homes Board Meeting Page 69 of 235



  
 

6. If you could be CEO of CBH for the day, what would you do?  
 
Mandatory team lunches which I find to be very helpful in solving little problems before they become 
big issues, also this helps build up team moral which I feel is very important to me and my team. 
 
Mandatory job shadowing to improve the knowledge, understanding and communication between 
different service areas to promote collaboration. We are all so focussed on our individual roles that we 
sometimes fail to appreciate the challenges of others. CBH do encourage job shadowing, but this is 
voluntary, and everyone is so busy it is often difficult to fit this in with our workloads. 
 
Encourage open feedback. During lockdown, the CEO and directors have delivered a live broadcast 
via Teams during which they have given staff the opportunity to ask questions (anonymously if 
preferred). I would continue this post lockdown particularly as we appear to be moving to more flexible 
working. 
 
 
 

7. Tell us something about yourself that no one else would know.   
 
At the age of 15 I was judo national for the under 50 KG due to this I was put forward 
for the GB judo team was I sadly never competed for due to injury, but following  
this my son of 14 is following me down my martial arts route and it very much into his 
kickboxing which I help him train with. 
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7. Equality and Safeguarding Annual
Report - Andrew Harley
To Approve



 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

28th July 2021  

 
Report Title 0007 Equality and Safeguarding Annual Report  

Author Andrew Harley (Business Partner: Equality and Safeguarding)  

Report Objective: 
To detail how CBH is meeting its Public Sector Equality Duty and its legal duties 
around Safeguarding 

Matters to 
note/Exception 
Highlights 

 
Key progress over the past year and focus over the next is included within 
sections 5 and 6 respectively.  
 

 
 
 
Link to Consumer 
Standard objective 

Tenant involvement and empowerment☒ 

Home☒ 

Tenancy☒ 

Neighbourhood and community☒ 

Sensitivity Commercial  Action Assurance  

Confidential  Noting ✓ 

Open     ✓ Approval  

 

 Recommendations 
 
 The Board is asked to note how we are meeting our legal obligations.   
 

 Executive summary 

 

CBH has continued to prioritise support for its most vulnerable customers (and staff) during this 
exceptional period. As part of our response to the continuing impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, we have 
further developed our partnership working and community engagement in order to advance our ‘equality 
objectives’ and to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and ‘adults at risk’. All services have 
contributed towards our response to date. 

Over the next year (2021-22) we aim to: develop our links with faith communities and our work with the 
University of Essex and local equality networks; complete our review of available housing specific 
accreditation schemes and benchmarking frameworks; publish a new combined (staff and customer) 
Domestic Abuse Policy; continue to ‘escalate’ referrals to social care in order to help safeguard our 
customers; further develop our programme of e-learning; continue to improve the use of customer 
intelligence data to help strategic planning and operational delivery.  
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1. Purpose of Report  
  
1.1 • To detail how CBH is meeting (a) The Public Sector Equality Duty, and (b) its 

legal duties around Safeguarding; 

• To highlight key progress over the past year and to outline the focus for 
20/21/22. 
 

2. Background & Context 
  
2.1 
 
 

The Board receives an annual update detailing its approach to Equality and Diversity, 
and Safeguarding. This report relates to the period between 01/07/2020 and 
30/06/2021. All data within this report refers to this period unless stated otherwise. As 
was the case during 2020-21, the continuing impact of the Covid-19 pandemic has 
required additional focus on our most vulnerable customers and staff.  

  
3. 
 
 

How CBH meets its Statutory Duties   
 
Equality and Diversity 

  
3.1 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Head of HR and Governance remains the strategic lead for Equality and Diversity 
and the Business Partner (Equality and Safeguarding) remains the operational lead.  
 

Through its relationship with Colchester Borough Council, Colchester Borough Homes 
is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty. This includes the ‘general duty’ and the 
‘specific duties’ of the Equality Act 2010. Under the general duty’’, a public authority 
must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to:   
 

• eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under the Act;   

• advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

• foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it.  

 
CBH’s overall approach is to seek to integrate equality into its day-to-day business, as 
required by guidance. We do this in the following ways: 
 

• Policies and procedures are in place to protect customers and staff from 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation.  

• Our Staff Equality Focus Group meets quarterly in order to review progress and 
cascade best practice.  

• Services are designed to help ensure that we meet the needs of all our 
customers. We ensure that ‘reasonable adjustments’ are made to advance 
equality of opportunity. 
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• We conduct Equality Impact Assessments on our key policies, services, 
strategies and decisions. There is no statutory requirement to do this, but we 
believe that such an approach is necessary to ensure that possible impacts 
upon groups within the ‘protected characteristics’ are consciously and 
systematically considered, and that any negative impacts are effectively 
mitigated. Publication of assessments demonstrates transparency and helps to 
evidence “due regard”.  

• We are committed to resourcing specialist face-to-face training for key front-line 
staff as well as to making full use of the increased efficiencies offered by e-
learning. 

 
3.4 

 
The following information published on this section of the CBH website provides 
evidence of how we are meeting the general duty: 
 

• Equality Information (which includes data and equality analysis)  

• Our ‘Equality Statement’  

• Over 50 Equality Impact Assessments   

• Our commitment to Resident Engagement  
 

3.5 Under the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties) Regulations 2011, CBH is required to: 
(a) publish information to demonstrate its compliance with the Equality Duty; and (b) 
set equality objectives at least every four years. Equality Information must be 
published annually by 31 January and must include “information relating to persons 
who share a particular protected characteristic who are… its employees (and) other 
persons affected by its policies and practices.”  In January 2021, CBH published 
Equality Information which included equality analysis of data by protected 
characteristic in regard to: (a) staff; (b) tenants and leaseholders; and (c) housing 
applicants. 
 

3.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.7 
 
 

Adopted in 2019, CBH’s Equality Objectives continue to be: 
 

• Equality of Access    

• Equality of Opportunity   
 
Whilst the first objective is more externally focused (towards customers), the second is 
more internally focused (towards staff). These objectives and corresponding actions 
are tracked and monitored through the strategic plan and its six key Delivery Plans. 
These are the Business Development Plan, the Community Plan, the Customer Plan, 
the Leadership Plan, People Plan and the Value for Money and Technology Plan.  
 

CBH works closely with local organisations to meet our equality objectives, and to 
support and engage with the local community. These are detailed in section 4 (below).  
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3.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.9 

 
All new staff and Board members receive an induction on Equality and Diversity, and 
all staff and managers are required to complete a dedicated e-learning course tailored 
to their role. In addition, recruiting managers are encouraged to complete an e-learning 
course to increase understanding around ‘Unconscious Bias’, particularly in regard to 
recruitment and selection. In 2020, the need for additional training for staff was 
identified in order to enhance our service response for customer groups more likely to 
face barriers to accessing services. Bespoke professional training ‘Respecting 
Diversity and Understanding Bias’ was delivered by Equality & Diversity UK to 133 
members of staff during 2020 to help CBH take full account of cultural, religious and 
language needs in order to enhance equality of access to services. 
 
Safeguarding 

  
3.10 
 
 
 
3.11  

The Director of Operations remains the strategic lead for Safeguarding whereas the 
Head of Housing Management remains the operational lead. The Business Partner 
(Equality and Safeguarding) assists staff and customers with day-to-day enquiries. 
  
CBH is subject to specific safeguarding duties by virtue of its relationship with 
Colchester Borough Council:  
 

• Under section 11 of the Children Act 2004, local authorities “must make 
arrangements for ensuring (that)…their functions are discharged having regard 
to the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children.”   

• Under the Care Act 2014, local authorities must work with the investigating 
authority (Essex County Council) to discharge its duty to co-ordinate action to 
support an adult who (a) has needs for care and support (b) is experiencing, or 
is at risk of, abuse or neglect, and (c) as a result of those needs is unable to 
protect himself or herself against the abuse or neglect or the risk of it. 

  
3.12 The Essex Safeguarding Children Board (ESCB) and Essex Safeguarding Adults 

Board (ESAB) co-ordinate safeguarding activity and CBH is subject to agreed SET 
Procedures (covering Southend Essex and Thurrock) which are integrated into CBH’s 
Safeguarding Policy and procedures.  

  
3.13 
 
 
 
3.14 
 
 
 
 
 

CBH helps to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and ‘adults at risk’ by 
referring concerns around abuse or neglect to Essex County Council’s Children and 
Families Team and to Adult Social Care.  
 
Over the relevant period (July 2020 to June 2021), CBH has made a total of 60 
referrals, 56 in relation to adults and 4 child referrals (for a total of 5 children). This 
reflects an 18% decrease overall compared with referrals recorded in 2019-20 and 
appears to reflect an overall decrease in referrals from all sources into Essex Social 
Care during the pandemic. The total number of children referred by CBH has fallen 
from 19 (2019-20) to 5 (2020-21) which represents a decrease of over 70%. This  
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3.15 

 
observation is addressed within section 5 (further below). Of the 4 child referrals, 3 
related to neglect and 2 were statutory risk of homelessness referrals. In contrast, the 
number of adult referrals has slightly increased from 54 in 2019-20. Of 56 adult 
referrals, a total of 80 concerns were raised. (This is because, in many cases, more 
than one type of abuse was raised as a concern.) Self neglect was raised as a concern 
in 83% of referrals. Physical abuse was raised in 17% of referrals; material/ financial 
abuse in 17%; domestic abuse in 7%; psychological/ emotional abuse in 4%; and 
neglect in 2%. Compared to 2019-20 data, self-neglect has become more dominant as 
the principal concern highlighted, and the number of referrals raising domestic abuse 
as a concern has increased.  
 
It is important to note that 17% of safeguarding referrals also raised a concern around 
the risk of suicide which is a higher proportion than during the previous period. In these 
cases, self-neglect was the type of abuse actually highlighted. The Police and/or the 
local mental health services were also contacted in these cases since safeguarding 
against abuse or neglect is not the primary route for raising such concerns.   

  
3.16 CBH’s SharePoint ‘record of referrals’ facilitates effective monitoring of safeguarding 

referrals by the Corporate Management Team. (During the period we have increased 
the proportion of referrals for which we hold records on the ‘outcome of referral’ from 
under 50% to over 75%.) This is also reviewed by the Designated Safeguarding 
Officers Group which meets quarterly as a minimum (having met more frequently as 
part of the emergency response to Covid-19). Its role includes reviewing referrals and 
sharing best practice.   

  
3.17 Partnership working remains key to meeting our safeguarding duties: CBH attends the 

Community Safety Partnership (which has responsibilities under Section 9 of the 
Domestic Violence, Crime and Victims Act 2004) as well as the Safeguarding Leads 
Network and NE Essex Children’s Partnership meetings. CBH also acts as the housing 
representative in the region at the Strategic Hate Crime Prevention Partnership. 
 

3.18 CBH continues to provide advice and support around domestic abuse, which includes 
delivering home security improvements through the Sanctuary Scheme. Referrals are 
accepted from Essex Police, MARAC (Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference), 
and Next Chapter, as well as direct from CBH tenants and private residents. During the 
period from July 2020 to the end of June 2021, 59 individuals have been supported by 
CBH.    

  
3.19 
 
 

 
 
 

All new staff and Board members receive a safeguarding induction. In addition,  
CBH maintains its commitment to a programme of intensive 5-hour external 
professional training for front line staff (‘Level 2’) and for Board members, Designated 
Safeguarding Officers, CMT and leads (‘Level 3’). 103 members of staff and Board 
members received this training between July and December 2020.  
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4.1 

 
 
4.2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
4.3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4.4 

 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Community Engagement  
 
CBH works closely with local organisations to meet our equality (and wider) objectives, 
and to support and engage with the local community.  
 

We have provided grant funding (through a delegated budget) to the following local 
organisations:  

• Catch 22 works with young people and their families to provide early 
intervention and specialist support services to families with complex issues.  

• Colchester Citizens Advice Bureau delivers financial and debt advice, and 
advocacy for our tenants. 

• Colchester CAP (Christians Against Poverty) Debt Centre   provides free advice 
and support for money issues and debt counselling. 

• Open Road to support tenants with drug and alcohol problems and have 
developed an online family support group for CBH tenants during the Covid-19 
pandemic 

 
Service Level Agreements are in place with the following organisations who support 
those who are homeless or likely to be:  

 

• Beacon House, a Christian charity which supports local residents experiencing 
(or at risk of) homelessness, and those living in insecure accommodation. 

• Youth Enquiry Service, providing a confidential and informal service for young 
people between the ages of 16 and 25. 

• Sanctuary Supported Living, a ‘housing led’ project designed to provide holistic 
support to rough sleepers.  
 

In addition, CBH provides practical support and funding to Colchester Credit Union, a 
Savings and Loans Co-operative which helps facilitate access to loans on ethical terms 
at reasonable rates.  
 
We also continue to work closely with: 
 

• One Colchester (the local strategic partnership), including sitting on its working 
group: ‘Tackling Racism’. 

• Community 360, One Colchester’s independent charity. Specifically we have 
worked together to support volunteering activity and to establish a Town Centre 
Advice Hub.   

• Solo Housing, assisting single people across the East of England to find a safe 
and affordable place to live. 

• Colchester Engagement & Next steps (formerly the Night Shelter) – which 
provides support and short-term accommodation  
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5. 
 
5.1  
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Developments and Improvements (2020-21) 
 
From Jul 2020 to the end of June 2021, CBH installed grab rails (124), wetrooms (40), 
ramps (7) and stairlifts (13) to improve accessibility for its tenants. Despite the working 
restrictions in place for much of this period due to the pandemic, these figures 
compare favourably to 2019-20. Most notably, there has been an 80% increase in the 
number of wetrooms installed from 22 to 40. 
 
In 2020-21, six community groups benefitted from a share of CBH’s £40,000 
Community Initiatives Fund considered by the panel to be able to deliver the greatest 
impact upon individuals and communities in the borough. These were: Greenstead 
Community Centre including its ‘Filling Station Café’; Abbacus Early Learning including 
the ‘Abacus Cabin’ offering a child-friendly space during the school holidays; Action for 
Family Carers which includes the ‘Feeling Good Caring Well’ programme; Lexden 
Springs appeal fund (supporting children with severe physical and neurological 
disabilities); Abberton and District Cricket Club which offers dedicated cricket coaching 
to children aged 5-18; and Korban, which provides supported housing for young 
people in crisis.  
 
Building upon the incorporation of equality data into key dashboards, Customer Insight 
data has improved the quality of information that underpins strategic planning and 
operational response. Examples of business intelligence and customer insight having 
helped deliver an enhanced service include: 
 

• Data on customer demographics experiencing financial hardship was used to 
target support and assistance during the pandemic. 

• Data on CBH customer demographics most likely to respond positively to the 
offer to move to online housing services has been used by both CBH and CBC;  

• Asset Management has used Gateway to Homechoice bidding data in order to 
help ensure that planning for new homes is as responsive as possible to 
demand by customer group.  

• An equality profile audit was completed on Resident Voice membership in 2021 
whose results were presented to the group in April. CBH is using the data to 
work towards building a panel membership that is more representative of a 
wider range of tenant voices and opinions.  
 

CBH published its first Hoarding Policy in May 2021. Its development reflected the 
need for a more consistent and systematic approach. The policy recognises the need 
for specialist support underpinned by effective partnership working. Its development 
has benefited from the combined operational approach to equality (since hoarding may 
be underpinned by disability) and safeguarding (since hoarding may reflect mental 
capacity issues and/or ‘self-neglect). CBH’s Suicide Prevention Protocol was launched 
in the autumn of 2020. This provides detailed processes and guidance to help us 
safeguard some of our most vulnerable customers. 
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5.5 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
5.6 
 
 

 

 

5.7 

 

 

5.8 

 
 
 

 
5.10 
 
 
 
 
 
5.10 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
5.11 
 
 
 
 

 

 
HR have worked with staff to achieve the following: 
 

• A new and improved Employee Assistance Programme for all staff; 

• ‘Working Well’ Accreditation Award (Level 3) (Wellbeing Charter); 

• Regular ‘Wellbeing Champion’ meetings, facilitating the promotion of free 
wellbeing courses on Yammer (CBH’s staff social media platform); 

• Benefits to the community through supporting staff volunteering, which has 
included assistance at several Covid-19 vaccination centres. 
 

Effective Tenant Involvement and feedback is vital to promoting equality of opportunity 
and access. In 2020-1, CBH purchased tablets to support Involved Tenants, Quality 
Assurance Advisers (QAAs) and Sheltered Quality Assurance Advisers (SQAAs). Over 
the period, CBH has offered customers more online methods to deliver vital customer 
feedback in order to help improve services for underrepresented groups.  
 
Two members of staff within CBH Housing Management are now Sensory Champions 
(accredited through the Sensory Action Alliance). This will help us to deliver enhanced 
service provision for people with sight or hearing impairments.  
 
No tenants were evicted for rent arrears in 2020-21. The ASB Team worked with 
Essex Police to close properties where ASB was seriously impacting upon neighbours. 
An ASB and neighbour disputes handbook was launched called ‘How to be 
considerate towards your neighbour’. 
 

Older Persons Services has continued to move forward during the period with 
communal lounge refurbishment being completed at Fairfield Court and John Lampon 
Court. Newslettters and competitions have continued throughout the period with 
tenants recording their experiences of the lockdown in poetry. Officers met with 449 
tenants and made 2580 calls to tenants to check on welfare. 
 
The Rough Sleeper Outreach Team appointed a Specialist Drug and Alcohol officer 
and a trauma informed counsellor. This has enabled the team to build pathways to 
treatment and housing for customers. 101 people were accommodated in the 
‘Everybody In’ Protect and Protect Plus Initiatives. CBH chairs the Colchester 
Homelessness Action Partnership and the Joint Referral Panel which have continued 
through the pandemic. 17 rough sleepers remained accommodated at end of March 
(2021) with pathway plans to move into alternative accommodation.  
 

A new Accessibility Statement was published on our website in the spring of 2022 and 
plans are in place to improve accessibility further by the end of March 2022. 
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5.12 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
5.13 
 
 

 
CBH Asset Management has exceeded both its roof insulation target (by 500%) and its 
wall insulation target (by 357%). This has delivered health and financial benefits to   
tenants who are vulnerable basis of age or disability. Despite the pandemic, CBH has  
achieved 100% compliance around gas servicing. CBH reintroduced a full repairs 
services from April 2021 which followed full risk assessments for ‘shielded’ repairs 
operatives and PPE packs in place for emergency repairs in ‘Covid-19 positive’ 
households. 
 

A dedicated Equality Impact Assessment was carried out as part of work towards 
agreeing a Covid-19 Recovery Plan in the summer of 2020. The Plan made specific 
adjustments in order to maximise equality of opportunity and equality of access which 
included: additional bespoke workstation adjustments following assessments 
(prioritising staff with known health conditions); Staff over 70 with pre-existing health 
conditions continuing not to work “on site”; Priority given for vulnerable customers 
requiring non-essential repairs (postponed during earlier phase to avoid unnecessary 
contact); Continuation of the programme of ‘welfare checks’ for tenants identified as 
vulnerable on the basis of age, disability, pregnancy and financial hardship. To date, 
CBH has carried out a total of over 10,000 checks.  

 
6. 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Looking Forward (2021-22) 
 

• We will further develop our links with faith communities, building upon our 
membership of the Essex Faith Covenant. When conditions allow, we plan to 
offer ‘faith community based’ appointments around housing and financial advice 
in order to maximise equality of access to our services.  

• CBH will continue to work with the University of Essex and HDN Diversity East 
to share Customer Insight and best practice. This will help to develop our 
response to inequalities around Covid-19 experienced by ‘BAME’ groups. 

• Awaiting publication of CIH’s new Equality Charter, CBH will look to complete its 
review of available housing-specific accreditation schemes and benchmarking 
frameworks for possible adoption in 2022-3. 

• We will incorporate key changes introduced in the Domestic Abuse Act 2021 
into a new ‘combined’ (staff and customer) CBH Domestic Abuse Policy. 

• We will seek to raise awareness of the importance of making full use of Essex 
County Council’s Children and Families Hub in order to help protect children 
from abuse and neglect, and to secure Early Help. We will also seek to increase 
the proportion of all referrals for which we have the ‘outcome of referral’ 
recorded. We will continue to ‘escalate’ individual referrals for which we do not 
receive adequate responses.  

• We will further develop our programme of e-learning including CBH specific 
‘Safeguarding Awareness’ and ‘Suicide Awareness’. We will also make the 
existing ‘Unconscious Bias’ course mandatory for managers. We will continue to 
our use of data to help improve strategic planning and operational delivery.   

•  
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7. 
 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
 

Risk Management  
 
CBH needs to ensure that it is fully complying with the Equality Act 2010 and with its 
safeguarding duties. As an employer and provider of public services, Colchester 
Borough Homes may face legal challenges from individuals who have been 
discriminated against because of discriminatory practices, however unintended. This 
report demonstrates how CBH effectively manages such risks and continues to be 
compliant in meeting in full its legal duties.   

  
8. HR Implications 
  
8.1 CBH’s statutory responsibilities extend to how it treats and manages its employees. 

We must continue to take full account of the Equality Act 2010  by having “due regard” 
to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation. 

  
9. Legal Implications 
  
9.1 Legal implications have been considered within 7 (above).     

 

  
10. Financial Implications 
  
10.1 Financial implications have also been considered within 7 (above).   

 

  
11. Value for Money 
  
11.1 CBH seeks to integrate equality and safeguarding into the day-to-day business of the 

organisation. This helps to support its corusiness and achieve value for money.  
 

  
12. Health & Safety Implications 
  
12.1 There are no specific considerations around Health and Safety as opposed to wider 

safeguarding considerations which have been considered in full within this report.   
 

  
13. Equality & Diversity Implications 
  
13.1 Much of this report has been focused upon equality and diversity.  

 

  
14. Residents at the Heart 
  
14.1 We recognise that effective Resident Engagement is critical to inclusion, and to 

advancing equality of access to services for CBH customers. The mainstreamed and 
integrated approach towards both equality and safeguarding helps us to meet the 
needs of our most vulnerable customers.  
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND FIRE 
REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reported by   David Barthram, Health, Safety, Environmental & CDM Manager    
                            David.Barthram@cbhomes.org.uk                                       
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1.  

Introduction  

The Health, Safety Environmental & CDM Manager has been appointed as the ‘competent person’ under the Management 

of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999, and is responsible for all issues relating to Health, safety and fire and 

oversees the overall H&S strategy to ensure it meets the standards required by the Health and Safety Executive. 

The purpose of this report is to provide an overview to all aspects of Health, Safety & Fire during 2020/2021.    

The year was an extra ordinary year with the Covid-19 pandemic leading to a National lockdown from March 2020.  A 

significant area of work for the Health, Safety, Environmental & CDM Manager and team has been to oversee changes to 

the workplace to ensure that staff are able to work safely and providing information and guidance to our customers. 

The health and safety team have a management system in place to proactively manage and control risks, in order to meet 

these legal requirements, the team manages its risks based on HSG65 model, which is the ‘plan-do-check-act’ approach, 

which also form the health and safety team objectives  

Health and safety Objectives  

Plan  

Rewrite our Strategic Health and Safety Policy in line with HSG65, using the Plan, Do, Check, Act, linking this to our management 

system. 

▪ Company wide gap analysis with regards to health and safety legislation 

▪ Proactive approach to managing workplace health and safety.  

▪ Review activities to identify new risks to prevent workplace injuries. 

▪ Review Term of Reference for the health and safety committee   

▪ Develop of the Insight function on Assure (new function) 

 Do 

▪ Work to continue developing the health and safety Yammer Page 
▪ Conduct frequent inspections and implement a schedule (FRA, H&S audits, site visits, team visits, equipment use and 

work processes) 
▪ CBH will create an environment where all staff are encouraged to challenge unsafe situations or those that cause harm 

to health.   Reminding staff there is an anonymous box to tick on Assure. 

▪ Create and implement multiple training packages that meet the needs of all CBH teams. 
Check 

▪ An audit of each section against the Risk Management Process will be completed 

▪ Revisiting IOSH managing safely training Managers. 
▪ Implement more effective reporting tools for review performance across the Company. 
▪ Analysing trends across the Company monthly 

Act 

▪ Work with service areas to investigate all incidents in a prescribed time and create and lesson learnt report for next 
year’s report. 

▪ Evaluate effectiveness of current H&S safety documentation. 
▪ Evaluate effectiveness of any training relating to H&S. 

 

 

 

 

 

Colchester Borough Homes Board Meeting Page 85 of 235



  
                       

4 

2.  

Legal compliance  

The table below outlines key Health, Safety and Fire legislation & guidance, and identifies key processes that the CBH and the Health 

and safety team has implemented in order to comply. 

 

Key Legislation/guidance   Overview of CBH processes   
Statutory Items on Display 

throughout CBH 
• Employers Lability Insurance Certificate 

• H&S Law Poster 

• Health & Safety Policy statement  

• Fire Action notices  

• First aiders list 

• Fire marshal’s list  

• Fire exit signage  

• Fire plans  

Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 • Health and safety policy  

• A safe working environment that is maintained 

• Suitable provision of relevant information, instruction and supervision  

• Adequate welfare provisions for staff at work 

• Health & Safety Management plan currently being reviewed  

• Consult with employees - Health and Safety forum   
 

Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) 
Order 2005 

 
 
 

• Fire risk assessment programme in place. 

• Frequent fire safety inspections completed  

• PPM programme ongoing  

• Staff training  

• Fire task group 

Display Screen Equipment 
Regulations (DSE) 1992 

(amended 2002) 

• All required staff carry out a DSE workstation assessment 

• Provide an eye and eyesight test (free of charge) upon request from a DSE user 

• Smarter working stations 

• Specialised equipment for workstations to meet user requirements 

• Relevant Training programmes for DSE users  

Grenfell inquiry reports The Grenfell Tower Inquiry is an independent public inquiry, set up to examine the circumstances        
leading up to and surrounding the fire at Grenfell Tower. 

• Phase reports are released, all failings noted are assessed against to ensure CBH have 
suitable and sufficient control measures in place. 

 

Management of Health & Safety 
at Work Regulations 1999  
 

• Staff training programmes in place, with more to be implemented 

• Emergency procedures  

• Health surveillance process currently being implemented  

• Conduct Health & Safety audits to assess risk to health, safety and welfare of employees 

Reporting of Injuries, Diseases 

and Dangerous Occurrences 
Regulations 1995 (RIDDOR) 

RIDDOR only requires you to report accidents if they happen ‘out of or in connection with 

work/working processes.  

• Investigations have been implemented for all incidents and the findings are stored on the 
Assure system, if RIDDOR reportable the relevant notification will be sent to the HSE.  

BS ISO 45001 certification • The aim of ISO 45001 is for continual improvement with the management of occupational 
health and safety. 

• 6 monthly audits to sample areas of the CBH health and safety management plan.  

• strengthening of legal and regulatory compliance 
 

HSE - Approved Codes of 

Practice (ACOP) 
 

Each ACOP is approved by the Health and Safety Executive and gives practical advice on 

how to comply with the law. If you follow the advice you will be doing enough to comply with 
the law in respect of those specific matters on which the Code gives advice. 
Detailed below are some of the ACOPS used for guidance.   

• The Legionnaires' disease Approved Code of Practice (ACOP) (L8) 

• Control of Substances Hazardous to Health Regulations 2002 (as amended) ACOP L5 

• Personal protective equipment at work ACOP L25 
 

Coronavirus Act 2020   
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Public Health (Control of Disease) 

Act 1984 (c. 22) 
 
From 29th March 2021 the health 

protection restrictions in England 
are as set out in the following 
regulations: 

 
The Health Protection 
(Coronavirus, Restrictions) 

(Steps) (England) Regulations 
2021 (S.I. 2021/364) 
 

Making your working place secure during the COVID-19 pandemic, adhering to government 

guidance and HSE control measures. 
 
Implementing  

• Risk assessment 

• Social distancing 

• Cleaning, hygiene and handwashing 

• Ventilation and air conditioning 

• Talk to workers and provide information 

• Working from home 

• Vulnerable workers assessed 

 

 

3.  

Compliance  

Each area of statutory health and safety compliance is summarised in the tables below, which provides and overview of sheltered 
schemes and general needs flats compliance and performance monitoring. 

1. Asbestos Surveying and Removal. 

2. Fire Risk Management 

3. Fire Safety Equipment 

4. Electrical Installation Inspections 

5. Gas Safety Inspections 

6. Water Treatment and Control (Legionella)  

7. Lifting Equipment  

8. Portable Appliance Testing  

 

Sheltered Housing  

Monitoring is complete on 19 Sheltered housing schemes 

Type of 

Service/inspection/assessment 

Number of 

properties 

that 

require the 

detailed 

service  

How many 

properties 

have been 

assessed?  

Compliant  

Outstanding visits  

Partially compliant – 

service/inspection not overdue but 

outstanding   

Overdue visits  

Non-compliant – 

service/inspection overdue   

Gas 12 12   

Legionella – Water risk 

assessments 

19 19   
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Electrical – EICR is an Electrical 

Installation Condition Report. 

19 19   

Lifting Operations and Lifting 

Equipment Regulations 

(LOLER) 1998 (Passenger lifts 

and lifting equipment) 

15 15   

Fire alarm & emergency lighting  19 19   

Asbestos  19 19   

PAT (portable appliance testing) 19 19   

 

General needs blocks/housing 

Data detailed below covers over 6000 properties, however compliance data for each property/building will differ due to what CBH must 

legally service within a domestic dwelling, and what services are connected or installed at each location.   

All compliance data is currently stored in several different systems, the long-term plan will be to hold data for each compliance subject in 
one area. This process is being reviewed to ensure compliance data is correct and most importantly CBH are legally compliant or have a 

suitable schedule in place to achieve overall compliance.  

 

Type of 

Service/inspection/assessment 

Number of 

services/tests/inspections 

required   

Number of 

services/tests/inspections 

completed  

Partially 

compliant – 

service/inspection 

not overdue but 

outstanding 

Overdue visits  

Non-compliant – 

service/inspection 

overdue   

Gas 5200 5200 0 0 

Legionella – Water risk 

assessments completed for 3 

story blocks with water storage 

tanks. 

59 

 

 

59 0 0 

Electrical – EICR  

5-year compliance  

 

6,726 

 

 

5,175 

 

 

 

 

 

1,147 

 

Smoke detectors  

Hard-wired unit servicing  

(annually with gas servicing) 

 

6,917 

 

5,200 

 

1,717 

 

Fire safety inspections – 

communal area inspections 
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completed by community 

caretakers every 12 months 

(April 20 – March 20)  

Blocks - 

Stairwells - 

 

 

175 

467 

 

 

175 

467 

 

 

 

 

Asbestos surveys/inspections  

2 story blocks  

3 story blocks  

Maisonette   

 

 

 

365 

136 

302 

 

 

360 

135 

302 

 

5 

1 

0 

 

0 

0 

0 

 

4 

Accidents, incidents and near misses (A, I & N) 

Health and Safety Investigations 

The Health and Safety Team continue to ensure that appropriate procedures are in place for accident reporting and investigation, and for 
reporting and monitoring work-related ill health.  All accidents, incidents and near misses occurring at CBH premises, or affecting CBH 
tenants or employees are required to be recorded and reported to the Health and safety team.  

This is so a full investigation can take place, these procedures will include arrangements for taking corrective measures to prevent 
accidents or ill health reoccurrence and where necessary for reporting injuries, diseases and dangerous occurrences to the relevant 
enforcing authority. 

During 2020/21 a high percentage of investigations were related to minor injuries, slips, trips and falls and injuries due to lack of 
concentration, fire and and near miss fire incidents, no RIDDOR notifications had to be submitted to the HSE. 

Health and Safety Executive’s (HSE) Involvement and Enforcement Activities During 2020/2021 

Over the last 12 months CBH have not been subject to any formal investigations by an enforcing authority (HSE, Environmental Health, 
Fire Authority etc.), or served with notice(s).  

A, I & N Breakdown  

The total number of Accidents, incidents and near misses for 2020/21 is 38, a breakdown for each area can be seen in the tables below.     

Incident severity Total number 

Minor 9 

Moderate 7 

Major 2 

Severe 0 

Fire 20 
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Type of incident Total number 

Contact with stationary object 1 

Hit by moving object 2 

Fire/Property damage 9 

Slips, trips & falls 3 

Property damage 1 

Near miss - fire incident 11 

Near miss - Covid-19 incident 3 

Unsafe working practice 7 

Dangerous occurrence 1 

 

 

 

Incident location breakdown Total number 

Employee address 1 

Greenstead housing office 1 

General needs blocks 7 

Riverside hotel - rough sleeper accommodation 1 

Rowan house 1 

Sheltered schemes 12 

Tenant address 15 
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Fire - Fire risk assessment (FRA) 

To provide a coordinated approach to fire safety the CBH health and safety team will ensure fire risk assessments are completed 

for all required locations in accordance with policy requirements, this process is split into 3 areas, general needs blocks, sheltered 

schemes and offices. 

A Fire Logbook is available at all sites and will contain maintenance records, emergency plans, relevant checks of fire safety 

systems and site plans. 

CBH employees will be suitably trained and capable to carry out their duties for fire safety tests and inspections.  

General needs blocks – FRA completed every 5 years  

Sheltered schemes and office areas – FRA completed every 3 years and are reviewed annually   

All sheltered schemes and general needs blocks that require a Fire Risk Assessment have an in-date assessment or review in place, 3 

sheltered scheme fire risk assessment reviews have been completed in 2021. 

 

Total number of Fire Risk Assessments 

Fire risk assessments  Number of 

properties  

How many properties have been 

serviced/inspected/assessed  

Outstanding 

visits  

Overdue 

visits  

General needs blocks  438 438 0 0 

Sheltered schemes  19 19 0 0 

Offices and other buildings that require a Fire Risk Assessment  

Office/Property  2020 - Fire risk assessment date completed  FRA Review - 2021   

John Bird - Temp  19/2/2020  18/2/2021  

Greenstead Housing  1/7/2020    

Gosbecks  30/6/2020    

Dedham  17/6/2020    
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6 

Health and Safety audits  

Health and Safety Audits 

The H&S audits put in place by the health and safety team cover key areas: Visual inspection of site, tablet device and/or documentation – 
risk assessments, personal protective equipment, emergency arrangements, first aid, working methods and controls, fire safety and site 

access & egress 

Auditing is a key function for the Health and Safety team and a core component of CBH Health and Safety management 

arrangements. The procedural audit section on the Assure system details 76 audits were completed between April 2020 and March 

2021, in addition quarterly sheltered schemes Health and safety audits (63% compliant) and community caretakers’ general needs 

block inspections (100% compliant) are also completed. 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic audit compliance levels have slightly decreased, when compared to data from 19/20.  

 

The decrease in auditing is down to the following:  

• Internal working activities being temporary suspended  

• External working activities being temporary suspended  

• Government COVID-19 guidance to work from home 

• Location closures  

• Emergency and essential working 

• Limited face to face contact being necessary to prevent the spread of the virus  

 

2020-2021 Health and safety audits  
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2020 Health and safety audits 

 

COVID-19 has allowed a full review of the current audit programme in place, a more robust audit and inspection programme will be rolled 

out in 2021, this will be in line with the CBH roadmap (stage 3 May) where working activities move back to business as usual. 

Several new apps have been produced to allow employees to inspect and audit CBH premises, working activities and contract working 

activities. All data will be stored centrally in SharePoint where this can be reviewed. 

The new health and safety audit process is a more robust approach, allowing employees to capture information on tablet device/mobile 

phone or laptop.  

Subjects covered: visual site inspections, risk assessments, personal protective equipment, emergency arrangements, first aid, working 
methods and controls, fire safety and site access & egress etc.  

 

Objectives 2020/21 

1 Implement a new audit tool that will cover compliance and legal requirements (May 2021) 

2 To ensure that the audit program is revitalised, more robust audit approach during 2021 

3 Have more in-depth data to review, report and improve. 

 

Health and safety Audit Templates   

Asbestos audit  Health and safety audit – Dedham workshop  

Contractor worksite inspection form (H&S team) Health & safety audit (Works in Progress)  

Health & safety audit  Leisure world Health and Safety audit   

Scaffolding inspection record  Health and safety audit sheltered schemes  

Health & safety inspections – Offices   Vehicle checklist  
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Display screen equipment – DSE  

 

Display Screen Equipment  

 

CBH have a duty to comply with the Health and safety (Display Screen Equipment) regulations 1992 to protect employees 
from any risks associated with Display Screen Equipment (DSE). 

 

The DSE regulations only apply to employee’s who regularly use DSE equipment for continuous periods of an hour or more.  

 

The regulations place a legal duty on employers to: 

• Provide suitable equipment, environment, and software  

• Analyse workstations to assess and reduce risks 

• Provide information instruction and training  

• Ensure working can be planned to enable employees to take short frequent breaks 

• Provide eye and eyesight tests for DSE users on request 

As a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, CBH staff have been required to work from home.  Home working was implemented 
quickly and safely with staff allocated laptops and other equipment and furniture to work safely from home. 

The DSE home working assessment process has been fully updated and reviewed. The health and safety team have now 
started a second review on a team-by-team approach to ensure all staff have a suitable home working set up. 

 

The DSE assessment process was completed by most staff, with around 14% of staff detailing DSE and other home working 
issues. 

 

To address DSE issues highlight in the assessments, the health and safety team contacted everyone to ensure staff are 
provided with additional support/guidance, IT equipment or if recommended a phased return to our covid-secure office 
environment.  

 

All CBH employees have now been provided/have the option with the following IT equipment 

• New laptops  

• Office chairs  

• Double screens  

• Mouse 

• Keyboard  

• Footrest  

• Specialist desk if deem necessary by a specialist  

• Any other specialist equipment  
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8  

Training   

The legal requirement to undertake training is broadly covered in the duties of Section 2 of the Health and Safety at 

Work etc. Act 1974. This imposes a general duty on CBH to provide as much information, instruction, training and 

supervision as is necessary. 

CBH have a Health and Safety Policy, which outlines our commitment to health and safety training for all our 

employees, ensuring that we will identify training needs and requirements during the recruitment process of new 

employees and we recognise that newly trained employees should also receive close supervision to check they are 

competent to carry out their duties in a safe manner. 

The health and safety team provide health and safety induction training for all new employees, including both permanent 

and temporary team members. 

E-Learning packages that are currently in place/new courses to be implemented during 2021  

Course name   Employees trained  

Personal Safety (rollout 2021)  

Asbestos Awareness 26 

First aid (2021 rollout)  

Working at height  0 

Health and safety (2021 rollout)   

Fire safety (2021 rollout) 5 

Principle of risk assessment (2021 rollout)  

COSHH (2021 rollout)  

CBH Face to face or Microsoft teams training currently in place.  

Course name   Employees trained  

Fire training sheltered  20 

Fire training office (fire marshal) 12 

Health & Safety Awareness 28 

Manual handling  98 

Health and safety training - external training providers.  

Course name   Employees trained  

Asbestos (UKATA) 38 

Sharp’s awareness  23 

Level 3 Award in Requirements for Electrical Installations 6 

Combined Height, Ladders & Slips Awareness 30 

First Aid at Work (1 day) 15 

Food hygiene awareness level 2 15 

IOSH Managing or leading safely  21 

Abrasive wheels  0 

Precision Cutting Equipment Training (Brush cutting / 
strimmer) 

1 

Working at height awareness  22 

CDM training – rollout 2021   
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Lone working – People safe device    

People safe is a company who CBH use to provide lone working devices to specific staff, dependent on job role and 

risks involved. The people safe devices are fitted with a sim card which allows vocal communication when activated and 

the GPS location of the employee using it. 

The system is monitored by trained staff at People safe who can provide 24/7 support and emergency assistance from 

the Alarm Receiving Centre, the support team are provided with contact details for all CBH employees so they can 

contact line managers to investigate before an emergency response is sent.  

There were no true alarms raised during 2020/21 – with all recorded alerts being made by false trigger of the alarm 

The main reason for this is that the numbers of visits to customer homes reduced and we operated a restricted face to 

face delivery service. 

The personal alarm devices and monitoring will be monitored and reviewed in 2021 as part of our transforming the way 

we work projects.  
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Policy   

during 2020/21, the following policies were revised: 

• Health and safety policy statement – minor amendments  

• CBH Fire safety policy reviewed –  changes as detailed below  

Fire policy summary  - add link 

This fire safety policy was reviewed in January 2021 and was shared for review internally with CMT and externally by 

(protection) Essex County Fire and Rescue Service. 

 

Several changes were identified during the review of the fire safety policy: - brief overview of each  

• Emergency response procedures - Detailed guidance to explain the building evacuation strategy and how the 
decision is made for each building. 

• Personal emergency evacuation plans (PEEPS) - PEEP guidance updated to reflect the requirements for when a 
PEEP is needed for employees, tenants, and visitors.  

• Fire precautions and testing - The RRFSO places duties to ensure Fire door inspections are completed, this 
process has now been detailed in the policy for each building type, and team responsible for the inspections.  

• Emergency lighting - Monthly emergency lighting checks (flick test) put back in place at sheltered schemes.  

• Controlled access to restricted areas - New access control programme implemented to allow CBH more control in 
specific areas.  

• Compartmentation - This section has been added to the policy detailing the requirements of compartmentation within 
our buildings, and the process of completing and signing off the works.  

• Fire risk assessments- The fire risk assessment process for sheltered schemes and general needs blocks sets out 
FRA requirements and assessment frequencies. 

• Fire safety awareness communication - To provide easy to understand fire safety information to CBH tenants.    

• Incident reporting - To ensure all fire incidents are documented and reported to senior management, The Board and 
Colchester council.  

 

 

Objectives 2020/21 

1 Ensure all relevant Health, safety and fire policies are in date, meet legal requirements, 

recommended guidance, and highlight the use of best practice. 
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Tenant Engagement  

The Head of repairs & maintenance and the health and safety manager recently held a task and finish group “Teams meeting” 

with CBH tenants who live in several different types of property in either rented and leaseholder accommodation. The plan is to 

adopt a new pro-active approach to building safety, tenant engagement and more accessible ways of sharing vital information 

Providing information and advice 

We will proactively provide accessible information to the tenants and employees of each building. 

• Provide new tenants with information about fire safety and general building safety at viewings and sign-ups 

• Personal Emergency Evacuation Plan (PEEP) will be completed for any tenant who requires it and sent to the fire 

service 

• A new assessment is carried out if the tenant's circumstances have changed. 

• Noticeboards to display up to date information  

• News and view quarterly magazine for all tenant’s - health, safety & fire section to be added. 

• Provide each tenant with a laminated document containing important contact numbers and what to do in the event of 

an emergency incident  

• CBH website to have new page created to access information, with areas such as Asbestos awareness, fire safety – 

know your building evacuation plan, health and safety, product recall and safety in communal areas etc. 

 

Tenant responsibilities 

Tenants need to maintain building and fire safety protection measures in their flats and communal areas of the building. They 

will need to co-operate to ensure that important safety checks can be carried out. This might include allowing gas safety checks 

or flat inspections to ensure that fire doors, compartmentation and fire stopping is in suitable condition.  

Tenants have a responsibility to: 

• Follow health and safety instructions. 

• Maintain communal areas and dispose of their rubbish properly. 

• Report repairs or concerns. 

• Request permission for alterations to their property  

• Allow contractors in their home to complete compliance safety checks  

• Keep fire doors closed  

• Store mobility scooter in designated area 

• Adhere to fire evacuation policy. 

• Inform CBH of any changes to their health that could affect their ability to evacuate safely in the event of a fire. 

• adhere to advice on smoking and cooking. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

. 
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HEALTH & SAFETY POLICY STATEMENT 
 

 
Health and Safety Policy statement 
 
We are committed to providing services in a way that promotes the health and safety of our tenants, service 
users, employees and other persons who visit our sites or who may be affected by our activities. 
 
To fulfil our statutory duties, the following form our Health and Safety aims and objectives as a company: 

• To provide all employees with the necessary information, instruction, training, and supervision to allow 

them to work safely. 

• Actively promote an open attitude to health and safety, encouraging staff to identify and report hazards so 

that we can all contribute to creating and maintaining a safe working environment. 

• Implement structured, effective, and documented health and safety management arrangements for all 

parts of the organisation. 

• Provide, maintain, and encourage safe methods of work, safe working conditions and a healthy 

environment. 

• To ensure an effective risk assessment process is implemented, control measures are communicated, 

shared and monitored. 

• To devote the necessary resources in the form of time, equipment, personnel, and finance.  

• The assistance of expert help will be sought where the necessary skills are not available within the 

company. 

• To provide and maintain open channels of communication to enable employees, people who use and 

provide our services to raise health & safety issues.  

• To ensure that all Accidents, incidents, near-misses are fully investigated and documented, with 

appropriate action taken to reduce the likelihood of a recurrence. 

• Identifying risks to health and safety and implement adequate controls measures. 

• To ensure regular health and safety audits/inspections are completed to assess working practices and 

procedures. 

• All employees are informed and instructed of health & safety measures required during COVID-19. 

• To ensure, so far as reasonably practicable, Covid-Secure working practices and environments are in 

place for staff, tenants, and any other persons.    

 
We expect all our employees to: 

• Co-operate with supervisors and managers on health and safety matters 
 

• Comply with measures designed to safeguard their health and safety 
 

• Take reasonable care for the health and safety of themselves and other people who may be affected by 
their actions 
 

• Report any health and safety concerns to their manager, health and safety representative or a member of 
the CBH Health and Safety Team 
 
Signature:    Karen Loweman, Interim Joint Acting CEO Date:   
 
Signature:    Matt Armstrong, Interim Joint Acting CEO Date:   

Signature:  Dirk Paterson, Chair of Board  Date:  
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9. Health and Safety Report (quarter 1) -
David Barthram
To Note



 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES  

Board 

28th July 2021 

 
Report Title 0009 Health and Safety Compliance Report (Q1) 

Author David Barthram – H&S, Environmental & CDM Manager 
David.Barthram@cbhomes.org.uk 
(01206) 282433 

Report Objective: 
Quarterly report to inform the Board of the status of activities relating to all aspects 
of Health and Safety Compliance.    

Matters to 
note/Exception 
Highlights 

 

 
 
 
Link to Consumer 
Standard objective 

Tenant involvement and empowerment☐ 

Home☒ 

Tenancy☐ 

Neighbourhood and community☐ 

Sensitivity Commercial  Action Assurance ✓ 

Confidential  Noting ✓ 

Open  ✓ Approval  

 

  Recommendations 
  The Board is asked to: 
  
  I.NOTE the Health and Safety Report  

 

  Executive summary 
  
 The purpose of this report is to inform the Board of the status of activities relating to Health and 

safety compliance.                                
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1. Compliance Assurance  
 
 
1.1 Sheltered Schemes - CBH have 19 sheltered schemes, compliance data for each location 

varies as not all sites/communal areas have the same services installed. Some schemes are 
dispersed, and the compliance is picked up under the general needs service programs. 

 
 

Sheltered Schemes   

Type of 
Service/inspection/assessment 

Number of 
properties 
that 
require the 
detailed 
service  

How many properties have been 
assessed?  
Compliant  

Gas 12 12 

Legionella – Water risk 
assessments 

19 19 

Electrical – EICR is an Electrical 
Installation Condition Report. 

19 19 

Lifting Operations and Lifting 
Equipment Regulations (LOLER) 
1998 (Passenger lifts and lifting 
equipment) 

15 15 

Fire alarm & emergency lighting  19 19 

Asbestos  19 19 

PAT (Portable Appliance Testing) 19 19 
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1.2 General Needs Blocks/Housing - Data detailed below covers over 6000 properties, however 
compliance data for each property/building will differ due to what CBH must legally service within a 
domestic dwelling, and what services are connected or installed at each location. 

 

General Needs Blocks/Housing     

Type of 
Service/inspection/assessment 

Number of 
properties  

How many properties have 
been 
serviced/inspected/assessed  

Partially compliant 
– 
service/inspection 
not overdue but 
outstanding 

Overdue visits  
Non-compliant – 
service/inspection 
overdue   

Gas 5049 5049  (100%) 
 

0 

Legionella – Water risk 
assessments completed for 3 
story blocks with water storage 
tanks. 

 
59 
 

 
59 

 
0 

 
0 

Smoke detectors 
 
Hard-wired unit servicing 
(annually with gas servicing) 

 
 
6,917 

 
 
5,200 

 
 
1,717 

 
 
0 

Quality assurance checks for 
EICRs (at 10.42%) 

3,982 415   

Fire safety inspections – 
communal area inspections 
completed by community 
caretakers every 12 months  
Blocks – 
 
Stairwells - 

 
 
  
 
175 
 
468 

 
 
 
 
39 
 
117 

 
 
 
 
136 
 
351 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
0 
 
0  

Asbestos surveys/inspections  
2-Story blocks  
 
3-Story blocks  
       
Maisonette   
 

 
 
365 
 
136 
 
302 
 
 

 
 
360 
 
135 
 
302 

 
 
5 
 
5 
 
0 

 
 
0 
  
0 
 
0 

Fire doors  
 
Tenant  
 
Leasehold  
 

 
 
1,970 
 
589 

 
 
1,658 
 
27 

  
 
312 
 
552 

 
 

Colchester Borough Homes Board Meeting Page 104 of 235



 

4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Electrical Compliance Scorecard - General Needs Housing 

  NOTES 

Total number of domestic properties 5740  
Total number of domestic properties on 
the program 5740   

Total number of domestic properties 
without an electrical safety obligation 0   

5 YEAR 
PROGRAMME STATUS PERFORMANCE   

Domestic 
properties with a 
current EICR 

COMPLIANT 5144 90% 
Total tenanted properties where last test certificate held  
in system < 5 years old 

Domestic 
properties with an 
overdue EICR  

NON-COMPLIANT 596 10% 
Total tenanted properties where last test certificate held in 
system 
is > 5 years old 

Domestic 
properties within 
90 days of expiry 

DUE TO EXPIRE 97 1.7% 
Total tenanted properties where last test certificate held in 
system will be < 5 years old, within 90 days 

Tests completed, 
awaiting certificate 
from contractor 

UNDOCUMENTED 262 4.6% 

Contractor has completed test, and certification is in 
processing. 
These properties will not have any 'Category 1’ hazards 
present 

Appointments 
booked 

IN PROGRESS 188 3.3% Contractor has appointment for test booked with resident 

No access NON-COMPLIANT 175 3.0% 

Properties have been prioritised on a separate non-access risk 
matrix. 
Works to address these using our access procedure will 
commence following recruitment of Compliance Support 
Officers within Housing Services 

10 YEAR 
PROGRAMME 

  PERFORMANCE   

Domestic 
properties with a 
current EICR 

COMPLIANT 5630 98.1% 
Total tenanted properties where last test certificate held in 
system is 
 < 10 years old 

Domestic 
properties with an 
overdue EICR  

NON-COMPLIANT 110 1.9% 

Total tenanted properties where last test certificate held in 
system is  
> 10 years old 
 
46 included within 'no access', remainder awaiting certificates 

Domestic 
properties within 
90 days of expiry 

DUE TO EXPIRE 9 0.2% 

Total tenanted properties where last test certificate held in 
system will be > 10 years old, within 90 days 
 
All included within 'no access' 

Last updated: 5 July 2021 

Colchester Borough Homes Board Meeting Page 105 of 235



 

5 
 

 
 
 

 
1.3 Fire Risk Assessment (FRA) 
  

  Fire Risk Assessment Reviews 2021 – FRAS are reviewed annually on a 3 year cycle on or before the assessment due date. 
 

Sheltered Scheme  Fire risk assessment - completed   Fire risk assessment review - 2021  

Grymes Dyke Court  27/2/2020  25/02/2021 

Walnut Tree House  10/3/2020  04/03/2021 

Mary Frank House  08/7/2020  09/03/2021 

Fairfield gardens  09/07/2020 03/06/2021 

Ivor brown court  09/07/2020 15/06/2021 

Stuart Pawsey court  13/07/2020 22/06/2021 

Worsnop house  14/07/2020 08/06/2021 

Britannia court  16/07/2020 23/06/2021 

Oatfield close  22/07/2020 28/06/2021 

Cherrytree house  23/07/2020 29/06/2021 

Plum hall   27/07/2020 06/07/2021 

Charles smith house  21/07/2020  

The Cannons  28/07/2020  

Harrison court  30/07/2020  

Enoch house  04/08/2020  

John Lampon court  22/09/2020  

Heathfield house  10/10/2020  

Winstree court  15/10/2020  

Elfreda house (closed for 
refurbishment) 

21/09/2020 
New FRA not due until refurbishments works 
are completed  
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Fire Risk 

Assessments 

Number of 

properties  

How many properties have been 

serviced/assessed/reviewed   

Partially compliant – 

service/inspection not 

overdue but 

outstanding 

Overdue visits  

Non-compliant – 

service/inspection 

overdue   

General needs 

blocks  

(FRAs Due 2022) 

438 438 0 0 

Fire risk 

assessment  

19 11 8 0 

 
 

2. Accidents, incidents and near misses  
 

 Incidents Near miss Un safe 
working 

Fire related RIDDOR 

April 2   3 1 

May 0   0 0 

June 2 2 2   

 
 

 

Incident details - Dangerous occurrence investigation summary (RIDDOR) 
 

Asbestos project officer was notified through customer services, that a tenant had concerns relating to a panel board that 
had been broken whilst being removed from the underside of a staircase in her kitchen by a contractor. The Asbestos 
officer visited to tenants’ property and on inspection It was unclear what the material was, so a sample was sent away to 
be tested. The report received back confirmed sample was asbestos containing material (Amosite).  
 

Investigation – inadequate risk assessment, internal working process not shared and poor safe working procedures  
 
Health and safety executive (HSE) 
HSE visiting officer – building safety and construction division – Responded to the RIDDOR submission with several questions 
requesting additional information and documentation, all questions and information requested was sent/answered. 
 
The HSE has since been in contact several times over the phone and email communication,  the HSE will provide findings of 
their investigation and outcome.  
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10. Finance & Audit Chairs Report (incl
end of year accounts, governance
statement and 5 year plan)
To Approve
Presented by Fiona Marshall



 

FINANCE AND AUDIT CHAIRS REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD   
 

Recommendations 

The Board is asked to: 
 

1) NOTE the draft minutes and matters discussed at the Finance and Audit Committee on the 
14th July 2021at appendix A 

2) APPROVE the end of year accounts and governance statement as recommended by the 
Finance and Audit Committee at appendix B 

3) NOTE the Head of Internal Audit Opinion Report 2020/21 at appendix C 
4) APPROVE the Refurbishment of Rowan House Business case as recommended by 

Finance and Audit Committee at appendix D 
5) APPROVE the 5 Year Business Plan as recommended by the Finance and Audit 

Committee at appendix E 
 

Executive summary 
 

This report separates the work of the Finance and Audit Committee into a stand-alone report. This 
report sets out the matters discussed at the recent Finance and Audit and Risk Committee and 
seeks approval of the Committee’s recommendations on matters requiring Board approval. 
 
1. Minutes and recommendations from the Finance and Audit Committee 

 
The Finance and Audit Committee met on 14th July 2021. The draft minutes form appendix A to 
this report. 
 
2. Approval of Year End Accounts 2020/21 
 
As part of its deliberations on the 14th July the Committee examined the end of year accounts 
2020/21 which it approved in line with delegations. The report was presented in detail by the 
external auditor Luke Morris of Scrutton Bland who then answered questions from the Committee. 
 
Having considered these changes, the Committee resolved to recommend approval to the Board. 
The final End of Year Accounts form appendix B to this report. 

 
3. Annual Governance Statement 
 

Local authorities are required to produce an Annual Governance Statement to report on the 
adequacy of their systems of internal control. As a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council, CBH 
follows this discipline and prepares its own Annual Governance Statement to reflect on the 
adequacy of its governance arrangements. 
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The Directors Management Team have conducted a review of the Company’s governance 
arrangements against a template of best practice to test that the Company’s governance is sound, 
and to identify where it could be strengthened. The final section of the Annual Governance 
Statement includes an action plan to make the improvements that have been identified. Progress in 
implementing this plan will be reported to the Finance and Audit Committee during the coming year. 

 

Attached at Appendix B is the draft Annual Governance Statement. The statement has five parts 
for 2020/21: 

 

• Scope of Responsibility which sets out CBHs’ business management arrangements for 

2019/20. 

• Purpose of the governance framework which describes the high-level business management 
processes adopted by the Company. 

• Review of effectiveness which describes the Company’s arrangements for ensuring that 
these business processes operate effectively throughout the year. 

• Significant governance issues brought forward from the previous financial year which 
outlines where further action was overdue and has now been completed to strengthen the 
governance framework. 

• Significant governance issues identified which outlines where further action is required to 
strengthen the governance framework. 

 

The Board is asked to approve the Annual Governance Statement for inclusion within the 
Company’s Annual Report and Accounts. 
 
 
4. Head of Internal Audit Opinion Report 2020/21 
Fiona Dodimead from TIAA presented the 2020/21 Head of Internal Audit report to the committee.  
The report gave substantial assurance to both the financial and non-financial systems CBH 
operate.  There was a total of 9 Audits carried out by TIAA in 2020/21 over 77 days - 4 audits 
received substantial assurance and 5 received reasonable assurance, final report form appendix 
C to this report. 
 
5. Health & Safety Update 
The Committee reviewed the report and questioned the Health, Safety, Environment & CDM 
Manager on the results.  Three areas discussed in detail, the first was the asbestos incident and 
measure put in place to prevent happening again.  The 13 late Fire Risk Assessment actions were 
questioned over their priority and seriousness and lastly the electrical safety compliance dashboard 
was scrutinised and how the programme would cover the outstanding checks. 
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6. Use of Reserves Business Case 
A new form was agreed by the Committee for future requests for the use of company reserves, 
including the process Officers would go through prior to bring a request in front of the Committee. 
 
7. Rowan House Refurbishment Business Case 
The Committee agreed to the allocation of £150,000 of company reserves for the refurbishment of 
the CBH offices’ in Rowan House.  The new business case form was used giving background to the 
CBC led project and the opportunity is offered CBH to upgrade its office space, ready for a post-
covid way of working. 
The Board is asked to APPROVE the Refurbishment of Rowan House Business case as 
recommended by Finance and Audit Committee. The Business case can be found at appendix D 
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Colchester Borough Homes Limited 
 
Finance and Audit Committee – Wednesday 14th July 2021 – 5.00pm 
Teams Meeting  
Present:   

Fiona Marshall Chair 

Karen Smout  Vice Chair 

Paula Goddard Member 

 
In attendance: 

Matthew Armstrong Director of Business Improvement 

Cong Gu Head of Finance 

Luke Morris Scrutton Bland  

Fiona Dodimead TIAA 

Olufolake Mustafa TIAA 

David Barthram  
Health, Safety, Environment & CDM Manager  
 

 
 
1. 
 
1.1 

Welcome and Apologies 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and apologies were received from Jo Paget 
 

2. 
 
2.1 

Declarations of Interest 
 
No declarations were raised  
 

3. 
 
3.1 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 

Minutes of Previous Meeting and Actions 
 
The minutes were accepted as being a true and accurate record of the meeting held on 
21st April 2021 and were approved by the Committee. 
 
The following actions were noted as still needing completion 
 
KS asked whether the Risk register had been uploaded to convene for information? MA 
advised that Convene was not compatible with the large spreadsheets so he would 
compile a summary page in pdf and upload to convene  
 
Business Continuity Plan – MA advised that he had held training with the Corporate 
Management Team and they would be cascading this training through the organisation.  

 The Committee resolved to: 
i.APPROVE the minutes from the meeting on 21st April 2021 
ii.NOTE the rolling actions 
 

4. 
 
 

4.1 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit of Financial Statements Report & Draft Financial Statement   
 

 
Luke Morris from Scrutton Bland introduced the reports  
 
LM advised that he wanted to put on record his thanks to Cong and her team for another 
successful desktop audit during the covid restrictions.  
 
LM asked the Board to note in his report the following : 
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4.2 
 
 
 
 
 

4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4.4 
 
 

1. Other income and trading income had increased against last years accounts and if 
this continued to grow it would be worth CBH having a detailed review from a 
corporation tax perspective of the kind of trade and activities that were going 
through that line of accounts. LM advised he would take this offline for discussion 
with Cong. 

2. Pension Increase – This was due to the actuarial assumptions which included 
increase to salaries and decreases to discount rates (long term inflation measure), 
which when combined meant greater pension liabilities in the future.  

 
Questions from the Committee: 
 
FM advised that she had posed questions to CG previous to the meeting and these, along 
with the answers had been uploaded to Convene for Committee review.  
 
There were two minor issues noted regarding KS being a Mrs and not Ms, and to note a 
defined benefit pension on page 31.  
 
It was also noted there were two letters of representation, and there should be one.  
 

The committee resolved to 
i. APPROVE the recommendation of the Final accounts to Board on the 28th July 2021.  

 

 

5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit  

Fiona Dodimead from TIAA presented the reports to the Committee and highlighted the 
following: 

Head of Internal Audit Opinion Report 2020/201  

 

The report for 2020/21 had been graded reasonable assurance. TIAA had undertaken 9 
reviews over the course of the year, 4 of which were substantial assurance and 5 with 
reasonable assurance which was very positive and TIAA were assured that controls were 
in place.  
 
TIAA thanked management and staff for their assistance throughout the year.  
 
No questions were received from Members  
 

ii.Internal Audit Progress Report   

 

FD advised that one draft report had been issued for the Northgate interface audit which 
would come to the next meeting, and further audits for the year had been scheduled and 
scoping meetings were being organised.  
 
FD advised that client alert briefings had been issued and these had been uploaded to 
Convene for members to review and shared with CMT. 
 
  

iii.Recommendations Follow up Report – Housing Rents  
 
FD highlighted that this audit had been issued with substantial assurance, and two 
recommendations had been made with regards to the procedure manual being updated 
and arrears monitoring.  
There were no questions from the Committee 
 

The committee resolved to 
i.NOTE the Head of Internal Audit Opinion Report 2020/201  
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ii.NOTE the Internal Audit Progress Report   
iii.NOTE the Recommendations Follow up Report – Housing Rents 

 

6. 
 
6.1 

 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
6.4 
 
 
 
6.5 
 
 
6.6 
 
 
 
 
 
6.7 
 
 
 
6.8 
 
 
6.9 
 
 
 
 
7.0 
 
 
 
7.1 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 

Health and Safety Assurance Report  
 
DB introduced the report and highlighted the following: 
 
Asbestos exposure incident – DB advised that CBH had been fully compliant with all HSE 
enquires, however there was still a concern for regarding the breach of regulation and a 
potential fine. DB assured the committee that a lessons learnt exercise was being 
undertaken and learnings would be shared with the team and procedures had been 
reviewed and refreshed with relevant teams and contractors.  
 
FM advised that this had been a reminder to the team of procedures and their role of 
getting things right, and it was to be noted that no one had been hurt.  
 
MA advised that when contractors were not issued an asbestos survey, they are trained 
to request one.  Likewise, during site visits, CBH will always ask to see the asbestos 
survey to promote awareness and this would form part of the annual training with staff.  
 
Compliance – DB advised that a dashboard was in progress for the six key areas to be 
presented to board in September that would provide a more in-depth look at compliance.  
 
Action tracking – DB advised that CBH had moved over from the Assure system to Teams 
to enable him to track action progress more efficiently.  
 
DB advised that there were a number of high-risk actions that required progress and 
some actions were over a year old.  
 
FM asked what an example of a high-risk action was and that she would like to see an 
honest opinion on those actions that were life risking actions with a clear plan on how they 
will be addressed and prioritised.  
 
DB advised that there were new asset managers in place and he would be meeting with 
them month by month to monitor progress of actions.  
 
MA advised that on the whole CBH stock was low to moderate risk as there were no high-
rise buildings but the sheltered schemes which housed vulnerable tenants were a higher 
risk.   
 
MA asked members to note that with regards to Fire Doors, this remained as a red due to 
procurement issues where the contractor procured had purchased the wrong doors. This 
had led to some contractual disagreements but the contractor had now admitted they had 
made a mistake and would rectify.  
 
KS asked for a progress update on the Cannons on future reports so the Board could 
monitor.  
 
Electrical testing – MA advised that 2 staff had been recruited to get into the ‘no access’ 
properties and that CBH now had in place extra support from agencies who will support 
them getting into properties where there were issues such as hoarding.  
 

The committee resolved to 
i.NOTE the Health and Safety Update  

7. 
 
7.1 

Finance  
 
Cong GU introduced the reports and highlighted the following 
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7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Q1 Accounts  
 
CG advised members to note: 
 
1. Agency Staff Costs – CG advised that in the past there had always been vacancy 
savings to cover the agency staff costs, but these costs in Q1 had increased and there 
was not any budget flexibility. CG advised that she had spoken with Heads of Service to 
review their agency staff, especially long-term hires. The reason for long term hires had 
been because CBH could not recruit to the relevant posts. 
KS asked why CBH had not been able to recruit and was this because CBH were not 
competitive with pay? MA advised this was the case, but then CBH were paying more for 
agency costs. MA advised that this was on the risk register and required discussion 
through management fee meetings with the Council as CBH had become so low cost it 
was difficult to recruit. He continued that at Carpenter level CBH paid £22,000 but CHP in 
Chelmsford paid £31,000 for the same job.  
 
FM advised that management fee discussions needed to include this matter, along with 
pension discussions and it would be good to have data and information to put in front of 
the Council so they can understand the consequence for CBH.  
 
FM also noted that the increase in Repairs costs and potential costs of materials also 
needed to be discussed as risks needed to be shared with CBC rather than CBH relying 
on reserves.  
 
KS advised there had been useful discussion at the working group meeting the day before 
which focused on paying staff higher salaries but not enrolling them in the defined benefit 
pension.  
 
2.Gosbecks Lease Increase – CG advised she had been informed by Amphora Homes 
that they had suffered a data loss and therefore did not charge CBH for the rent increase 
for 2 years. CG advised she had challenged the backdated charge but CBC advised that 
CBH should use their reserves to fund the charge.  
 
3.Voids Budget – CG advised that CBH often picked up works that had not been 
completed by Breyers and then charged for the work following completion. This had left 
CBH with a £300k overspend on voids. The Head of Repairs was in discussion with CBC 
for CBH to take on this budget from CBC.  
 
FM advised this was another item to be raised at the management fee discussions for 
resolution.  
 
FM asked why this labour was split between two organisations as it seemed counter 
intuitive if trying to deal with peaks and troughs of work streams. MA advised that this was 
something the Executive were reviewing, to potentially bring in house and recruit 
expertise posts that CBH currently did not have in the organisation. It would mean that the 
workforce could be managed more efficiently. MA advised that CBH would need to offer a 
competitive salary for these posts however to be able to retain the staff and adopt 
apprenticeship schemes to train within.  
 
‘Use of Reserves’ Business case  
 
CG advised the Committee that CBH currently had an unrestricted reserve of 
£1.8m.  However, due to the uncertainty of the DCM income and future pension 
deficits, an amount of reserve has been identified and ring-fenced, along with previously 
agreed ring-fenced reserve.  
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7.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.5 
 
 
 
 
 

The free reserve is to provide a cushion against unexpected events, loss of income and 
large unbudgeted expenses; and it is not to be used to cover long term or permanent 
income shortfall nor structural financial problems.  

 

CG asked member to approve the proposed process to use reserve funds   
 
It was noted that the process would be used to discuss the Rowan House refurbishment 
business case so this would be a good example of the process. 
 
Rowan House Refurbishment Business Case  
MA presented the business case to request £150k of reserves for improvement works to 
Rowan House Office.  
 
MA highlighted that CBC were undertaking a major refurbishment of Rowan House 
centered initially around the installation of a new heating and ventilation system and LED 
lighting throughout the building.  This has provided an opportunity for CBH 
to modernise its office space at Rowan House and review the way staff will work post 
covid.  
 

A project specification is required by Amphora Homes Project manager by the 27th August 
2021 and the tender will go out in early September.  A contractor is expected to be on site 
in November / December with the work taking 6-9 months. The budget will be managed 
by the CBH Accommodation Review group, providing updates back to this group at each 
meeting. The procurement will be a Design & Build tender package, managed by 
Amphora Homes with CBC as the Client.  
 

The project will look at all CBH office accommodation across the Borough, however the 
majority of cost and effort will be directed to Rowan house which is the primary CBH office 
space.  
  
The project will span the 2021/22 and 2022/23 financial years so if approved, the £150k 

will be ring-fenced in reserves.  
 
FM asked is the space requirements assessment been carried out to inform the project 
specification?  MA advised that a staff survey was carried out and 95% of staff said they 
would prefer to be in the office once a week, or when needed, so this had dropped the 
ratio of desks required from 1 desk to every 2 staff to a 1:3 ratio, meaning 35 desks would 
be required. Another theme arising from the survey was more meeting space and 
collaboration space.  
 
FM asked if CBH could move out of Rowan House? MA advised in that they did review 
this in 2016 and it had proved difficult to find a building within budget and bring it up to 
CBH requirements, but also if CBH moved out of Rowan this would not be well received 
from the CBC as they would need to find a new tenant and the money would be taken 
from the management fee.  
 
The committee approved the the proposed process to use reserve funds and the request 
to use £150k of reserves for improvement works to Rowan House Office.  
 
 
5 Year Business Plan (Final draft)  
 
CG introduced the report and summarised to the committee that over the 5 years, CBH 
was forecast to exhaust its existing reserves by end of 2025/26 to fund both pension and 
General Fund activities deficits. CG advised that CBH would need to either find massive 
efficiency savings in its current operations or to seek additional funds to bridge this gap 
and to build up sufficient reserve level.  
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CG advised that it was difficult to ascertain whether sufficient efficiencies could be 
realised without adversely impacting meeting targets set out in the Medium-Term Delivery 
Plan; seeking additional funds by attracting more services from CBC would be more 
preferable.    
 
FM advised this would be a really useful document for discussions with the Council going 
forward and there were important subjects to talk about which were  
 
1.Staff costs – in terms of competitive pay  
2.Pensions – and how this is managed going forward 
3.Risks around repairs and material costs 
4.Certaninty around contracts – long term planning and consistency of working 
arrangements 
 
FM advised that it would be a worthwhile exercise to benchmark against how other 
ALMO’s are managing their forecast and activity to see if there could be any lessons to 
learn. MA added that there were some ALMOs that managed the whole HRA without any 
council involvement.  
 
 

The committee resolved to 
i.APPROVE the Q1 accounts 

ii.APPROVE the use of reserves business case template 

iii.APPROVE the Rowan House refurbishment business case 

iv.APPROVE the 5- year business plan  

 

8. 
 
8.1 
 
 
 

Strategic Risk Register Update  
 

MA introduced the report and highlighted  
 
There were currently 7 strategic risks (3 are green and 4 are amber), 2 of which are at 
their target score.  There were currently no red risks.  
 
A number of emerging risks were discussed at the Board Risk Workshop on the 25th June 
which would show in the next report to Committee.  It was agreed at the workshop to have 
2 items on the full Board agenda, a review of the strategic risk register at the start of every 
Board meeting and a review of any new risks identified following the meeting at the end of 
the agenda.  This would start from September’s Board meeting.   

 

There were no questions from members 
  

The committee resolved to 
i.NOTE the Strategic Risk Register Update  

9. 
 
9.1 

Governance Update  
 
MA introduced the report and asked members to note the Fraud investigation that was 
currently underway. He advised that TIAA were conducting the investigation which was 
due to conclude by the 28th July and would update the committee at the next meeting.  
 
FM asked if this had been reported to the police as a crime number would be needed for 
any insurance claim. MA advised that he would check TIAA’s protocols with this.  
 

 
The Committee resolved to  
1.NOTE the Governance Update  
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9. 
 
9.1 

AOB 
 
No business was raised  
 
 

 
End of Meeting 

 
 
 

 
 
 

F&A Committee Action List  

14th July 2021    

Action   Who By When   
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their strategic report for the year ended 
31 March 2021. 
 
Principal activities and business review 
The principal activity of the Company during the period was the repair and improvement of 
council homes and corporate properties, tenancy management, rent collection and arrears 
management, homelessness and rough sleeping and other property management associated 
services. 
 
The maintenance and repairs service contract with Colchester Borough Council (the 
‘Council’) continued throughout the year. 
 
Results 
The surplus after tax, but before defined benefit pension scheme adjustments for the year 
was £802,653 (2020 : £153,780). This resulted in a deficit of £248,347 (2020 : £1,617,220 ) 
for the year, after adjustments for the defined benefit pension scheme. 
 
Included in the deficit for the year were some planned investments from reserves for 
transformational projects, post Covid recovery, such as community support funding, app 
development and IT training. The Company  also had additional cost pressures to deal with 
from Covid-19, mainly in purchasing appropriate PPE, investment in IT equipment to enable 
staff to work from home full time and the cost of agency staff to cover high demand service 
areas.  The pandemic affected the delivery of services and the majority of the Company 
moved to providing only essential services from April to September 2020. Those service 
areas that continued to operate, such as capital improvements and major projects, incurred 
delays to the work programmes due to working restrictions and material shortages. 
 
Financial risk management objectives and policies 
The directors consider that the main risks to the Company are that expenditure is not 
controlled in line with the core funding provided by the ‘Council’.  The Company has 
budgeting and management accounting procedures in place so as to control these risks and 
is developing a plan to ensure that its cost base is brought in-line with the core funding. The 
company is also exposed to the prospect of greater cash outflows in future years in order to 
fund the deficit in the pension scheme, to the extent that this is not covered by improved 
investment performance. 
 
The Company is assessed by various metrics applicable to similar housing organisations and 
is looking to be in the upper quartile in the various cost and quality benchmarks. The main 
key performance indicators include the cost of housing management, the cost of repairs, 
tenant satisfaction, the levels of overdue rents, the length of time taken to re-let empty 
properties and customer satisfaction with repairs. 
 
The Company retains sufficient cash for its working capital needs and does not use other 
financial instruments for treasury management. The company therefore has very little 
exposure to cash flow risk. 
 
The Company is following government policy changes signalled by the Social Housing White 
Paper 2020, particularly in respect of tighter regulation around consumer standards, a new 
decent homes standards, higher energy efficiency targets and increased building safety 
standards, which may have cost implications to implement fully. 
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The directors are committed to ensuring that proper governance arrangements are in place. 
 
 
 
Registered office: Signed on behalf of the directors 
1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
Essex Mr D Paterson    
CO3 3WG Director 
  
 
 
Approved by the directors on 28 July 2021  
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The directors present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2021. 
 
Matters covered in the strategic report 
Financial risk management objectives and policies are disclosed in the strategic report. 
 
Directors 
The directors who served the Company during the year were as follows: 
 
Mr M Campbell (resigned 15 October 2020)   
Cllr N Chapman  
Ms P L Goddard    
Cllr C Liddy (resigned 3 November 2020)  
Mr G Mitchell   
Miss J Parker (resigned 24 February 2021) 
Mr D Paterson  
Mrs L Preece  
Cllr L Scott-Boutell 
Mrs K Smout  
Mrs T Bourne (appointed 6 November 2020) 
Ms N Davey (appointed 23 February 2021) 
Mr J King (appointed 23 February 2021) 
Ms F Marshall (appointed 24 February 2021) 
 
Directors' responsibilities 
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and regulations. 
 
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. 
Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union 
and applicable law. 
 
International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each 
financial year the company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This 
requires faithful representation of the effect of transactions, other events and conditions in 
accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses set out on the International Accounting Standards Board's 'Framework for the 
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements'. In virtually all situations, a fair 
presentation will be achieved by complying with all applicable IFRSs.  Under company law 
the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the surplus or deficit of 
the company for that period. 
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Directors' responsibilities (continued) 
 
In preparing these financial statements, the directors are also required to: 
 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 

• make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 

• state whether applicable IFRS’s as adopted by the European Union have been 
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial 
statements; and 
 

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 
to presume that the company will continue in business. 

 
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also 
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial 
information included on the company website.  Legislation in the United Kingdom governing 
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. 
 
In so far as the directors are aware: 
 

• there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is unaware;  and 
 

• the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as directors to make 
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the 
company’s auditor is aware of that information. 

 
The directors are committed to ensuring that proper governance arrangements are in place. 
 
 
 
Registered office: Signed on behalf of the directors 
1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
Essex 
CO3 3WG Mr D Paterson 
 Director 
 
Approved by the directors on 28 July 2021   
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Opinion on financial statements 
We have audited the financial statements of Colchester Borough Homes Limited for the year 
ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the Income and expenditure account, the Statement 
of comprehensive income, the Statement of financial position, the Statement of changes in 
equity, the Statement of cash flow, and the Notes to the financial statements. The financial 
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. 
 
In our opinion the financial statements: 
 
• give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2021 and 

of its loss for the year then ended; and 
 
• have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European 

Union; and 
 
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 
 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs 
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical 
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.  
 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties 
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on 
the entity's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Our responsibilities and the 
responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant 
sections of this report.  
 
Other information  
The other information comprises the information included in the financial statements other 
than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  The directors are responsible 
for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the 
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appear to be materially misstated.   
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Other information (continued) 
If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or 
a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. 
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:  
 

• the information given in the directors' report and strategic report for the financial year 
for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements;  and  

• the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements. 

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment 
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the 
strategic report or the directors’ report. 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 
 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit 
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or 

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 
returns;  or 

• certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
• the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemptions 

in preparing the directors’ report and from the requirement to prepare a strategic 
report; or 

• we have not received all of the information and explanations we require for our audit.  
 

Responsibilities of directors  
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out in the Directors’ 
Report the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for 
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the 
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to 
do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.  
 
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We 
design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material 
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures 
are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:  
 
We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a 
material effect on the financial statements from our general commercial and sector 
experience, through discussion with the directors (as required by auditing standards), 
inspection of the company's regulatory and legal correspondence and discussed with the 
directors the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations. We 
communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any 
indications of non-compliance throughout the audit. 
 
The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies 
considerably. 
 
Firstly, the company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial 
statements including financial reporting legislation and taxation legislation and we assessed 
the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the 
related financial statement items. 
 
Secondly, the company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the 
consequences of noncompliance could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in 
the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines or litigation. We 
identified the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect: Health and Safety 
at Work Act 1974 including the reinforced importance of the big 6 compliance areas, Housing 
Regulator Consumer Standards, Housing Act 1996 & 2004, Building Regulations, British and 
European Standards, Planning Legislation, Localism Act 2011, Regulatory Tenant 
Involvement and empowerment standard, Leasehold Legislation, Prevention of Social 
Housing Fraud Act 2013, Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006, Care Act 2014, 
Children Act 2004, Modern Slavery Act 2015, anti-bribery and corruption, human rights and 
employment law, GDPR. Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify 
non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and other 
management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. 
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Audit procedures undertaken in response to the potential risks relating to irregularities (which 
include fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations) comprised of: enquiries of 
management and those charged with governance as to whether the company complies with 
such regulations; enquiries of management and those charged with governance concerning 
any actual or potential litigation or claims, inspection of any relevant legal documentation, 
review of board minutes, testing the appropriateness of journal entries and the performance 
of analytical review to identify any unexpected movements in account balances which may 
be indicative of fraud. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued) 
 
No instances of material non-compliance were identified. 
 
There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further 
removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions 
reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. 
Irregularities that result from fraud might be inherently more difficult to detect than 
irregularities that result from error. As explained above, there is an unavoidable risk that 
material misstatements may not be detected, even though the audit has been planned and 
performed in accordance with ISAs (UK). 
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located                       
on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report. 
 
Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the Company’s member, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we 
might state to the Company’s member those matters we are required to state to them in an 
auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not 
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s 
member, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
 
Mr Luke Morris (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
For and on behalf of: 
 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor 
820 The Crescent 
Colchester Business Park 
Colchester 
Essex 
CO4 9YQ 
 
Date: 

Colchester Borough Homes Board Meeting Page 130 of 235



COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED 
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE 
 
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT 
 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 
 

The notes on pages 15 to 34 form part of these financial statements. 
 

 

  
- 10 - 

 
   
                                                                                                 Note 2021       2020 
  £           £
 
Revenue 

 
   3 15,803,855 16,891,636

  
Employee costs   5  

 

(7,514,478) (6,961,162)
Defined benefit pension staff cost adjustment 5/13f  

 

(858,000) (1,573,000)
Other operating charges   

 

(7,486,724) (9,787,002)
 -------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------

Operating deficit 4  
 

(55,347) (1,429,528)
   
 Interest receivable - 10,308
Defined benefit pension interest adjustment 13f 

 

(193,000) (198,000)
 -------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------

 Deficit on ordinary activities before taxation    (248,347) (1,617,220)
  
 Income tax expense - -
 ------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------ 

 Deficit for the financial year (248,347) (1,617,220)
 ================================================ ================================================= 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The deficit for the financial year before and after adjustments 
required under IAS 19 in respect of defined benefit pension  
schemes is as follows: 
  
Operating surplus after tax 802,653 153,780
  
Defined benefit pension scheme charges:                                         
 Staff costs adjustment (858,000) (1,573,000)
 Interest costs (193,000) (198,000)
 ----------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------------

Deficit for the financial year (248,347) (1,617,220)
 ===================================================== ===================================================
 
 

All of the activities of the Company are classed as continuing. 
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Note 2021       2020
   £          £
 
Deficit for the financial year 

 
(248,347) (1,617,220)

   
Actuarial (losses)/gains arising from pension liabilities 13b  

 

(12,973,000) 3,861,000
  
Difference between expected and actual return on pension 
fund assets and other actuarial movements 13b  

 

8,818,000 (2,236,000)
 ------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------ 

Total recognised deficit for the year (4,403,347) (7,780)
 ================================================ ================================================= 
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Defined 
benefit 
pension   
scheme     
reserve

Income and 
expenditure 

account 
excluding 
pension    
reserve        Total 

 £ £            £
 
Balance at 1 April 2019 (8,665,000) 1,011,960 (7,653,040)
  
Adjustment from the adoption of IFRS 16 - (138,301) (138,301)
  
(Deficit)/Surplus for the financial year (1,771,000) 153,780 (1,617,220)
  
Other comprehensive income for the year 1,625,000 - 1,625,000
 ------------------------------------------------------ -------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------- 

Balance at 31 March 2020 (8,811,000) 1,027,439 (7,783,561)
 

 
  
(Deficit)/Surplus for the financial year (1,051,000) 802,653 (248,347)
  
Other comprehensive income for the year (4,155,000) - (4,155,000)
 --------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------

Balance at 31 March 2021 (14,017,000) 1,830,092 (12,186,908)
 =============================================== ============================================== ==============================================
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Note

   31 March 
2021 

   31 March 
       2020

Assets                                                                               £           £
Non-current assets  

 Property, plant and equipment 6 579,653 823,070
   

Current assets   

 Trade and other receivables 7 2,181,544 2,807,946
 Cash and cash equivalents   8 1,596,444 1,458,549 
 --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------

 3,777,988 4,266,495 
 --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------

 Total assets 4,357,641 5,089,565 
 ================================================== ================================================

Equity  
 Reserves   

Defined benefit pension scheme reserve (14,017,000) (8,811,000)
Income and expenditure account –  
excluding defined benefit pension scheme reserve            9   1,830,092 1,027,439 
 ------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------

 Total equity  (12,186,908) (7,783,561) 
  
 Non-current liabilities  

 

 
 Defined benefit pension fund liability    13a 14,017,000 8,811,000 

Lease liabilities – long term 437,445 691,501
------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------

     14,454,445 9,502,501
  Current liabilities   
 Trade and other payables 10 1,561,336 2,876,756
    Provisions  11 264,760 229,861 

Lease liabilities – short term 264,008 264,008
 --------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------- 

 Total current liabilities 2,090,104 3,370,625
 ================================================== =======================================

 
Total liabilities 16,544,549 12,873,126

 ------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------- 

 Total equity and liabilities 4,357,641 5,089,565
 ====================================================== ========================--------------------============================ 
      
 
 

Authorised by the Board on 28 July 2021 and signed on its behalf by 
    

......................................  
Mr D Paterson 
Director  
 

Company registration number: 04843624 
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 2021              2020
 £           £ 
Cash flows from operating activities  

Deficit for the financial year (248,347) (1,617,220)
  
Adjustments to reconcile deficit from operations  

Interest receivable - (10,308)
 ------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------ 

 - (10,308)
  
Non-cash adjustments  

Depreciation 243,417 246,870
Increase in provisions 34,899 36,666
Defined benefit scheme pension adjustment 1,051,000 1,771,000

 ---------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------- 

 1,329,316 2,054,536
   

Cash flows before changes in working capital 1,080,969 427,008
  
Increase in working capital  

Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other receivables 626,402 (1,270,342)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables (1,315,420) 1,181,250

 --------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------

 (689,018) (89,092)
 ------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------

Net cash flows from operating activities 391,951 337,916
  
Cash flows from investing activities  

Interest received - 10,308
 ------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------

Net cash flows from investing activities - 10,308
 ------------------------------------------ ----------------------------------------

Cash flows from financing activities  
Repayment of leasing liabilities (254,056) (252,732)

------------------------------------------ ----------------------------------------

Net cash flows used in financing activities (254,056) (252,732)
------------------------------------------ ----------------------------------------

  
 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 137,895 95,492

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,458,549 1,363,057
 --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------

 Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1,596,444 1,458,549
 ================================================= ================================================
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1. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND STATEMENT OF 
COMPLIANCE WITH IFRS'S 

 
The Company's financial statements for the year were authorised for issue on                      
28 July 2021 and the statement of financial position signed on the board's behalf by D 
Paterson. Colchester Borough Homes Limited is a private company limited by 
guarantee, incorporated in England and Wales. Its registered number is 04843624.  
The registered office is Rowan House, 33 Sheepen Road, Colchester, Essex, CO3 
3WG. 
 
The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European 
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. 
The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are set out in note 2.  
 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Basis of accounting 
 
The financial statements are presented in sterling, are rounded to the nearest £1 and 
have been prepared under the historical cost basis. Sterling is also considered to be 
the functional currency of the Company. 
 
Going concern 
 
The financial statements show net assets before pension liabilities of £1,830,092 (2020 
: £1,027,439) but net liabilities of £12,186,908  (2020 : £7,783,561) once the provision 
for pension liabilities is included. The financial statements have been prepared on the 
basis of a going concern, on the assumption that the core funding from the Council in 
future years will enable the increased pension contributions to be met. 
 

   The impact of the coronavirus will continue to have a significant effect on the economy 
and the business during 2021. The directors have prepared cashflow forecasts which 
anticipate that the company will be able to continue to meet it’s liabilities as they fall 
due and the directors are satisfied that the company has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, and for a period of at least 
12 months from the date of approving these financial statements.  For this reason the 
directors adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.  

 
Revenue 
 
Revenue principally comprises of income derived from the Council and is stated 
exclusive of Value Added Tax. 
  
Income received from the Council is for the management of Colchester Borough 
Homes and also relates to specific projects for which the money is earmarked. Costs 
are also recharged direct to the Council in respect of additional property services work 
outside the management fee. 
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2.       ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits 
 

The Company participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by 
Essex County Council, where benefits are currently provided based on career average 
revalued earnings. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the 
Company. 
 
There are no minimum funding requirements but the contributions are generally set to 
target a funding level of 100% using the actuarial valuation assumptions. On the 
Employer’s withdrawal from the Fund, a cessation valuation will be carried out in 
accordance with Regulation 64 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 which will determine the 
termination contribution due by the Employer, on a set of assumptions deemed 
appropriate by the Fund Actuary. 
 
In general, participating in a defined benefit pension scheme means that the Company 
is exposed to a number of risks:  

 
• Investment risk - The Fund holds investment in asset classes, such as equities, 

which have volatile market values and while these assets are expected to 
provide real returns over the long-term, the short-term volatility can cause 
additional funding to be required if a deficit emerges;  
 

• Interest rate risk - The Fund’s liabilities are assessed using market yields on 
high quality corporate bonds to discount future liability cashflows. As the Fund 
holds assets such as equities the value of the assets and liabilities may not 
move in the same way;  

 
• Inflation risk - All of the benefits under the Fund are linked to inflation and so 

deficits may emerge to the extent that the assets are not linked to inflation; and 
 

• Longevity risk - In the event that the members live longer than assumed a 
deficit will emerge in the Fund. There are also other demographic risks.  

 
In addition, as many unrelated employers participate in the Essex Pension Fund, there 
is an orphan liability risk where employers leave the Fund but with insufficient assets to 
cover their pension obligations so that the difference may fall on the remaining 
employers.  
 
All of the risks above may also benefit the Company e.g. higher than expected 
investment returns or employers leaving the Fund with excess assets which eventually 
get inherited by the remaining employers. 

 
Pension scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using a projected unit 
method and are discounted to their present value using a quality corporate bond rate. 

 
Pension scheme assets are valued at fair value at the reporting date. 
 
The pension scheme deficit is recognised in full on the statement of financial position. 
There are no deferred tax implications.
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2.       ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Property, plant and equipment 
 
The depreciation basis for right-of-use assets is disclosed in the leased assets 
accounting policy on page 18.  
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 
The Company’s bank balances are managed as part of the treasury operations of the 
‘Council’.  Each evening the balances are aggregated with those of the Council and 
placed on overnight deposit. 

 
Financial instruments 
 
Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment. 
 
Short term creditors are measured at the transaction price.  
 
Financial assets that are measured at cost and amortised cost are assessed at the end 
of each reporting period for objective evidence of impairment. If objective evidence of 
impairment is found, an impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account. 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the Statement 
of Financial Position when there is an enforceable right to set off the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 

 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation that arises as a 
consequence of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle that obligation and the obligation can be reliably estimated. The 
provisions are measured as the estimated expenditure that will be required to settle 
such obligations as at the date of the statement of financial position. 

 
A provision has been included for the expected reinstatement costs of the Company’s 
offices at the end of the lease. 

 
The Company recognises a provision for the annual leave accrued by employees as a 
result of services rendered in the current period, and which employers are entitled to 
carry forward.  The provision is measured as the salary cost payable for the period of 
absence. 
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2.       ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Leased assets 
 
For any new contracts entered into the company considers whether a contract is, or 
contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys 
the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration’. To apply this definition the company assesses whether the contract 
meets three key evaluations which are whether:  
 

• the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in 
the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is 
made available to the company  

 
• the company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits 

from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its 
rights within the defined scope of the contract  

 
• the company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout 

the period of use.  
 

The company assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ 
the asset is used throughout the period of use. 

 
At lease commencement date, the company recognises a right-of-use asset and a 
lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which 
is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs 
incurred by the company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset 
at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease 
commencement date (net of any incentives received).  

 
The company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the 
lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use 
asset or the end of the lease term. The company also assesses the right-of-use asset 
for impairment when such indicators exist.  

 
At the commencement date, the company measures the lease liability at the present 
value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate 
implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the company’s incremental 
borrowing rate.  
 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of 
fixed payments (including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or 
rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and payments 
arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.  
 
Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and 
increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or 
if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is 
remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or 
profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.  
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2.       ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Leased assets (continued) 
 
The company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value 
assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and 
lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in profit 
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. On the statement of financial 
position, right-of-use assets have been included in property, plant and equipment and 
lease liabilities have been included in trade and other payables. 

 
Current and deferred taxation 
 
Any operating profit of the Company, before IAS 19 defined benefit pension scheme 
adjustments, arising from savings of overhead costs compared to the core funding 
provided by the ‘Council’, is non-taxable.  Taxation is chargeable only on the profit from 
its activities with other housing organisations. 

 
Standards that have been issued but not yet effective 

 
The below accounting standards have been issued but are not yet effective. The initial 
application of these standards is not expected to affect the financial statements. 
   

• IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards – 
Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-
2020 (subsidiary as a first-time adopter) (effective for periods commencing on 
or after 1 January 2022). 

 
• IFRS 3 Business Combinations – Amendments updating a reference to the 

Conceptual Framework (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 
2022). 

 
• IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Amendments regarding 

replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform (effective for periods 
commencing on or after 1 January 2021). 

 
• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Amendments resulting from Annual 

Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (fee in the ’10 per cent’ test for 
derecognition of financial liabilities) (effective for periods commencing on or 
after 1 January 2022). 

 
• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Amendments regarding replacement issues in 

the context of the IBOR reform (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 
January 2021). 

 
• IFRS 16 Leases – Amendments regarding replacement issues in the context of 

the IBOR reform (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2021). 
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2.       ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Standards that have been issued but not yet effective (continued) 
 

• IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements – Amendments regarding the 
classification of liabilities (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 
January 2023).  
 

• IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements – Amendments to defer the effective 
date of the January 2020 amendments (effective for periods commencing on or 
after 1 January 2023). 

 
• IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment – Amendments prohibiting a company 

from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts 
received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset 
for its intended use (effective for periods on or after 1 January 2022). 

 
• IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets – Amendments 

regarding the costs to include when assessing whether a contract is onerous 
(effective for periods on or after 1 January 2022). 

 
• IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – Amendments 

regarding replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform (effective for 
periods commencing on or after 1 January 2021). 

 
Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation 
uncertainty 

 
The preparation of the financial statements requires the Company’s directors to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements. The key judgements and estimation uncertainty that have a 
significant risk of causing material misstatement to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year are those made in respect of the defined benefit 
pension scheme. 

 
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex 
judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected 
to increase, changes in retirement rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. 
An independent firm of consulting actuaries has been engaged to provide expert 
advice regarding the assumptions to be applied in the calculation of the defined 
pension scheme liability, which at 31 March 2021 amounts to £14,017,000. Further 
details of the assumptions made are disclosed in note 13. 
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3. REVENUE 
 

The revenue and loss before tax are attributable to the one principal activity of the 
Company. 
 
All revenue arose in the United Kingdom. 
 
An analysis of revenue by class of business is given below: 

 
     2021       2020

         £          £
  
Rendering of services 15,803,855 16,891,636

 ======================================================= ============================================================ 

 
 
4. OPERATING DEFICIT 
 

The operating deficit is stated after charging/(crediting) the following: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2021 2020 
 £ £

Included in administrative expenses: 
 
Auditor's remuneration - audit of the financial statements 14,550 14,400

 ====================================== ====================================== 
  

  
Internal audit  
Internal audit related to services provided by Mazars LLP  4,352 23,219
Internal audit related to services provided by TIAA Ltd 29,050 -

 =======================================                        ====================================== 
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5. EMPLOYEE COSTS 
  

 
The average monthly number of employees during the year was made up as follows: 
 

 2021 2020
   No. No. 
  

Housing 90 91
Property services 71 72
Resources 36 34
Senior management 11 10
Design team 6 4

 ------------------ ------------------ 

 214 212
 ================== ================ 

  
 The directors’ aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services was: 
 

 2021 2020
 £ £
  
Directors’ emoluments 113,104 110,887
Employer pension contributions to defined 
contribution plans 21,266 17,004

 ---------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 

 134,370 127,891
 ====================================== ===========================================

 
 
 

     2021         2020
          £           £ 

 
Wages and salaries 5,782,787 5,548,674
Employer pension contributions 1,156,620 880,264
Social security costs 575,071 532,224

 --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------

Total employee costs 7,514,478 6,961,162
   

  
Additional employee related costs: 
Redundancy payments 36,843 103,379
Agency costs 280,500 327,872
Other staff costs 324,590 189,007
Recruitment 18,524 25,208
Training and seminars 58,889 72,638

 --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------

 8,233,824 7,679,266
 --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------
   

  
IAS 19 defined benefit pension cost adjustment 858,000 1,573,000

 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

 9,091,824 9,252,266
 ================================================= =============================================== 
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5. EMPLOYEE COSTS (continued) 
  

 In the year, the number of directors receiving remuneration was 2 (2020: 3). This 
decrease in numbers was as a result of the position of chair changing hands during the 
prior year.  
 
In the year, the number of directors to whom retirement benefits are accruing in   
respect of qualifying services was 1 (2020 : 1).  
 
All directors are entitled to be reimbursed for expenses incurred in performance of their 
duties. During the year these amounted to £94  (2020 : £3,921). 
 

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
  
 At 31 March 2021 

 
Property Equipment

Motor 
Vehicles Total

 £ £ £ £
Cost  
At 31 March 2020 741,064 25,588 303,288 1,069,940

----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------

At 31 March 2021 741,064 25,588 303,288 1,069,940
----------------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------

Depreciation  
At 31 March 2020 155,758 10,235 80,877 246,870
Charge for the year 153,768 9,214 80,435 243,417

----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------

At 31 March 2021 309,526 19,449 161,312 490,287
----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------

Net book value   
 - 

At 31 March 2021 431,538 6,139 141,976 579,653
----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------

At 1 April 2020 585,306 15,353 222,411 823,070
----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------

 
Included in the above line items are right of use assets as follows: 

 
                                                                                                                                       Net book 
                                                                                                                                           value 
                                                                                                                                               £    
 
 Property 431,538 
 Equipment 6,139 
 Motor Vehicles 141,976 
  ------------------------------------------ 

  579,653 
  =========================================== 
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 
 
 At 31 March 2020 
  

 
Property Equipment

Motor 
Vehicles Total

 £ £ £ £
Cost  
At 1 April 2019 - - - -
Adjustment on transition to  
    IFRS 16 741,064 25,588

 
303,288 1,069,940

----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------

At 31 March 2020 741,064 25,588 303,288 1,069,940
----------------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------

Depreciation  
Adjustment on transition to  
    IFRS 16 - -

 
- -

Charge for the year 155,758 10,235 80,877 246,870
----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------

At 31 March 2020 155,758 10,235 80,877 246,870
----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------

Net book value     
  

At 31 March 2020 585,306 15,353 222,411 823,070
----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------

At 1 April 2019 - - - -
----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------

 
Included in the above line items are right of use assets as follows: 

 
                                                                                                                                       Net book 
                                                                                                                                           value 
                                                                                                                                               £    
 
 Property 585,306 
 Equipment 15,353 
 Motor Vehicles 222,411 
  ------------------------------------------ 

  823,070 
  =========================================== 
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7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
  

     2021 2020
          £ £  
  

The Council 2,062,920 2,648,605
Other receivables 5,334 15,860
Prepayments and accrued income 113,290 143,481

 --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  

 2,181,544 2,807,946
 ===========--======================================== ================================================  

 
 
8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

     2021        2020 
          £           £
  

Cash at bank and in hand 1,596,444 1,458,549
 ================================================= ==========================================

 
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the 
following at the end of the year: 
 

      2021        2020
        £           £
   

Cash at bank and in hand 1,596,444 1,458,549
 ================================================ ================================================= 

 
 
9. RESERVES 
 

Company limited by guarantee 
 
 The Company is limited by guarantee and has no share capital. The liability of the 

member, the Council, in the event of winding-up is limited to £1. 
 

 
10. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 

      2021   2020
         £ £ 

 
Payable to trade suppliers 295,160 148,834
Other payables 119,992 93,520
Taxation and social security payable 463,853 238,244
Accruals and deferred income 682,331 2,396,158

 --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------

 1,561,336 2,876,756
 ================================================== ==============================================
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11.   PROVISIONS 
 

      2021   2020
        £            £ 

 
The holiday pay provision represents holiday balances accrued as a result of services 
rendered in the current period and which employees are entitled to carry forward.  The 
provision is measured as the salary cost payable for the period of absence. 

 
 

Provision for building reinstatement:  
Balance brought forward 91,010 82,250
Movement for year 2,571 8,760 
 ---------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------

 93,581 91,010
                                        ==================================== ==================================== 

 
Environmental provision:  

 

Balance brought forward 4,180 4,180
Movement for year - - 
 ---------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------

 4,180 4,180
 ==================================== ====================================

Provision for privately leased building venture:  
 

Balance brought forward 11,821 8,571 

Movement for year 3,560 3,250 
 ------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------
 15,381 11,821 
                                        ==================================== ======================================

 
Provision for holiday pay:  

 

Balance brought forward 122,850 98,194 

Movement for year 28,768 24,656
 ------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------

 151,618 122,850 

 ====================================== ======================================

   

  

Total provisions carried forward 264,760 229,861 

                                        ==================================== =====================================
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

   2021 2020
 £   £ 
Financial assets  
 
Financial assets which are debt instruments  
measured at amortised cost 2,068,254 2,664,465

 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

 2,068,254 2,664,465
 ================================================ ================================================ 

 
Financial liabilities  
 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1,082,933 2,624,112

 -------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

 1,082,933 2,624,112
 ================================================= =========================================== 

 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise balances due from the Council 
and other debtors. 

 
 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade creditors, other 

creditors and accruals. 
 

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying value of its loans and 
receivables. 

 
 All of the Company’s financial liabilities are due for payment within one year. The 

Company manages the related liquidity risk through the preparation of profit and cash 
flow forecasts, regular monitoring of actual performance against these forecasts, and 
ensuring that adequate sources of finance are in place to meet the requirements of the 
business. 

 
 The Company does not have any financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value 

so has no significant exposure to market risk. 
 

The Company prepares reserves and cash flow forecasts, and regularly monitors 
actual performance against these forecasts in order to ensure that adequate sources of 
finance are in place to meet the requirements of the business. In order to maintain 
liquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future 
developments, the Company has access to group debt finance. 
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13.  PENSION COMMITMENTS  
 
(a) The assets and liabilities of the pension scheme at 31 March were: 
 
                                                                                   2021                                  2020 
         % of 

     scheme  
   assets      Value

        % of 
     scheme   
     assets        Value

          £                   £  
 

Equities 63.3% 27,058,000 58.5% 18,906,000
Bonds 7.4% 3,171,000 10.4% 3,349,000 
Properties 7.0% 3,014,000 9.0% 2,904,000
Cash 2.5% 1,077,000 4.2% 1,342,000 
Alternative assets 11.5% 4,916,000 11.5% 3,720,000
Other managed funds 8.3% 3,538,000 6.4% 2,077,000
 ------------------------- -------------------------
Total market value of assets 42,774,000  32,298,000
  
Present value of scheme liabilities (56,791,000) (41,109,000)
 

------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------

 
Net estimated pension liability (14,017,000) (8,811,000)
 

==========================================================  ========================================================== 
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13.  PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 
 The following information was received from the administering authority regarding the 

detail of the Fund’s assets as at 31 March 2021, representing the percentages of the 
total Fund held in each asset class (split by those that have a quoted market price in an 
active market, and those that do not). 

 
 Asset breakdown 
 
                                                                                                             31 March 2021                                     
                                                                                                 % Quoted             % Unquoted  
 
 Index Linked Government Securities 
 UK 2.5% - 
 
 Corporate Bonds 
 UK 4.9% - 
 
 Equities 
 UK 4.9% - 
 Overseas 53.7% - 
 
 Property 
 All 2.1% 5.0% 
 
 Others 
 Private equity - 4.7% 
 Infrastructure - 6.9% 
 Timber - 2.8% 
 Private debt - 1.7% 
 Other managed funds - 8.3% 
 Cash/temporary investments - 2.5% 
  _____ _____ 
 Total 68.1% 31.9% 
  ================================ ================================ 
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13.  PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 
(b)  Asset and liability reconciliation: 
 
      2021          2020
       £              £

Reconciliation of liabilities  
  
Liabilities at start of period 41,109,000 41,968,000
Service cost 1,969,000 1,944,000
Interest cost 963,000 1,002,000
Employee contributions 383,000 347,000 
Change in financial assumptions 14,209,00 (5,203,000)
Change in demographic assumptions (724,000) (488,000)
Settlements and curtailments 16,000 567,000 
Benefits paid (622,000) (858,000)
Experience loss on defined benefit obligation (512,000) 1,830,000 
 ---------------------- ---------------------- 
Liabilities at end of period - 56,791,000 41,109,000
 =================================================== ======================================================

   

 
(c) Return on scheme assets: 
 
 There was a positive return on scheme assets in 2020/21. This figure will vary year on 

year depending on the assumptions made and the underlying distribution of the fund’s 
assets which will vary during the year and as a result it is not appropriate to break down 
the return on assets across the different asset categories. Actual returns on scheme 
assets have been positive and amounted to £9,588,000 for the year to 31 March 2021. 

 

      2021          2020
        £                £

Reconciliation of assets  
  

Assets at start of period 32,298,000 33,303,000
Interest on assets 770,000 804,000
Return on assets less interest 8,818,000 (2,540,000)
Employer contributions 1,151,000 948,000
Employee contributions 383,000 347,000
Benefits paid (622,000) (858,000)
Administrative expenses (24,000) (10,000)
Other actuarial gains/(losses) - 304,000
 -------------------- --------------------
Assets at end of period 42,774,000 

=================================================== 
32,298,000
===================================================
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13.  PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 
(d)   A full actuarial valuation was carried out for the defined benefit scheme at 31 March 

2020 and updated to 31 March 2021 by Barnett Waddingham using the Projected unit 
method. The major assumptions used by the actuary were: 
       2021        2020
         %       %

 Major assumptions: 
Rate of increase in salaries 3.85 2.85
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 2.85 1.85
Discount rate 2.00 2.35
  

(e) Movement in deficit during the year: 
     2021        2020
       £            £  

At 1 April 2020 (8,811,000) (8,665,000) 
Current service cost (1,985,000) (2,511,000) 
Net interest cost  (193,000) (198,000) 
Actuarial gains/(losses)       (note 13(b)) (4,155,000) 1,625,000 
Employer contributions 1,151,000 948,000
Administrative costs  (24,000) (10,000)
          ----------------------------------------------------          ---------------------------------------------------- 

At 31 March 2021 (14,017,000) (8,811,000) 
 ============================================== ================================================

  
 The Council supports the annual pension contributions due from Colchester Borough 

Homes, including the back funding, through the management fee. 
  

Defined benefit pension disclosures are not on the same basis as the triennial actuarial 
review of the pension fund valuation and the two are for different purposes. These 
disclosures are a one-off assessment at the year-end for accounting disclosure 
purposes. The calculations required for disclosure under IFRSs are more prescriptive. At 
the current time they emphasise the liabilities and produce a net obligation on the 
statement of financial position that is higher than the triennial valuation position.  
 
While the figure is substantial it should be remembered that: 

 
• It is not an immediate deficit that has to be met now. The sum is the current 

assessment taking a long term view of the future liabilities both for existing 
pensioners and current employees who are accruing pension entitlement. 

 
• It is not a problem unique to Colchester Borough Homes or indeed ALMOs 

generally. There is a national problem for defined benefit pension funds both 
private and public sector. 

 
• The Essex County Council Pension Fund is regularly reviewed and additional 

contributions have already been initiated to address the problem over a period of 
years. 
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13.  PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 

(f) Analysis of the amount charged to the income and expenditure account:  
 

 2021          2020
       £             £ 

 
Current service cost 1,985,000 2,511,000 
Employer contributions (1,151,000) (948,000) 
Administration Costs  24,000 10,000 
          ------------------------------------------------            -------------------------------------------------

Adjustment to the income and expenditure account 858,000 1,573,000
   ========================================== ============================================ 

 
 Analysis of amounts charged to finance costs:  
 

    2021          2020
       £             £ 

 
Other finance costs: expected return on assets in 
the scheme 770,000 804,000 
Other finance costs: interest costs (963,000) (1,002,000) 
         ---------------------------------------------------            ---------------------------------------------------

Net cost (193,000) (198,000)
   ============================================ ============================================== 

  
During the year to 31 March 2021 the employer contribution rate was 20.2%. 

 
(g) Life assumptions: 
 

        2021 2020
Life expectancy:  

 
 Current pensioner aged 65  
  male 21.6 21.8
 female 23.4 23.7

 
 Future pensioner aged 65 in 20 years’ time  
  male 22.9 23.2
 female 24.7 25.2
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13.  PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 

(h) Sensitivity analysis 
  
                                                                                          £000s              £000s              £000s 
 
 Adjustment to discount rate +0.1% 0.0% -0.1% 
  
 Present value of total obligation 55,549 56,791 58,062 
 Projected service cost 3,082 3,188 3,298 
 
  
 Adjustment to long term salary increase +0.1% 0.0% -0.1% 
 
 Present value of total obligation 56,912 56,791 56,671 
 Projected service cost 3,190 3,188 3,187 
 
  
 Adjustment to pension increases and   
 deferred revaluation +0.1% 0.0% -0.1% 
 
 Present value of total obligation 57,929 56,791 55,678 
 Projected service cost 3,296 3,188 3,083 
 
 
 Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions +1 Year None -1 Year 
 
 Present value of total obligation 59,289 56,791 54,400 
 Projected service cost 3,333 3,188 3,049 
   
 
 The primary limitation of the above sensitivity analysis calculations is that each variable 

is considered individually, however in reality all variables are inter-related and therefore 
these calculations do not constitute a complete analysis. 
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

Ultimate controlling party  
 

 The Company is an Arms Length Management Organisation under the ultimate control 
of the Council, which is also the immediate parent undertaking. The members of the 
Council are considered to be the ultimate controlling parties.  

 
 Key management personnel received remuneration of £353,393 (2020 : £338,095). 

This included pension contributions of £52,924 (2020 : £37,778).  
 
         During the year, Colchester Borough Homes Limited received income of £14,183,640                      

(2020 : £15,812,103) from Colchester Borough Council for the Management Fee, 
Capital recharges and other services. During the year, Colchester Borough Homes 
Limited paid £458,292 (2020 : £317,950) to Colchester Borough Council for support 
services. 

 
         At the year end Colchester Borough Homes Limited was owed £2,062,920                      

(2020 : £2,648,605) by Colchester Borough Council. 
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The following pages do not form part of the statutory financial statements 
which are the subject of the independent auditor's report on pages 6 to 9. 
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  2021               2020     
                                                                                                £ £ £        
Revenue 
Management fee 9,940,180 9,895,222 
Capital fee 3,442,480 5,596,789 
Trading income 1,384,870 669,215 
Sundry income 35,345 410,318 
Other income 1,000,980 320,092 
 -------------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------ 
 15,803,855 16,891,636 
  
 
Operating costs (before defined  
benefit pension scheme adjustment) 
Employee costs 8,233,824  7,679,266
Premises costs 82,508  97,972
Other operating costs 1,272,698  1,096,305
Service delivery direct costs 5,412,172  7,874,621
 ------------------------------  -------------------------------------------------------- 

  15,001,202 16,748,164
  ------------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------- 

Operating surplus  802,653 143,472
Interest on management fee - 10,308

 -------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Surplus on ordinary activities 802,653 153,780
Defined benefit pension scheme 
staff cost adjustments (858,000) (1,573,000)
Defined benefit pension scheme 
interest adjustment (193,000) (198,000)

 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

Deficit on ordinary activities post 
defined benefit pension scheme 
adjustments and pre taxation (248,347) (1,617,220)

 ============================================== ============================================= 
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     £

 
      2021 
        £ 

 
   2020 

         £
Employee costs  
Salaries 5,782,787  5,548,674
Employers national insurance contributions 575,071 532,224
Staff pension contributions 1,156,620 880,264
 ---------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------

  7,514,478 6,961,162
Redundancy payments  36,843 103,379
Agency 280,500  327,872
Other staff costs 324,590  189,007
Recruitment 18,524  25,208
Training and seminars 58,889  72,638
 ----------------------------------------------------  ---------------------------------------------------- 

 719,346 718,104
 ------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------

  8,233,824 7,679,266
Defined benefit pension costs adjustment 858,000 1,573,000
  -------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------

 9,091,824 9,252,266
  ============================================ ============================================== 

Premises costs 
Rent 21,054  44,733
Utilities 14,094  11,832
Repairs and maintenance 24,993  18,152
Other premises costs 22,367  23,255
 -------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------

 82,508 97,972
 ============================================ ==============================================

Other operating costs 
Travel and subsistence  47,773 57,545
Telephone 82,561  88,449
Printing, postage and stationery 48,064  68,999
Publicity and marketing 35,436  32,381
IT and other equipment 105,475  52,557
Insurance 115,826  83,842
Catering 3,982  10,697
Support services 458,292  317,950
Internal auditors remuneration 34,851  23,219
Auditors remuneration 14,550  14,400
ISO audit -  3,333
Professional fees and consultants 47,730  50,235
Other expenses 13,152  19,198
Depreciation 243,417  246,870
Interest payable 18,774  23,951
Bank charges 2,815  2,679
 ---------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------

  1,272,698 1,096,305
 ============================================ ==============================================
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     £ 

 
  2021 

       £ 
 2020 

 £
Service delivery direct costs   
Sub-contractors 4,840,439  7,147,851
Materials 367,066  565,016
Vehicle expenses 59,125  85,538
Ex gratia payments 36,906  7,868
Grants 94,175  57,933
Other service delivery direct costs 14,461  10,415
 ---------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------

  5,412,172 7,874,621
 ============================================ ==============================================
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1.  Scope of Responsibility 
 
 Colchester Borough Homes (CBH), formed in October 2003, is the Arms-Length 

Management Organisation of Colchester Borough Council (CBC), responsible for the 
management and maintenance of the Council's homes and transferred general fund 
services. In 2020/21, these were primarily financed from the Council through a 
Management Fee of £9,940,000. This fee also includes professional fees to manage 
capital and revenue projects, Corporate Facilities management fee and CBH Revenue 
work costs. The capital projects costing £3,442,000 are paid directly by CBC.  

  
 There is a formally binding Management Agreement between the Council and CBH in 

place until August 2023, and a recently agreed extension of 5 years will extend the 
agreement until August 2028. This clearly sets out the governance arrangements that 
should apply between the two parties and complies with national best practice.   

 
 CBH is managed by a Board comprising at least three Council nominees, three residents, 

four independent members (increased from three in February 2021) and the Chief 
Executive.  The Memorandum and Articles of Association were revised and approved in 
2017, Colchester Borough Homes is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements 
for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, 
which includes arrangements for the management of risk. Three committees (increased 
from two in February 2021) report to the Board: Finance & Audit, Operations & 
Performance (new) and Governance & Remuneration.  Additionally, there is also a 
Residents Voice Panel. These all have formal, approved terms of reference, which are 
reviewed annually.   

   
2.  The Purpose of the Governance Framework 
 
 Good governance leads to good management, good performance, good stewardship, 

good public engagement and ultimately good outcomes for citizens and the service user.  
Good governance enables the Company to pursue its vision effectively, as well as 
underpinning that vision with mechanisms for control and management of risk.  

 
 The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by 

which the Company is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts 
to, engages with and serves the community. It enables the Company to monitor the 
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led 
to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.  

 
 The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 

manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable, not absolute, 
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing 
process, designed to: 

 
• identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Company’s policies, aims 

and objectives 

Colchester Borough Homes Board Meeting Page 160 of 235



COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED 
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE 
 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 
 

 

 
 - 40 - 

 

• to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they 
be realised 

• to manage them efficiently, effectively, and economically. 
 

 The governance framework has been in place at Colchester Borough Homes for the year 
ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of the financial statements of 
accounts. 

 
Colchester Borough Homes exercises control through: 

 
• Corporate governance arrangements outlined in the Memorandum & Articles of 

Association, the NHF Code of Governance (adopted in December 2020), and the 
Standing Financial Instructions. 

• The employment of suitably qualified and experienced staff to take responsibility 
for key areas of the business. This is supported by a formal annual appraisal 
system using ‘check-ins’ (monthly) and ‘Quarterlies’ through the MyContribution 
App (adopted in December 2020). Previously an annual appraisal system was 
used.  

• The preparation of forecasts and budgets that allow the committees and the 
executive officers to monitor the key business risks and financial objectives, and 
identify variances arising during the monthly reporting cycle. 

• Business planning based on a Strategic Plan, that sets out key actions to enable 
CBH to achieve its goals for the ensuing year, and the Medium Term Delivery 
Plan which is approved by CBC. This cascades through supporting Service Plans 
and individual performance appraisals (quarterlies). The key aims of the Strategic 
Delivery Plans are: 
 Customer Plan 

o To deliver services that reflects the needs and diversity of our 
customers 

o To make it easy for customers to do business with us 
o To improve Customer Satisfaction 

 
 Value for Money, Technology and Investment Plan 

o To invest money in a way that helps customers and communities 
o To use technology to do things better 
o To get the most for the money we spend 

 
 People Plan 

o To support our staff to do the best job possible 
o To make CBH a great place to work 
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 Business Development Plan 

o To protect services by looking after the future of the business 
o To bring in extra income to invest in our services 

 Leadership Plan 
o To show we can be trusted to do what we say we will 
o To be clear about our organisational goals and how to achieve 

them 
 

 Community Plan 
o To raise awareness of our work in the community 
o To bring together organisations and residents for the benefit of the 

community 

 
 The Executive Management and the Board carry out regular reviews of performance 

against objectives and targets detailed in the Strategic Plan. 
 
3.   Review of Effectiveness 
 
 Colchester Borough Homes conducts, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of 

its governance framework, including the system of internal control. The review of 
effectiveness is informed by the work of the Executive Directors and Corporate 
Management Team within the Company, who have responsibility for the development 
and maintenance of the governance environment. This is supported by the Internal 
Audit’s annual report, and by comments made by external auditors and other review 
agencies and inspectorates.  

 
 The company has produced a Strategic Plan, setting out the direction of the company 

until 2022.  This combined with the Medium Term Delivery Plan are the primary guiding 
documents for the Company. From these plans, Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and 
projects are produced. A performance and scrutiny framework is in place to review and 
monitor delivery against these. This is a combination of Board, corporate management, 
tenants and CBC scrutiny as well as benchmarking against other providers.  

   
 CBH’s internal arrangements for ensuring the effectiveness of its governance 

arrangements consist of: 
 

• The Board receiving quarterly progress reports on delivery of the Strategic 
plans and the Medium Term Delivery Plan. 

• The Governance & Remuneration Committee considering significant staffing 
matters. 

• The Finance & Audit Committee considering Internal Audit reports throughout 
the year, reviewing how well strategic risks are identified and managed, and 
monitoring financial performance against budgets.
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• The Finance & Audit Committee monitoring the regular review of key policies 
against an agreed policy review timetable. 

• The Residents Voice, consisting of involved residents and Resident Board 
Members, reviewing policies which affect services to Residents, influencing 
decisions about housing services, challenging and scrutinising performance 
and oversee the Community investment fund. 

• The Operations and Performance Committee reviewing and scrutinising the 
performance of the Strategic plans and the Medium Term Delivery Plan. 
Reviewing performance against the Business Development Plan and 
scrutinising new business opportunities.   Reviewing resident engagement, 
social value and complaints. 

• The monthly review and update of the Board and Committee work plan. 
 CBH will ensure that its arrangements to monitor the effectiveness of its governance 

arrangements remain in place and reflect best practice. 
 
 Internal Audit 
 
 Internal Audit is delivered through a contract with TIAA Ltd from 1st April 2020 for the next 

5 years.  
 
 The audit plan was delivered, with reports issued to senior managers at the conclusion of 

each audit highlighting internal control weaknesses identified and the actions required to 
address them. Recommendations were also reviewed to ensure they were implemented 
properly by the due date. Reports were presented to each Finance & Audit Committee of 
progress against the audit plan as well as the status of outstanding recommendations.   

 
 Internal Audit performance is subject to annual review by the external auditor of CBH in 

order that they can place reliance on its audit work. The Company provided the Council 
with the following assurance regarding the robustness of its governance arrangements 
during the year:  

 
• Internal Audit reports 

 
• Board and Committee Work Plan 

 
• The Annual Report, which incorporates the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report 

(including an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s systems of internal 
control)  
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 External Audit 
 
 External Audit of the annual financial statements is undertaken by Scrutton Bland LLP 

with a view to expressing an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).  

 
In carrying out the audit work, Scrutton Bland LLP will consider whether the financial 
statements are free from ‘material misstatement’. Materiality is an expression of the 
relative significance of a particular matter in the context of the financial statements as a 
whole. An item will normally be considered material if its omission would reasonably 
influence the decisions of those using the financial statements.   

  
Scrutton Bland LLP will issue a report to management at the conclusion of the audit work. 
This will include a management letter that will contain comments and recommendations 
for improvements in operations and internal control in respect of the Company. This will 
be discussed with management prior to the issue of the final report. The report will also 
include details of significant adjusted and unadjusted items that arise as a result of the 
audit work. 

 
The Finance & Audit Committee considers the external auditor’s report and recommends 
adoption of the financial statements to the Board. 
 

4.  Significant Governance Issues brought forward from 2019/20  
 

There were two significant governance issues reported and brought forward in 2019/20. 
 
• Procurement training, particularly for medium and low value transactions  

Audit of supply chain management was conducted in July 2018 with substantial 
assurance.  Following from this, team training took place and closer working with the 
CBC procurement team to provide greater efficiency and assurance. 

 
• Review and testing of the Business Continuity Plan 

This was tested in December 2019 through a communication tree exercise.  Further 
more the plan was put in place in March 2020 when the Covid-19 pandemic emerged. 

 
5.  Significant Governance Issues completed in 2020/21 
 

The significant governance issues raised in 2019/20 and actioned in 2020/21 were: 
 
• New Management Agreement 

This was consulted on and agreed to be extended until August 2028 by Cabinet on 
the 23rd November 2020. 

 
• Review, update and embed a new Risk Management Policy, Strategy and 

Framework 
The new policy was adopted in February 2020 following consultation and a Board 
Away day to establish the risk appetite and new framework. 

 
• Review and update the Business Continuity Plan 

This was consulted on in December 2020 and adopted in May 2021. 
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6. Significant Governance Issues to be addressed in 2021/22 

 
The following significant governance issues have been raised through the Board and 
Committee work plan to be completed in 2021/22.   
 
• Update of the Management Agreement and associated schedules in line with the 

action plan agreed at the time of extension. 
 
• Induction of new Board Members and briefings of new administration. 
 
• Development of a new strategic plan for April 2022 – March 2027 
 

Action Plan 
 

An action plan is set out below to address the governance issues that have been identified 
through the governance assurance process. Progress against this plan will be monitored by 
the Finance and Audit Committee and Board. 

 
 
Description 

 
Action 

 
Responsibility 

Target 
Completion 
Date 

Management 
Agreement 
Action Plan 

Ensure the CBH 
contribution is well 
planned, consulted on and 
that the overall plan 
remains on target 

DMT November 
2021 

New 
Administration 

Prepare and deliver 
briefings to new Portfolio 
Holders for Housing, 
Resources and 
Communities 

DMT and 
Chair 

July 2021 

Strategic Plan 
2022 - 2027 

Develop plan with Resident 
and stakeholder 
engagement through a 
dedicated working group. 

CEO and 
Chair 

November 
2021 

 
Through completing this action plan the Company is satisfied that it will have made the 
improvements that were identified in its review of effectiveness.  
 
Signed:                                                 
 (Chair of the Board) 
 
 
Signed:                                                 
 (Chair of the Finance & Audit Committee) 
 
 
Signed:                                                 
 (Director of Business Improvement) 
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Internal Audit Annual Report 

Introduction 

This is the 2020/21 Annual Report by TIAA on the internal control environment at 

Colchester Borough Homes .The annual internal audit report summaries the outcomes of 

the reviews we have carried out on the organisation’s framework of governance, risk 

management and control. This report is designed to assist the Board in making its annual 

governance statement. 

Limitations on our opinion arising from Covid-19  

The impact of COVID-19 on all public sector services has been significant including changes 

to ways of working, reprioritising services, redeploying staff and stretching capacity; the 

impact has been present throughout the whole of 2020/21 in varying degrees.  

For internal audit, it has raised the question of whether they have been able to undertake 

sufficient internal audit work to gain assurance during 2020/21. This is a key consideration 

to fulfil the requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) for the Head 

of Internal Audit (HIA) when issuing their annual opinion on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and 

control. This opinion is in turn one of the sources of assurance that the organisation relies 

on for its Annual Governance Statement. Factors that need to be taken in to account in 

reaching a conclusion include: 

• Has any reduction in coverage compared to what was planned resulted in 

insufficient assurance work? 

• Have any limitations in the scope of individual assignments resulted in it only 

being possible to place partial assurance on the outcome?  

• Have changes in ways of working led to gaps in the governance, risk management 

and control arrangements?  

TIAA understands the considerable challenges and the difficult decisions that 

organisations are having to deal with, however, the professional and regulatory 

expectations on public bodies to ensure that their internal audit arrangements conform 

with PSIAS have not changed. In this difficult situation, heads of internal audit will need 

to consider whether they can still issue the annual opinion or whether there will need to 

be a limitation of scope. 

A limitation of scope arises where the HIA is unable to draw on sufficient assurance to 

issue a complete annual opinion in accordance with the professional standards. This is an 

issue not only for the HIA but also for the leadership team and the audit committee who 

normally rely on that opinion. It may also have wider consequences for stakeholder 

assessments of the organisation. 

What this means for Colchester Borough Homes  

No impact on the delivery of planned work  

There has been minimal or no impact on the delivery of the internal audit work for 

2020/21 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. Whilst there was an impact on delivery of 

the work in the early part of the year during the initial lockdown, we are able to deliver 

the planned work by year-end (or shortly thereafter). There have been no changes to the 

planned work as a result of COVID-19; any changes to the plan were based on purely on 

business/operational need. 

 

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT’S ANNUAL OPINION  

TIAA is satisfied that, for the areas reviewed during the year, Colchester Borough 
Homes has reasonable and effective risk management, control and governance 
processes in place.  

This opinion is based solely on the matters that came to the attention of TIAA 
during the course of the internal audit reviews carried out during the year and 
is not an opinion on all elements of the risk management, control and 
governance processes or the ongoing financial viability or your ability to meet 
financial obligations which must be obtained by the Colchester Borough Homes 
from its various sources of assurance. 

Internal Audit Planned Coverage and Output 

The 2020/21 Annual Audit Plan approved by the Finance and Audit Committee was for 77 

days of internal audit coverage in the year. During the year there was no change to the 

Audit Plan.  

The planned work that has been carried out against the plan and the status of work not 

completed is set out at Annex A. 
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No extra work was carried out which was in addition to that set out in the Annual Audit 
Plan. 
 

Assurance 

TIAA carried out nine reviews, which were designed to ascertain the extent to which the 

internal controls in the system are adequate to ensure that activities and procedures are 

operating to achieve Colchester Borough Homes’ objectives. For each assurance review 

an assessment of the combined effectiveness of the controls in mitigating the key control 

risks was provided. Details of these are provided in Annex A and a summary is set out 

below. 

Assurance Assessments Number of Reviews Previous Year 

Substantial Assurance 4 N/A 

Reasonable Assurance 5 N/A 

Limited Assurance 0 N/A 

No Assurance 0 N/A 

The areas on which the assurance assessments have been provided can only provide 

reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss and their 

effectiveness is reduced if the internal audit recommendations made during the year have 

not been fully implemented. 

We made the following total number of recommendations on our audit work carried out 

in 2020/21.  

Urgent Important Routine 

0  7 12 
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Audit Summary 

Control weaknesses: There were no areas reviewed by internal audit where it was 

assessed that the effectiveness of some of the internal control arrangements provided 

‘limited' or 'no assurance’. 

Recommendations Made: We have analysed our findings/recommendations by risk area 

and these are summarised below. 

Risk Area Urgent Important Routine 

Directed 

Governance Framework 0 1 4 

Risk Mitigation 0 0 0 

Compliance 0 6 8 

Delivery 

Performance Monitoring 0 0 0 

Financial Constraint 0 0 0 

Resilience 0 0 0 

Operational Effectiveness Opportunities: One of the roles of internal audit is to add value 

and during the financial year we provided advice on opportunities to enhance the 

operational effectiveness of the areas reviewed and the number of these opportunities is 

summarised below. 

Operational 

4 

 

Independence and Objectivity of Internal Audit 

There were no limitations or restrictions placed on the internal audit service which 

impaired either the independence or objectivity of the service provided. 

Performance and Quality Assurance 

The following Performance Targets were used to measure the performance of internal 

audit in delivering the Annual Plan. 

Performance Measure Target Attained 

Completion of Planned Audits 100% 100% 

Audits Completed in Time Allocation 100% 100% 

Final report issued within 10 working days of receipt 
of responses 

  95% 95% 

Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards 

100% 100% 

Ongoing quality assurance work was carried out throughout the year and we continue to 

comply with ISO 9001:2015 standards. An independent external review was carried out 

of our compliance of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) in 2017 and in 

particular to meet the requirement of an independent 5 year review, the outcome 

confirmed full compliance with all the standards. Our work also complies with the IIA-UK 

Professional Standards and relevant guidance issued by the Accounts & Audit Regulations 

2015.  

Release of Report 

The table below sets out the history of this Annual Report. 

Date Report issued: May 2021 
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Annexes 

Annex A 
Actual against planned Internal Audit Work 2020/21 

System Type 
Planned 

Days 
Actual 
Days 

Assurance Assessment Comments 

Assurance Mapping  2 2 N/A  

Housing Needs, Homelessness Assurance 7 7 Substantial  

Responsive Repairs Assurance 5 5 Reasonable  

Statutory compliance – Gas Servicing, Fire Safety, Legionella, 

Electrical Safety, Asbestos Management, Building Compliance, 

Lifts 

Assurance 8 8 

Reasonable  

Management of Expenditure Assurance 6 6 Reasonable  

Corporate Governance & Business Continuity Assurance 5 5 Substantial  

Supply Chain Management Assurance 7 7 Reasonable  

Key Financial Systems Assurance 8 8 Reasonable  

Budgetary Control Assurance 5 5 Substantial  

Housing Rent Assurance 6 6 Substantial  

Northgate Finance Interface Assurance 5 0 N/A Days moved to (2021/22) 

Follow up  5 5 N/A  

Audit Management  8 8 N/A  

 Total Days 77 72   
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Appendix 1 

Business Case for the Use of Reserves 

Rowan House Refurbishment 
 

1 Background  
Short paragraph on the problem or opportunity the financial request relates to. 
Reasons why resource cannot be accommodated from current budget. 

 

 CBC are undertaking a major refurbishment of Rowan House centered initially 
around the installation of a new heating and ventilation system and LED lighting 
throughout the building.  Post Covid, Council staff have indicated a preference to 
work in the office less and a decision was made for all of CBC to reduce their 
office space requirement to a 1:4 ratio (Desks:Staff) and consolidate onto the 2nd 
floor.  CBH and Peabody remain on the first floor; and the ground floor (previously 
CBC) will be leased to Essex County Council Children’s Services.  This will 
generate income for CBC and the mechanical and electrical works will reduce 
their carbon footprint, part of their carbon reduction management plan. 
 
In a recent CBH staff survey we received a similar message with 80% of office 
based staff expecting to use the office once a week or as and when required.  We 
have also identified, through Covid, the need for hybrid meeting rooms, allowing 
meetings to be attended both in person and virtually.  The need for soundproof 
meeting rooms to allow for 121’s, Teams meetings and speaking virtually to 
Tenants to be private and not disrupt other staff working in the office .  We have 
also identified the need for a training room and collaboration space for agile 
working. 
 
As a landlord, the Council are liable for the cost of the new heating and ventilation 
system, LED lighting and any communal area improvements.  This work will 
require CBH to redecorate its office space and creates the opportunity to 
modernise its office space for a post-covid working environment. 
 
There is no budget provision for office improvements and the previous work which 
took place in 2016/17 was funded through Reserves.  Doing the work now, using 
the same contractor as the Council, will offer savings through economies of scale. 
 

 

2 Proposal  
Clearly define what you require including the costs and timeframes. How will the 
requested budget be spent? Is procurement required? What is the scope and 
outcome of your proposal? 

 

 A project team has been established with myself as the project sponsor.  The 
request is to utilise up to £150,000 of reserves to design, specify and implement 
the improvements.  We have approached a space planning consultant who is 
working on the CBC project and commissioned a measured survey of the office 
space at a cost of £6,400.  The remaining costs will be spent designing the new 
office space, writing a specification for the CBC tender, a contribution towards 
project management costs (Amphora Homes are managing the works) and for 
new furniture where required (desks and chairs in good condition will be reused. 
 
The project specification is required by Amphora Homes Project manager by the 
31st August 2021 which the tender to go out in September.  A contractor is 
expected to be on site in November / December with the work taking 6 months. 
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The budget will be managed by the CBH Accommodation Review group, 
providing updates back to this group at each meeting. 
 
The procurement will be a Design & Build tender package, managed by CBC 
(Amphora Homes) as the primary employers. 
 

3 Benefits 
List the strategic plan(s) and the action and/or KPI that will be addressed if the 
proposal is successful.  Is there a return on investment? 

 

 Whilst this use of reserves will be a one-off cost, it is expected to enhance the 
office working environment and provide better productivity of our staff.  The 
benefits address objectives indirectly in both the People and Customer Plan. 
 

 

4 Risk of not doing 
If the proposal is not granted, what is the effect on the organisations strategic plan 
and associated KPI? 

 

 Not doing the improvements will result in an office which will not cater for all CBH 
staff post covid.  We will be unable to use technology to our advantage. 
 
 

 

5 Supporting comments 
Only complete if additional information for the Committee is required. 

 

 The project will look at all CBH office accommodation across the Borough, 
however the majority of cost and effort will be directed to Rowan house which is 
the primary CBH office space. 
 
The project will span the 2021/22 and 2022/23 financial years so if approved, the 
£150k will be ring-fenced in reserves. 
 

 

6 Approval 
DMT approval.  Link to F&A decision (minutes) and note monitoring criteria and 
future update requirements to F&A.   

 

  Completed Date  

 DMT Approval ✓ 07.07.2021  

 F&A Approval    

 Process completed and authorised 
release of funds 

   

 Director of Business Improvement 
Signature 

   

  
 
 

                                                             Matt Armstrong 

 

  
 
 

 

 

Colchester Borough Homes Board Meeting Page 172 of 235



 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES  

F&A Committee Meeting 

14th July 2020 – Via Teams 

 

 
Report Title  0007iv.  5 Year Business Plan Final Draft 

Author Cong Gu – Head of Finance 
cong.gu@cbhomes.org.uk 
 

Report Objective: To Approve the 5 year business plan and sensitivity analysis. 

Matters to 
note/Exception 
Highlights 

The business plan shows the organisation is not financially sustainable from 
2025/26 (year 5) onwards.  The Management Agreement action plan identifies the 
requirement to discuss the mechanisms and level of the Management Fee from 
April 2023.  Budget setting for 2022/23 is due by November 2021. 

Sensitivity Commercial  Action Assurance  

Confidential  Noting  

Open ✓ Approval ✓ 

 

  Recommendations 
  The Committee is asked to: 
 

i. APPROVE the revised 5-year business plan. 

 

Executive Summary 

 
This business plan is our core strategic document and sets out how we will deliver our 
organisational objectives over the next 5 years.  It is primarily an internal document, reviewed 
quarterly and updated and approved annually by the Finance and Audit Committee. The plan is 
updated annually based on current year budgets and foreseeable and anticipated changes. 
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Implications:  
 

Strategic Plan  The 5 year business plan is key in the delivery of the strategic plans, providing a 
costed plan to ensure targets are met and services are delivered. 

Regulatory/Legal 
 

No Legal implications arise from matters included in this report. 

Financial/Budgetary The report shows an increasing budget deficit over the 5 year plan which will 
impact the level of reserves.   

Health & Safety 
No Health and Safety implications arise from matters included in this report. 

Risk Assessment  A number of scenarios are identified and modelled within the report which 
represent a number of risks identified in the strategic risk register. 

Human Resources No HR implications arise from matters included in this report. 

Equality and 
Diversity  

No Equality and Diversity implications arise from matters included in this report. 

Value for Money The report shows how services can be continually delivered year on year and are 
able to meet the targets set within the organisations strategic delivery plans.  A 
saving of £100k has also been modelled to be realised from 2022/23 in respect of 
efficiencies from the implementation of the new Housing Management System. 
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1. Introduction  
 
The purpose of the business plan is to:  
  

• help us to understand the opportunities and threats in our operating environment as well as 
our own internal strengths and weaknesses;   

• clarify our strategic objectives and priorities and set out the key actions we will take in order 
to deliver these objectives;  

• confirm that we have the resources necessary to carry out these actions and help us to 
identify and mitigate any risks we face in delivering these actions; and  

• provide a strategic overview for our other strategies and plans (e.g. the six plans and Medium 
Term Delivery Plan) and a framework with which we can monitor our progress and measure 
our success.   
 

The business plan is closely linked with the asset management strategy, HRA Business Plan and 
risk management strategy.  
 
These planning tools interact in a complex way and any changes in one could have a significant 
impact on the other. In order to maintain confidence in the robustness of the business plan we will 
be required to continuously review the plan.   

 
 

2. 5  Year Business Plan 
 
Overview of the Base Plan 
 
The purpose of the 5 Year Business Plan (The Plan) is to provide the management and the Board 
with a strategic view of the organisation’s financial health and challenges expected over the next 5 
years and sets out the organisation’s mitigation strategy. 
 
Over the 5 years, CBH is forecast to exhaust its existing reserves by end of 2025/26 to fund both 
pension and GF activities deficits. It is evident that CBH needs to either find massive efficiency 
savings in its current operations or to seek additional funds to bridge this gap and to build up 
sufficient reserve level. 
 
It is difficult to ascertain whether sufficient efficiencies could be realised without adversely impacting 
meeting targets set out in the Medium-Term Delivery Plan; alternatively, seeking additional funds 
by attracting more services from CBC seems more preferable.   
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Due to the uncertainty of future projects from CBC and to build up resilience in the Design and 
Construction Management (DCM) section and ensure CBH has sufficient funds to fund the pension 
deficit in anticipation of the tri-annual review, a £100k per annum for DCM and future forecast 
pension deficit have been ringfenced and separated from the free reserve. 
 
Over the course of 5 years, the free reserve will be exhausted with a deficit of £270k and will have 
used the DCM and pension ringfenced funds to keep its current level of operational activities.  
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Income Streams: 
 

The majority of CBH’s income is from CBC in the matter of Management fee and Design and 
Construction Management team income. Additionally, CBH also receives grants from CBC to run 
homelessness related projects. In the plan, it is expected the current grant funding for these projects 
will continue at current levels. 
 
The Capital fee is reimbursed on an actual basis. 
 
Furthermore, Gosbecks Office will be handed back to CBC from 1st April 2022, therefore, a 
reduction of £70k each year in Management Fee is expected from 2022/23. 
 
In additional to existing Management Fee, it is assumed that CBC will fund the full pension deficit 
in year 1, 50% in year 2 and 0% in year 3 for each pension tri-annual review, 
 
For Design and Construction Management team income, the forecast income for the next 5 years 
is assumed to be 150% of their costs. 
 
 

 
 
Expenditure: 
 
As over 50% of CBH’s expenditure is staff costs, the cost base is relatively stable.  
 
In view of the closure of Gosbecks’ office, we have reduced office rental expenditure by £100k each 
year from 2022/23 (£70k in rental and £30k in running costs).  
 
Homelessness projects relating to Rough Sleeper Initiative and the Outreach team, Private Rented 
Sector and New Burdens fund are assumed to continue at current level although the funding is 
confirmed annually. 

18,737k

18,554k

18,488k

18,285k

18,309k2021/22 Budget

2022/23 Plan

2023/24 Plan

2024/25 Plan

2025/26 Plan

Income At A Glance

Management Fee Capital Fee Design and Construction Income Other Income
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We have allocated £100k to ensure strategic targets achieved in each year savings realised through 
the introduction of the Northgate Housing System from 2022/23. 
 

 
 
Key Financial Assumptions 
 
This business plan is based on the revised 2020/21 budget with internal recharges removed. 
 
Assumptions for the 5-year plan 
 

 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 

RPI 1% 1% 2% 3% 

Pay award 1% 1% 2% 3% 

Management Fee 
Increase 

1% 1% 2% 3% 

SLAs with CBC Remain constant as 21/22 

Pension Deficiency 200k 300k 300k 300k 

CBC to fund Pension 
Deficiency 

0 (300)k (150)k 0 

Salary Increment 30k 30k 30k 30k 

Design and Construction 
Mgt Team Income 

(470)k (489)k (498)k (512)k 

NPS savings 0k (100)k (100)k (100)k 

Mitigation of risks 50k 50k 50k 50k 

Delivery of Strategic Plan 50k 50k 50k 50k 

 
Other Assumptions: 
 

- Management fee does not fund annual salary increment. 

- Repairs and voids at BAU level 
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- Gosbecks office closure from 31st March 2022 

- Pension deficiency: CBC to fund 100% first year, 50% 2nd year and 0% 3rd year following tri-

annual review 

- New initiatives from CBC are deemed to be cost neutral, no impact on surplus/deficit 

- Capital Fees from CBC is on actual basis 

Not included in the assumptions: 
 

- Brexit effect on supply chain 

- Covid-19 further implications 

- Restructure costs 

 

Risks to the Business Plan  

 

The organisation maintains a risk register for each of the six delivery plans and one for the Medium-

Term Delivery Plan.  Strategic risks will be identified and reported to Board whilst the Finance & 

Audit Committee will scrutinise the strategic risks at every meeting and the operational risks every 

6 months.   

 

There is an uncertainty around the Design and Construction Management Team activity achieving 

the forecasted surplus to fund the shortfall in the General Fund income. As the majority of the 

projects we deliver are for CBC, we are dependent on them to have sufficient projects to cover fixed 

staff costs for the section; furthermore, the income recognition might be dependent on 3 rd party 

valuations which may cause a delay. 

 

The pension tri-annual review gives CBH relatively short time to deal with the result which is mainly 

a short fall in pension reserve. The next tri-annual review is due soon and it is anticipated that the 

deficit is to increase. 

 

Unable to realise efficiencies following the implementation of the new Housing Management 

System, by staff not buying into the new processes and fully utilising the functionality of the system. 

 

Unable to fund staff increments. It is expected that this expense to be funded through appointing 

newly recruited staff at a lower spinal points, however, in recent years, it is more and more difficult 

to recruit quality staff at the bottom spectrum of the grade. 
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Sensitivity Analysis 

 

During the April 2021 F&A committee meeting, 3 business plan scenarios were approved and have 

been worked through as follows: 

  

Scenario 1: Brexit impact on supply chain 
 
Building materials and sub contractor costs up by 5% (higher than inflation) for the next 5 years as 
per BCIS prediction. CBC funded the 2021/22 above the inflation increase. 
 
This would have limited impact on Capital works as CBC reimburses CBH on actual basis. The 
biggest impact would be on Repairs and Voids, this worsens CBH’s financial position by £427k. 
Here are the impacts on surplus and reserves: 
 
 

 
Impact on Deficit and reserves: 
 

 
 
 
  

Impact on Surplus 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

Base Plan Surplus (94.94) (33.56) (209.43) (327.46) (433.09)

Increase due to Brexit impact 0.00 (44.01) (92.00) (130.00) (161.00)

Other base plan increase 0.00 (17.00) (33.54) (51.73) (68.17)

Brexit Scenario Surplus/Deficit (94.94) (94.57) (334.97) (509.19) (662.26)

Impact on Free Reserve 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

Reserve balance brought forward 1,819.00 1,724.06 1,629.48 1,294.52 785.32

Outturn for current year (94.94) (94.57) (334.97) (509.19) (662.26)

Forecast Reserve balance c/forward 1,724.06 1,629.48 1,294.52 785.32 123.06

Analysis of reserves

Repairs and other provisions 446.00 443.00 443.00 443.00 443.00

Pension deficit 200.00 450.00 450.00 300.00 450.00

Design and Construction provision 100.00 100.00 100.00 42.32 0.00

Provision for RH Refurbishment 150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Free Reserve 828.06 636.48 301.52 0.00 (769.94)

Total 1,724.06 1,629.48 1,294.52 785.32 123.06
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Scenario 2: Design and Construction Management Team Income reduction of 10% from 
forecast amounts 
 

DCM Team is supposed to generate income to cover its own costs and bridge the GF funding gap. 
However, 99% of income generated is from CBC and the income/projects are not guaranteed but 
agreed year on year. Here we model the impact if DCM income goes down by 10% each year, this 
worsens CBH financial position and CBH will have to use the £100k DCM provision and leaves a 
deficit in the free reserve. 
 
CBH has a Business Development Plan and draws monthly Management Accounts to monitor the 
income trend and expenditure. If there is a downward trajectory, preparation must be underway 
well in advance to reduce the fixed costs or finding ways to maintain income level.   
 
Impact on Deficit and Reserves: 
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Scenario 3: Pent-up Demands on Revenue Repairs 
The costs of carrying out revenue repairs is embedded in the management fee and the risk is on 
CBH if there is overspend. During most of the financial year 2020/21, only emergency repairs were 
carried out and there was significant underspend in repairs, which were returned to CBC as CBH 
has reached maximum of £300k repairs provision.  
We expect the pent-up demands will add an additional £50k to cover staff overtime and materials 
from 2021/22 for 3 years. This will result in a reduction in the Repairs provision and a reverse impact 

Impact on Surplus 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

Base Plan Surplus (94.94) (33.56) (209.43) (327.46) (433.09)

Reduction in DCM  income 0.00 (46.95) (48.93) (49.80) (51.16)

DCM Inc Reduction Scenario Surplus/Deficit (94.94) (80.51) (258.36) (377.26) (484.26)

Impact on Free Reserve 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

Reserve balance brought forward 1,819.00 1,724.06 1,643.54 1,385.19 1,007.93

Outturn for current year (94.94) (80.51) (258.36) (377.26) (484.26)

Forecast Reserve balance c/forward 1,724.06 1,643.54 1,385.19 1,007.93 523.67

Analysis of reserves

Repairs and other provisions 446.00 443.00 443.00 443.00 443.00

Pension deficit 200.00 450.00 450.00 300.00 450.00

Design and Construction provision 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 0.00

Provision for RH Refurbishment 150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Free Reserve 828.06 650.54 392.19 164.93 (369.33)

Total 1,724.06 1,643.54 1,385.19 1,007.93 523.67
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on CBH’s cashflow. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices: 
 

• Appendix 1: 5- Year Business Plan Profit and Loss 

• Appendix 2: 5- Year Business Plan Reserves 
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Appendix 1: 5 Year Business Plan 

 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

 Budget Plan Plan Plan Plan

Income

Management Fee 9,953.33 9,987.86 10,387.74 10,431.59 10,574.08

Capital Fee 7,016.00 7,016.00 7,016.00 7,016.00 7,016.00

Other CBC Income 741.42 712.25 492.35 505.34 530.34

Design and Construction Income 526.99 497.28 517.11 525.78 539.44

Interest & sundry income 71.21 71.81 74.60 75.76 77.60

Total Income 18,308.95 18,285.21 18,487.79 18,554.47 18,737.47

Expenses by Department

Operations Departments

Housing management 78.72 79.47 82.90 84.35 86.63

Tenancy management 730.44 737.28 768.28 781.42 802.17

ASB 220.80 222.93 231.54 235.67 242.17

Community caretakers 174.32 176.01 183.26 186.51 191.63

Older people services 597.64 601.57 626.26 636.43 652.50

Housing Options 945.77 954.21 992.85 1,009.06 1,034.66

Leasehold management 66.75 67.42 70.48 71.75 73.77

Other Housing Services 438.36 442.40 461.10 468.84 481.07

Revenue works 2,425.53 2,446.41 2,493.07 2,534.79 2,599.31

PS Professional fees & Ohd 931.40 842.27 878.84 891.66 910.63

Health and safety 162.21 163.78 169.26 172.34 177.14

Corp facilities 511.25 516.26 537.87 547.53 562.75

Engineering team 169.99 171.11 176.03 178.18 181.56

Total Operations 7,453.18 7,421.12 7,671.73 7,798.54 7,996.01

Overheads 

Chief Executive & PA support 510.84 505.03 527.51 537.01 551.99

Finance 353.79 357.26 371.88 378.58 389.13

Company overhead 679.78 708.65 710.42 712.81 716.49

ICT and Business Intelligence 681.46 687.17 713.01 723.99 741.33

HR & Governance 353.63 356.50 368.94 374.48 383.19

Total Overheads 2,579.50 2,614.62 2,691.76 2,726.87 2,782.13

Capital Works 

Asset Management 851.68 859.84 896.66 912.33 937.07

Capital Expenditure 7,016.00 7,016.00 7,016.00 7,016.00 7,016.00

Total Capital Works 7,867.68 7,875.84 7,912.66 7,928.33 7,953.07

Design and Construction Management

Major Projects 379.23 382.89 396.77 403.89 415.05

Minor Projects 24.30 24.30 24.30 24.30 24.30

Total  Design and Construction 

Management 403.53 407.19 421.07 428.19 439.35

NPS savings (100.00) (100.00) (100.00) (100.00)

Mitigation of risks 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00

Delivery of MTDP 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00

Total Expenditure 18,403.89 18,318.77 18,697.22 18,881.93 19,170.56

Gross Surplus / (Deficit) (94.94) (33.56) (209.43) (327.46) (433.09)
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Appendix 2: 5 Year Plan Reserves Positions 
 
 
 

 
 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

Reserve balance brought forward 1,819.00 1,724.06 1,690.49 1,481.06 1,153.60

Outturn for current year (94.94) (33.56) (209.43) (327.46) (433.09)

Forecast Reserve balance c/forward 1,724.06 1,690.49 1,481.06 1,153.60 720.51

Analysis of reserves

Repairs and other provisions 446.00 443.00 443.00 443.00 443.00

Pension deficit 200.00 450.00 450.00 300.00 450.00

Design and Construction provision 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Provision for RH Refurbishment 150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Free Reserve 828.06 697.49 488.06 310.60 (272.49)

Total 1,724.06 1,690.49 1,481.06 1,153.60 720.51
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11. Social Housing White Paper Update -
Karen Loweman
To Note



 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

Wednesday 28 July 2021  

 
Report Title   0011 Social Housing White Paper Update 

Author Karen Loweman, Director of Operations 
  

Report Objective: 
To provide the Board with an update on the work to date to review the 
Social Housing White paper 

Includes joint work with CBC and progress/gap analysis with reference to 
responsibilities under the Code of Governance 

Matters to note: Progress toward implementation of the requirements of the Social 
Housing White paper 

 
 
 
Link to Consumer 
Standard 
objective 

Tenant involvement and empowerment ☒ 

Home ☒ 

Tenancy ☒ 

Neighbourhood and community ☒ 

Sensitivity Commercial  Action Assurance  
Confidential  Noting ✓ 

Open ✓ Approval  

 
The Board is asked to: 
 
i. NOTE the progress on the work done to date with CBC, gap analysis and responsibilities 

under the Code of Governance 
 
Executive summary 
 
The Social Housing White Paper1 and “The charter for social housing residents”2 were published 
on 17 November 2020, following the Governments Green paper (“A new deal for social housing”). 
Green papers are consultation documents, and White papers are statement of policy intent that 
will require legislation.  Some of the White paper proposals require primary legislation before they 
can be implemented, the Queens speech 2021 did not include a Social Housing Bill and the 
government state that they will “look to legislate as soon as practicable” however this may take 
several years.  
 

 
1 The charter for social housing residents: social housing white paper - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
2 The charter for social housing residents: social housing white paper (publishing.service.gov.uk) 
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The Social housing white paper sets out priorities to ensure that social housing residents live in a 
safe home and sets out commitments that residents should expect from their landlord: 
 

1. To be safe in your home 
2. To know how your landlord is performing, including on repairs, complaints and safety, and 

how it spends its money 
3. To have your complaints dealt with promptly and fairly, with access to a strong 

Ombudsman 
4. To be treated with respect, backed by a strong consumer regulator and improved 

consumer standards for tenants 
5. To have your voice heard by your landlord 
6. To have a good quality home and neighbourhood to live in, with your landlord keeping your 

home in good repair 
7. The government will ensure social housing can support people to take their first step to 

ownership 
 
To prepare for the changes, we have developed an action plan which is based on a self-
assessment check list provided by the Housing Quality Network.  The work to progress the 
recommendations is undertaken in partnership with the Council to approve any required changed 
to key documents and budgets.   
 
We will be engaging with our residents throughout the process to better understand their views 
and to help us to deliver services that are accessible and transparent. 
 
The action plan will be updated regularly and provided to the Board through progress reports.   
 

Implications:  
 

Regulatory/Legal 
 

The charter for social housing residents: social housing white paper - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk) 
Decent Homes Standard: review - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
Draft Building Safety Bill - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

 
Financial/Budgetary Budgets are to be considered for any new requirements from the Social 

Housing White paper 
Health & Safety 

Health, Safety & compliance are a key feature of the legislation and we 
are considering how to best improve our management and reporting of 
compliance in the future 

Risk Assessment  Regulation and service failure is noted as a Strategic risk 

Human Resources Changes to current roles and potential new roles required to implement  

Equality and 
Diversity  

The Social Housing white paper will affect all of our residents 
Our engagement process will include consultation and focus groups to 
listen and understand the impact on our residents  

Value for Money This will be a legal requirement, delivered to achieve value for money 
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Environmental and 
Sustainability  

The Council has declared a Climate Emergency and has committed to 
being carbon neutral by 2030 – this will be encompassed as the Social 
Housing White paper actions are developed 

 
Social Housing white paper update 
 

 
1. Highlights of actions complete to date: 

 
1.1 The self-assessment document has been complete and reviewed with the Councils 

Client Officer, Geoff Beales.  The Social Housing White paper (SHWP) Action plan will 
be included in liaison meetings between CBH and CBC to monitor progress and agree 
key decisions  
 

1.2 The action plan has been ranked Red, Amber and Green to track progress the following 
highlights areas which are complete: 
 

• Senior Officers attended the National Federation of ALMOs and CWAG 
(Councils with ALMO’s group) seminar on Building safety 

• Our Compliance dashboard is being further developed along with software 
solutions for more timely and accurate reporting 

• A review of Fire safety has been complete for blocks and sheltered housing, 
engaging with residents and now providing online fire plans, individual Fire 
personal evacuation plans with easy-to-understand copy to residents, and safety 
posters displayed in blocks. 

• This year’s Annual report to residents has been developed to assist with 
evidencing compliance with Consumer standards 

• The requirement for a responsible Building Safety manager is to be developed in 
house through training and development 

• The new Asset management strategy is in progress, has consulted with 
residents and will support actions required for the SHWP 

 
2. Areas which require further consideration/approval/consultation: 

 
2.1 There are several key decisions that will require approval and notification through the 

Management agreement including:   
 

• We will recommend to the Council that they confirm key roles and responsibilities 
to be accountable for Building Safety and delegate responsibility for compliance 
with Consumer standards to CBH 

• A protocol needs to be in place with the Council who will report any breaches of 
Regulatory standards, following notification to our Chief Executive and Board 
members 

• Currently only properties with solid fuel heating or considered high risk (due to 
boiler location) have a carbon monoxide detector/alarm.  We will review this and 
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make a recommendation along with review of smoke detector installation and 
testing 

• We need to develop our Resident engagement action plan to include more 
consultation with residents to help them take responsibility and understand 
safety of their homes, and engage residents in developing and reporting tenant 
satisfaction measures 

• We will follow guidance from the Chartered Institute of Housing to assess 
standards of staff professionalism 

 
2.2  
 APPENDIX 
 The following document is appended to this report: - 

 
• Appendix 1 – Social Housing White paper self assessment 
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CBH Social Housing White Paper Action Plan 

 
The Government launched the Social Housing White Paper in November 2020. CBH has welcomed the paper and the ambition it sets out, 

including “a commitment to raise standards, increase transparency, give social housing tenants a voice and ensure that it is listened to.” 
 

You can find the White Paper here.  In addition, there are several particularly good summary documents, including “at a glance” briefing by 
Trowers and Hamlin and  The charter for social housing residents 

 

The seven chapters of the White Paper are demonstrated below: 
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Our self-assessment against requirements is set out below: 

 
REQUIREMENT ACTIONS PROPOSED – or evidence if 

complete 

BY 

WHOM 

BY 

WHEN 

RAG 

CHAPTER 1 – TO BE SAFE IN YOUR HOME  

Do you understand the implications of the Building Safety Bill? Yes – Self assessment tool complete and 

development in place to agree compliance with 

CBC 

  A 

Have you been briefed on the emerging best practice from the 

Social Sector (Building Safety) Engagement Best Practice Group? 

Yes – KL (Karen Loweman) and GB attended 

NFA (National Federation of ALMO) Building 

Safety seminar, and we are receiving updated 

from NFA Engagement group.  

CBH resident on national residents building 

Safety panel (Ray) 

 

 

  A 

 

 

Have you consulted with residents regarding your proposed 

changes and the ways in which the residents, particularly in 

high- rise buildings, can help ensure safer homes? 

Resident feedback session held by KB (Kirk 

Braker) and DB regarding building safety (date: 

xxx).  

Sheltered resident engagement sessions in 

partnership with Fire service 

These will need to be ongoing 

  A 

Have you reviewed the Fire Safety Bill? Does your Board or 

Committee and Executive understand the implications for 

your organisation and residents? 
 

Have you scoped and commenced the implementation of a Fire 

Safety Action plan? 

Yes, although need to check and implement Fire 

Safety Action Plan.  Roles and Responsibilities 

which contribute towards plan. 

Policy and Fire Safety Action Plan in place 

  A 

Consider – who will perform the role of Accountable Person 
and Building Safety Manager(s). Have you put training in place 

to support those roles? 

This will be a new role in CBH. Proposal and job 

spec being developed.  The role will cover fire 

and asbestos named person.  Quals – Level 6 

building safety diploma.  CBC Accountable role 

 

 

 

  A 
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Have you scoped the range of information likely to be required 

by the HSE/Building Safety Regulator and the Regulator of 

Social Housing and started assembling that information? 

Yes – draft dashboard for compliance in place.  

Compliance monitoring and data verification 

currently under consideration 

  A 

 

  

Colchester Borough Homes Board Meeting Page 193 of 235



 

4 
 

REQUIREMENT ACTIONS PROPOSED – or evidence if 

complete 

BY 

WHOM 

BY 

WHEN 

RAG 

Do you know what percentage of your homes have 

suitable smoke and carbon monoxide alarms? 

Smoke Yes  

CO2 No – to be agreed with CBC  

(Confirmation from Mears required on smoke 

alarm testing and how robust the process is) 

  A 

Do you need an Action Plan to fit and replace smoke and 

carbon monoxide alarms? 

Yes – note smoke alarm contract included within 

Gas servicing (Mears) 

  R 

Have you put in place a robust and complete electrical testing 

regime? Can you provide evidence that the regime is 

successful? 

Yes – monitoring via compliance dashboard 

Hard to access property programme being 

recruited to 

  A 

NOTE – the electrical installation in a domestic tenanted 

property should be inspected and tested at least every 5 years, 

and at change of occupancy (including voids and mutual 

exchanges).  

This frequency should be increased if risk levels are deemed to 

be higher (see the work of the Social Housing ESR). 

Inspection process moving from 10 year to 5-

year programme along with associated remedial 

works 

  A 

Have you consulted with residents on your approach to 

communication on safety matters and how residents can 

contribute to help keep themselves and their neighbours 

safe? 

Yes  

Considering a N&V special on safety.  Use of 

email and texts along with posters in blocks and 

letters 

 

  A 
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Can you demonstrate timely and open communication to 

residents on safety issues (annually, at first let etc.)? 

In part: 

Notices in Communal areas 

Personal safety plans to individual residents in 

Sheltered housing 

News and Views  

To do:  Home Safety booklet for tenants 

  A 
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REQUIREMENT ACTIONS PROPOSED – or evidence if 

no action proposed 

BY 

WHOM 

BY 

WHEN 

RAG 

CHAPTER 2 – TO KNOW HOW YOUR LANDLORD IS PERFORMING  

Have you consulted with your residents regarding the 

satisfaction measures described in the White Paper (Section 18) 

for instance tenant satisfaction with the health and safety of 

their home, fairness and respect in complaints handling 

satisfaction and satisfaction with communal spaces? 
 

Do you need, as an outcome of your consultation, to widen 

your proposed satisfaction measures? 
 

Do your proposed measures include both objective 

quantitative measures and tenant perception measures? 

No. Require to do some consultation around 

measures.  

TPAS consultation with residents undertaken as 

part of Management agreement review (June 

2020) 

 

 

Customer 

Experience 

team 

 R 

Can you report transparently on the Financial Measures set out in 

Section 19 of the White Paper? 

    

Do you know how well you are performing by way of surveys, 

focus groups and social media comments across  the 

RSH’s draft satisfaction measures against which you will be 

expected to report? 

In part – STAR survey will include some 

feedback 

Wider consultation required 

  A 

If your organisation is a “housing association”/PRP 

have you considered and consulted with residents and 

stakeholders regarding how they will access information? 
 

Do you know your resident’s expectations in terms of 

information being made available, timescales for responses etc.? 

Do you need to develop service standards in response to those 

expectations? 

As above    
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REQUIREMENT ACTIONS PROPOSED – or evidence if 

no action proposed 

BY 

WHOM 

BY 

WHEN 

RAG 

Have you considered any GDPR or other privacy impacts? 

For instance, how to protect commercial confidentiality in 

tenders? 

YES - PIA’s done in relation to GDPR.  

Need to consider the web accessibility  

Tenders?? 

  A 

Have you consulted regarding the review process in the event 

the resident/stakeholder considers that information is being 

unreasonably withheld? 

Yes – process in place   G 

Have you consulted with residents regarding the way in which 

you will make information about spending in readily 

understandable and readily accessible formats? 

Annual report has focus group before to ensure 

easy to understand information. 

Web site development – resident panel review  

 

Strategic 

 plan – easy to understand. 

  A 

Have you identified a Responsible Person (at a “suitably 

senior” level – S26 of the WP) who is responsible for ensuring 

compliance with the consumer standards set by the Regulator of 

Social Housing? 

No – decision to made by CEO/CBC   R 

Have you communicated changes in your approach to residents 

(complaints processes, neighbourhood safety, funding reports 

etc.) as soon as those changes are introduced and put reporting 

systems in place? 

Ongoing   A 

Can you show a track record of using resident feedback to 

drive service improvement and of reporting successes? 

Yes.  Residents Voice. Resident focus groups to 

help understand residents view prior to service 

changes – e.g.: Home Safety 

  G 
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REQUIREMENT ACTIONS PROPOSED – or evidence if 

no action proposed 

BY 

WHOM 

BY 

WHEN 

RAG 

CHAPTER 3 – TO HAVE YOUR COMPLAINTS DEALT WITH PROMPTLY AND FAIRLY  

The Housing Ombudsman has published a new 

Complaint Handling Code and guidance on new orders 

that will be implemented from 1st January 2021. Are you 

aware of the changes required to complaints handling 

processes? 

 

Housing  Ombudsman ’s Complaint Handling Code 

Yes – Housing Ombudsman self-assessment 

complete 

Information relating to complaints updated on 

website 

Customer 

Experience 

team 

 G 

Landlords have been asked to self-assess against the Code by 

31st December 2020 and publish the results – what lessons 

have you learnt from this process? 

Complete - report to CBH Board and lessons 

learnt logged through Customer Experience team 

Customer 

Experience 

team 

 G 

Do you have systems in place to track and implement 

good practice on complaints? 

Yes – Customer Experience team in place and 

monitoring complaints.  Scrutiny and Assurance 

via the performance and operations committee 

Customer 

Experience 

team 

 G 

The Housing Ombudsman’s new Complaint Handling Code 

states that landlord’s complaints policy should be widely 

publicised. How effectively have you done that through – for 

example, through social media channels, in leaflets, newsletters, 

online and as part of regular correspondence with residents? 

Website access; News and Views – Summer 

2021/ regular publications; Annual report 

Social media – Tell us what you think! 

Customer 

Experience 

team 

 A 

Are you supporting the awareness campaign, so your residents 

know their rights, are confident in navigating their routes to 

complain, and are aware of how to escalate to get redress 

where needed? 

Yes – continue to promote through information to 

residents and consider adding to back of all 

letters 

Customer 

Experience 

team 

 A 
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REQUIREMENT ACTIONS PROPOSED – or evidence if 

no action proposed 

BY 

WHOM 

BY 

WHEN 

RAG 

CHAPTER 4 – TO BE TREATED WITH RESPECT  

Has your organisation developed a proactive, 

proportionate, outcome-focused, and risk-based approach 

to consumer regulation? 

Yes. Annual review on consumer regulation.  

Check tenants access results (website?).  Info 

used in annual reports 

  A 

Is your organisation prepared for the first of the Regulators new 

Routine Inspections? 

Yes. Governance in place is good. 

Evidence to be linked to assessment document 

  A 

Have you consulted with residents on the extent of the Code 

of Practice of Consumer Standards that the Regulator is being 

encouraged to publish and are you ahead of the code? 

Evidence required of consultation Engagement  A 

Have you self-inspected your services against the consumer 

standards ahead of the introduction of routine inspections? 

What changes do you need to implement? 

Yes.  More tenant involvement to strengthen.  

Peer review? 

  A 

Have you reviewed your engagement practices to empower 

your tenants to perform effectively within the new regulatory 

regime and access the new engagement programme? 

Yes. Through Board and Resident panels, with e-

reading and focus groups – evidence  

Engagement  A 

Have you set up “transparent” systems and processes to 

communicate clearly with residents? Can you evidence that? 

Yes. Electronic and printed versions of N&V. 

Website  

  A 

Have you planned how your organisation will engage with the 

RHS and a more proactive consumer regulation regime? 

Customer Experience team – to establish direct 

link with RHS  

Customer 

Experience 

 A 

If a Local Authority, have you reviewed and considered your 

contract terms with your ALMO or TMO? What actions must 

you now take? 

Under way – Management agreement Action 

Plan being implemented 

  A 
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REQUIREMENT ACTIONS PROPOSED – or evidence if 

no action proposed 

BY 

WHOM 

BY 

WHEN 

RAG 

If a PRP sub-contracting tenant management have you 

reviewed and considered your sub-contractor management 

contract terms? What actions must you now take? 

Not applicable    

Under whatever arrangements has your organisation set up a 

protocol for identifying and advising the RHS of breaches of 

the consumer standards? 
 

Are your systems and processes open and transparent? 

No. Do need a process for CBH / LA to follow. 

Joint authority prior to reporting a breach 

  R 

All providers should take account of the content of Annex A of 

the White Paper (key measures for changing the regulatory 

regime for social housing). Has your Board or Committee been 

briefed regarding those changes? 

Yes    G 

PRP’s who are not HA’s should address the “look through” 

power that the Regulator may introduce to “follow money  

paid outside of the regulated sector to ensure probity”. How 

will you meet that requirement? 

    

Can you evidence clear ownership of compliance? Need to confirm ownership and management of 

leased properties with CBC. Confirm framework 

i.e. CMG, AMG 

  R 

As an LA have you consulted with residents regarding the 

changes in regulation that will bring LA’s into the Regulator’s 

orbit for consumer regulation? 

Use existing consultation framework once the 

regulation is confirmed  

 

  R 
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REQUIREMENT ACTIONS PROPOSED – or evidence if 

no action proposed 

BY 

WHOM 

BY 

WHEN 

RAG 

CHAPTER 5 – TO HAVE YOUR VOICE HEARD BY YOUR LANDLORD  

Have you consulted with residents to ensure your 

organisation informs and engages tenants in an effective 

way? 

Residents Voice 

Quality Assurance assessors 

Annual General meeting 

Wide range of opportunities for engagement  

Customer 

Experience 

 A 

Have you embedded a culture of continuous improvement in 

your approach to tenant engagement? Can you evidence that? 

Evidence of improvement from all engagement  

Could be improved through better feedback to 

residents and monitoring back to staff/Board etc 

  A 

Can you show how you have sought out and considered ways 

to improve tenant engagement? 

Resident’s voice and Focus group meetings in 

place – but this is an areas that could be 

improved, particularly through direct feedback 

from service delivery etc 

  A 

Are you able to show how residents influence your decisions, 

add value, and offer value for money, e.g. via surveys, focus 

groups, webinars, scrutiny panels, and board membership? 
 

Can you show the impact & outcomes of tenant participation & 

scrutiny? 

Yes – Need to consider how our impact 

assessments are used and reported back to 

residents and Board members etc 

  A 

Are you supporting and developing your residents so that they 

shape services and scrutinise, influence and hold your 

organisation to account? 

Yes – Tenant training and development is part of 

our Engagement plan 

We have examples of Focus groups, AGMs and 

resident panels that have influenced service 

delivery 

 

 

 

rreresident panelResident panels  

  A 

When your residents interact with your organisation, they 

should expect and receive a professional service from 

competent and empathetic staff. Are you able to evidence this? 

STAR survey  

Staff audit to demonstrate CIH professional 

standards (we need to do this) 

Include relevant CBC staff 

  R 
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Can you evidence that your contractors also act 

professionally, listen to residents and, at all times, treat them 

with courtesy and respect? 

Satisfaction surveys and transactional survey 

feedback and complaints 

Customer charter briefing for all contractors 

  A 
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REQUIREMENT ACTIONS PROPOSED – or evidence if 

no action proposed 

BY 

WHOM 

BY 

WHEN 

RAG 

CHAPTER 6 – TO HAVE A GOOD QUALITY HOME AND NEIGHBOURHOOD TO LIVE IN  

Have you considered bidding for a slice of the Green Homes 

Grant for 2020/21, which social landlords are eligible to bid for? 

Yes - unsuccessful   A 

Have you considered bidding for a slice of the £50 million 

demonstrator project to support the decarbonisation of 

social housing over 2020/21? 

Yes - unsuccessful   A 

Have you developed a plan to finance and deliver the de- 

carbonisation and increased energy efficiency of your homes 

and considered the implications for the development 

programme? 

Yes – within Asset Management Strategy 

(Portfolio software) 

  A 

Are you challenging your development team to ensure new 

developments are integrated with other tenures to avoid 

stigmatisation and improve access to green spaces for 

leisure, recreation, and play? 

Yes – where applicable    A 

Are you considering the likely changes to the Decent Homes 

Standards? 
 

Are you consulting with your residents to understand what 

might be needed to ensure buildings and neighbourhoods are 

safe and about how to respond to climate change? 

Yes – Asset management strategy   A 

 

  

Colchester Borough Homes Board Meeting Page 203 of 235

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/apply-for-the-green-homes-grant-scheme
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/apply-for-the-green-homes-grant-scheme
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/apply-for-the-green-homes-grant-scheme
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund-demonstrator
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund-demonstrator
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund-demonstrator


 

14 
 

 
REQUIREMENT ACTIONS PROPOSED – or evidence if 

no action proposed 

BY 

WHOM 

BY 

WHEN 

RAG 

Are you tackling anti-social behaviour and signposting tenants 

to those agencies who can give them the most appropriate 

support and assistance when faced with anti-social behaviour? 
 

Can you evidence resident engagement in your ASB 
processes? 

Yes – Focus groups and good participation in 

place including Victim coffee mornings and peer 

support and mentoring 

ASB Team  G 

Have you reviewed your relationships with other agencies to 

strengthen joint working to make neighbourhoods safer and 

foster social and environmental wellbeing? 

Yes – CBH leading Housing Association ASB 

group and participates with TCAP meetings  

  G 

Do you allow the keeping of pets provided they are well 

looked after and do not adversely affect the lives of 

neighbours? 
 

If not, consult with residents regarding your arrangements – 

the White Paper encourages all social landlords to adopt pet 

friendly policies as part of resident mental health strategies. 

Yes – Pet policy in place   G 

Are your front-line staff equipped to work with people 

with mental health needs? 
 

Are your contractors similarly equipped to understand and 

where necessary report their concerns? 

Seconded senior Mental health Social worker 

Suicide awareness and Mental Health First Aid 

training 

  G 

Has your organisation informed residents of their right to make 

a community trigger application? 
 

Have you worked out what role you will play when a Community 

Trigger sets up a multi-agency case review on ASB in an area? 

Yes – we have process in place and lead on 

Community trigger 
  G 
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REQUIREMENT ACTIONS PROPOSED – or evidence if 

no action proposed 

BY 

WHOM 

BY 

WHEN 

RAG 

Have you made sure your allocations policy is fair by removing 

barriers to homeless people, that the process is easier to 

navigate for vulnerable people and better matches people with 

disabilities to adapted properties? 

Yes – Gateway to homechoice  

Equality assessment and support for those less 

able  

Monitoring of allocation – particularly to note 

allocation of adapted properties 

  G 

Have you considered the ways in which you can improve 

access to your homes for the armed forces and veterans and 

their families? 

Yes – Armed Forces covenant in place and 

Gateway has provision for additional preference 

  G 

If you are an LA, are you, in advance of the Domestic Abuse 

Bill, already working with other bodies to develop a strategy 

for, and commission services to provide support for victims of 

domestic abuse and their children within safe 

accommodation? 

Yes – in partnership with Next Chapter we have 

specialist DA support worker  

DA self-assessment – DAHA  

  G 

All landlords – do you have a policy setting out how your 

organisation tackles issues surrounding domestic abuse, 

working with other agencies as appropriate? 
 

Are you able to evidence that your policy works? 

DA Policy / Safeguarding Policy 

Regular DA meetings and attend MAPA  

 

  G 
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REQUIREMENT ACTIONS PROPOSED – or evidence if 

no action proposed 

BY 

WHOM 

BY 

WHEN 

RAG 

CHAPTER 7 – TO BE SUPPORTED TO TAKE YOUR FIRST STEP TO OWNERSHIP  

Are you working through the likely impacts of the new model of 

Shared Ownership (SO)? 

Not applicable    

Are you working through the Right to Shared Ownership as 

it applies to the 2021/26 rented programme? 

Not applicable    

Have you considered the National Design Guide and the 

importance of building beautiful and well-designed social 

homes? 
 

Do you understand the impacts of adopting the elements of 

the guide that you are promoting? 

Yes    G 

Service charges should be transparent and communicated 

effectively, and that there should be a route to challenge or 

redress if things go wrong for tenants and leaseholders. Has 

your organisation consulted and communicated transparently 

regarding service charges? 

Yes – Annual review and guide for residents 

which has a focus group to assist with 

communication  

  G 
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White Paper measures (referenced from House mark) - those highlighted in Green are included in the STAR survey of residents 
Likely to be perception surveys   Likely to use a 5-point scale 
 
• Keeping properties in good state of repair 

1. Decent homes standard compliance. 
2. Responsive repairs completed right first time. 
3. Tenant satisfaction with landlord's repair and maintenance service. 

• Maintaining building safety.  
1. Compliance with gas safety. 
2. Compliance with electrical safety. 
3. Compliance with fire safety. 
4. Compliance with asbestos. 
5. Compliance with water safety. 
6. Compliance with lift safety. 
7. Tenant satisfaction with the health and safety of their home. 

• Effective handing of complaints 
1. Number of complaints relative to the size of the landlord. 
2. % of complaints resolved within landlord's agreed timescale. 
3. Tenant satisfaction with landlord's complaints handling. 

• Respectful and helpful engagement 
1. Number of complaints relating to fairness and/or respect, relative to the size of the landlord. 
2. Tenant satisfaction that their landlord listens to their views and takes notice of them. 
3. Tenant satisfaction with landlord's engagement with tenants 

• Responsible neighbourhood management 
1. % of communal areas meeting the required standard. 
2. Number of complaints relating to communal areas, relative to the size of the landlord. 
3. Tenant satisfaction with landlord actions to keep communal areas clean and safe. 
4. Tenant satisfaction with landlord contribution to the neighbourhood association with their home. 
5. Number of complaints relating to anti-social behaviour, relative to the size of the landlord. 
6. Tenant satisfaction with the landlord's handling of anti-social behaviour. 

• Overall 
1. Tenant satisfaction with the service their landlord provides. 
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HouseMark Monthly Pulse measures - for consideration for inclusion into MTDP (Medium Term Delivery Plan) 

 
 

1. Percentage of homes with a valid gas safety certificate 
2. Percentage of domestic properties with EICR certificates up to five years old 
3. Number of emergency repairs completed in month. 
4. Number of non-emergency repairs completed in month. 
5. Percentage of repairs completed right first time (tenant satisfaction measure). 
6. Satisfaction with repairs in month (transactional). 
7. True current tenant arrears at the end of the month (%). 
8. Number of social housing lettings completed in the month. 
9. Number of dwellings vacant but available to let at the end of the month. 
10. Number of formal complaints received in month. 
11. Percentage of complaints resolved within timescale in month. 
12. Percentage of customer contact received via digital channels in month. 
13. Percentage of tenants satisfied with the overall service their landlord provides (perception) - in month. 
14. Percentage of working days lost to sickness absence in month. 

 

 

Authors: 
Matthew Armstrong, Director of Business Improvement – matthew.armstrong@cbhomes.org.uk 

Karen Loweman, Director of Operations - karen.loweman@cbhomes.org.uk  
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12. Resident Voice –

Engagement Report

Customer Experience – Complaints
feedback video and lessons learnt
To Note



 
 

 

  
 

Recommendations – The Board are asked to: 

NOTE the Customer Engagement update  

 
 

 
 

 

Virtual Meetings 
 

Resident Voice Panel   

 
The Panel met in June and; 
 

• Reviewed the Bidding process – what support is available and what support is needed. 

• Were provided with progress on the Equality Action plan.  

• Asked, how can we engage with more of our Tenants and Leaseholders, so we can hear their 

views and share what support is available”? 

• Received an introduction to the STAR survey. 

 

 
 

“Our windows were due to be replaced, any idea when this will happen?” 
 
This has been raised with the Planned Works Manager, Asset Management to advise further on any 
work programme and procurement of a contractor, should this project go ahead. Windows would only 
be replaced subject to the result of condition surveys. We will update the Resident Voice and 
customers as soon as we have received further information 
 
“When workmen attend homes for repair and they need new parts and must revisit, this is 
frustrating as we are not kept up to date. Could this be flagged up please?” 
 
We are reviewing this process now through repairs meetings and plan to review with contractors. 
Work will be carried out to improve this area. 
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Task and Finish Group – Hoarding Policy & Protocol 
A new Hoarding policy and protocol has been designed and this focus group shared thoughts, views, 
and recommendations to provide the Board assurance that CBH Customers have had the opportunity 
to scrutinise this proposed new approach. 
 

The panel asked whether we discuss issues around hoarding with family & friends? 
The panel discussed potential issues around GDPR, however explained that where consent has 
been given, we will approach family and friends to discuss any support that they might be able to 
provide to help address issues with hoarding. We will check that staff are aware of this and include 
within the Hoarding procedures. 
 
The panel advised that they liked the traffic light system and were impressed that CBH took a 
professional approach, and had considered the need for a specific policy around hoarding. The panel 
felt that CBH’s approach was fair 
 
“I’m very impressed with what you are doing.” 
 
NPS Housing Online Portal Focus Group 
 
A focus group was set up with our customers to demonstrate the planned NPS Housing Online 
Portal, show some of its functionality, and to understand the best approach to encourage wider 
customer base to use of this facility.  
 

 
 
“Need Incentives, possibly a trial system with a feedback questionnaire at the end, for a target group. 
Possible prizes or something to encourage customers to start using it.” 
 
“I think it is a good idea particularly with repairs. It is good for a customer to be able to see in real 
time what is happening. Customers can also support other customers that they know to get using it, 
such as who they know in the community.”  
 
“Would be happy to use it and would find it easier than phoning the contact centre” 
 
The focus group were advised that CBH were arranging a leaflet to be designed to share further 
information with our customers. This will be shown with the workshop group later for their views.  
 
 
CBC Asset Management Strategy Focus Group. 
 
Colchester Borough Council, as the owner of rented council homes in the Borough is obliged and 
wants to ensure its properties are safe, comfortable, and affordable for its tenants to live in. The 
Council’s Housing Asset Strategy sets out its priorities and what priorities CBC will spend tenants 
rent money on over the next five years. CBC’s expectation is that a new Asset Management Strategy 
will be in place by September 2021. 
 
A further survey is being discussed to target CBH customers and their views, and the resident 
engagement team will meet with CBC on Thursday 22nd July to discuss further. 
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Training and Communications 
 

 A very positive meeting with The Outhouse (formerly Outhouse East), will support the recruit 
of LGBTQI community to CBH Resident Voice using various social media platforms that the 
700 service users engage with. Also looking at LGBTQI training for CBH staff and becoming 
involved with planned pride activities 28th August. 

 
 New/reenergised quarterly newsletter for QAAS & SQAAs released in May. 

 
 TPAS delivered two-day Tenant Inspector training with five CBH customers attending both 

days. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
General Updates 
 
Round one of the CBH Community Initiative Fund has taken place eleven local groups and charities 
will all benefit from new awards. Colchester Borough Homes provides funding to local support groups 
- Colchester Borough Homes (cbhomes.org.uk) 
 
All CBH Involved Customers were made aware of the latest suite of TPAS webinars, and six new 
bookings were made. 
 
First (pilot)training day for those CBH customers who received new Ipad’s, working in partnership 
with CBC digital access team. 
 
The CBH Box Smart project has been shortlisted for the RESOLVE awards taking place on the 23rd 
of July and we are now planning for Box Smart 2 to start this October. 
 
The 2021 Garden Competition now closed for entries. Fourteen entries are now being judged and the 

awards will take place at their homes on 23rd July 21.  
 

 

 
 
“I feel the strategy need to be “narrowed” as it has to many elements. My main concerns are the cost 
of retrofit and electricity both can be expensive. We must be efficient.” 
 
“Renewable energy is a high priority. We may need to look at the strategy now. Energy is going to be 
a big thing and technology has been introduced to improve this. We need to consider the quality of 
housing stock and what provides efficiency. We need to be cute when purchasing materials and 
when choosing contractors. We need to mix it all up.” 
 
“Other aspects important to me are green spaces, littering and lightning – these all make me feel 
safe.” 
 
“My feeling is that once the initial findings of this report are completed this should be made available 
through a series of public presentations across the Borough.” 
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13. Leadership Plan Review
To Note
Presented by Dirk Paterson



 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

28th July 2021 
 
 

 
Report Title Leadership Plan Review 

Author Jo Paget – Governance Business Partner  

Report Objective: 
The report provides an update on the achievements of the Leadership Plan, with a 
focus on achievements of the new plan approved at Board in September 2020, 
which reflected the new Board priorities.  

Matters to 
note/Exception 
Highlights 

 

 
 
 
Link to Consumer 
Standard objective 

Tenant involvement and empowerment☒ 

Home☐ 

Tenancy☐ 

Neighbourhood and community☐ 

Sensitivity Commercial  Action Assurance  

Confidential  Noting ✓ 

Open ✓ Approval  

 

 Recommendations 
  
The Board is asked to: 
 
i.NOTE the progress of the Leadership action plan 
ii.NOTE the extension of deadline at 1.4 from September 2021 to March 2022. The Board has undergone 
member changes recently which means further skills assessment to inform the training plan and will also be 
an ongoing process as we realise the new strategic plan and the leadership skills required for its delivery.  
 

 

 Executive summary 

 
 The aims of the Leadership Plan are to ensure  

• Our leadership inspires trust  

• We demonstrate real accountability to our customers and stakeholder  

• We maintain a strong focus on the future.  
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 Since its inception in September the Leadership Action Plan has assisted the Board with focusing on key   
 priorities, and focus on the development and position of the Board within the organisation and is on track   
 to be completed in March 2022. 
  
A key objective of the plan was to demonstrate high quality governance and decision making and  
to ensure compliance with the following five functions of governance:  

• Determining the objectives of the organisation implemented through the CBH 
strategic plan and by contributing to the Councils strategic aims  
• Determining the ethics of the organisation by demonstrating the importance of 
sustainability, social responsibility and resident engagement  
• Creating and influencing the development and culture of the organisation through 
openness and transparency, risk appetite and innovation, and professionalism  
• Ensuring compliance by the organisation with its regulatory, statutory and legal 
obligations  
• Ensuring an efficient governance framework for the organisation which 
defines principles and structures to ensure appropriate delegation and accountability  

  
 
 
 Highlights of achievement are as follows: 
 
 One of the key drivers for the Leadership plan was to inspire trust in our leadership which would lead to an  
 extension of the Management agreement.  The decision to extend our Management agreement is  
 therefore a key achievement to note 

 
The leadership of the organisation is supported by its Senior staff – our 2020 re structure of staffing to 
achieve efficient working for the future is now complete  
 
 New Governance Framework approved in February 2021 allowing for thorough scrutiny of CBH services.   
 This new framework consists of Quarterly Board Meetings, Finance and Audit Committee, Operations and  
 Performance Committee and Governance and Remuneration Committee.  
 
 The move to paperless governance through the procurement of Board Portal – this has transformed  
 meetings through replacing the production of hundreds of pages of Board packs, has changed the way 
 our Board Members can work outside the Boardroom; how they access information using the information  
 library and how easy it is for them to access information remotely. And through the pandemic Convene  
 was a key success to the running of our virtual meetings.  
 
 The Board adopted the NHF Code of Governance in December 2020 to ensure that they can achieve the 
 highest standards of governance and board excellence. 

 This new NHF 2020 code required those adopting it to make sure that: 

• The views and needs of their residents are at the heart of their strategic decision-making. 

• Measures are in place to ensure that residents, other customers and staff are kept safe.  
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• Boards have an oversight of risk and thoroughly test the impact of potential risk scenarios on their 

organisations’ future. 

Membership of the Board was increased to 11 following the successful recruitment of a further 
independent member in February 2021.  

 
Customer stories are routinely used at board meetings and the Resident Engagement report was launched 
in February 2021 to keep Board up to date with the resident voice activity throughout the organisation 
focusing on Resident Voice meetings, you said we did, resident training and feedback from scrutiny and 
task and finish panels. 

 
The Focus on Frontline agenda item was introduced in December 2020 to encourage and promote Board 
and staff interaction and for members to hear the realities and feedback on day-to-day operations and 
demands on the frontline.  
 
Forward Look  
 
The Strategic Plan working group was set up in April 2021 to determine the objectives of the organisation 
for 2022-2027. This final plan will go to Board in November for approval.  
 
A new Chief Executive has been appointed and will start the with organisation and the Board in September 
2021.  
 
The Board is going through a current cycle of turnover as we have seen changes in the local government, 
and we are to go out to recruitment for a new Resident Member. An updated skills matrix will be completed 
and the training plan for the next year will be developed alongside the formation of the new strategic plan 
and the Boards objectives for delivery of the plan.  
 
The Governance and remuneration Committee will meet in September to discuss and recommend the 
procurement of an External Board review which will be commissioned in early 2022.  
 
A recent Board Risk Workshop was held in June 2021 to look at the core aspects of the risk framework 
and to evaluate whether the strategic risks are clearly defined and understood and aligned to the new 
strategic objectives of the organisation. A revised Risk Register will be redefined from this workshop to 
provide board with appropriate oversight and assurance.  
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Building Trust • Delivering Tenant Led Services • Commitment to our Communities 
 Delivering Professional Services • Providing Value for Money 

CBH DB3EE0~1.DOC – Sept 2020  3 

1.  Introduction & purpose 

As a publicly owned company, good governance, leadership & accountability 
are essential to ensure we meet our aims and give confidence to our 
customers, partners and other stakeholders. This leadership plan sets out our 
approach to achieving our mission of delivering great value services that 
make a difference. 

2. Strategic aims 

CBH’s overall ambition as set out in our Strategic Plan 2017-22 is to be the 
trusted choice for local housing, property and community services.  

We plan to do this by serving our communities and delivering high quality 
services. This plan will help us ensure we have the effective governance 
and leadership in place to support us in achieving our headline measures of 
customer satisfaction, value for money and positive outcomes in the 
community. 

The aims of this plan are therefore: 

• To show we can be trusted to do what we say we will 

• To be clear about our organisational goals and how to achieve 

them. 

3. Our ambition by 2022 

Our aim is that this plan will help us ensure we have in place leadership that 
inspires trust and confidence in CBH by 2022. 

To achieve this we will need to show that: 

• Our leadership inspires trust 

• We demonstrate real accountability to our customers and 

stakeholder 

• We maintain a strong focus on the future. 

4. How we will achieve our aim 

To ensure we have in place leadership that inspires trust and confidence 
in CBH this plan focuses on one key objective – to ensure high quality 
governance and decision making. To achieve this, we will ensure compliance 
with the following five functions of governance: 

• Determining the objectives of the organisation implemented 

through the CBH strategic plan and by contributing to the 

Councils strategic aims 
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• Determining the ethics of the organisation by demonstrating the 

importance of sustainability, social responsibility and resident 

engagement 

• Creating and influencing the development and culture of the 

organisation through openness and transparency, risk appetite 

and innovation, and professionalism 

• Ensuring compliance by the organisation with its regulatory, 

statutory and legal obligations 

• Ensuring an efficient governance framework for the organisation 

which defines principles and structures to ensure appropriate 

delegation and accountability 

 

This will be supported by the projects and workstreams in the Leadership 

Action Plan which accompanies this document. 

5. How we will measure progress 

We will monitor the following indicators to ensure we are on track over the 
course of the plan: 

• Board skills required vs current board skills matrix 

• Board diversity  

• Board structure to deliver effectively  

• Resident voice – increase in resident participation and representation  

 

6. Consultation  

Consultation has been carried out with the following: 

• CBH Corporate Management Team  

• CBH Board  

7. Related documents 

The CBH Strategic Plan 2017-22 gives overall direction to this plan. The CBH 
Board provides overall strategic direction to the company and is responsible 
for monitoring progress against the strategic objectives. 

The CBH Medium Term Delivery Plan 2018-22 sets out how we will deliver 
services on behalf of Colchester Borough Council to fulfil our management 
agreement obligations. These include our obligations to ensure we are 
compliant with the appropriate legislative and regulatory framework. 
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The CBH Business Development Plan shapes how we will change the 
delivery of our services and generate income to ensure the business is 
sustainable. 

The CBH Value for Money, Technology & Investment Plan guides how we will 
work more efficiently and invest savings and new income for the benefit of our 
customers. 

CBH People Plan sets out how we will ensure our staff are able to support the 
business going forward. 

The CBH Customer Plan sets out how we will focus the business on delivery 
of the services our customers need, including using customer insight and 
engagement to improve what we do.  

The CBH Community Plan sets out how we will deliver our services to make a 
difference in the community in line with our social purpose. 
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Document control sheet 

Title:  Leadership plan 2020-22 

Electronic File 

Name & location:  

https://colchbh.sharepoint.com/sites/fnc/corpdoc/Pol

DevLib/Leadership Plan 2020-22.docx 

Consultation with 
stakeholders:  

CBH CMT - August 2020 

CBH Board – September 2020 

Approved:  CBH Board, April 2018 

CBH Board Sept 2019 

CBH Board Sept 2020 

Next Review date: September 2021 

Circulation 

method:  
Website, intranet, SharePoint 

Equality Impact 
Assessment:  

Last completed January 2018 – to be reviewed 

Document amendment history 

Version Type Date Notes  

1.0 New April 

2018 
New plan approved by Board 

2.0 Update 
Sept  
2019 

Annual review at Board 

3.0 Update  
Sept 
2020 

Plan re-written to reflect new Board 
priorities  
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Colchester Borough Homes Leadership Plan – 2020-2022 

 

Key Objective – To ensure high quality governance and decision making 

 

Action 
No  

Action  Target 
Date 

Lead  Task 
Status 

(R,A,G) 

Measure/Milestone Links 
to 
other 
plans 

Completed Task 
Outcomes 

1.1 To review 
current 
Governance 
Meeting 
Structure – to 
ensure that 
CBH has a 
rational, up to 
date and 
consistent 
framework that 
supports the 

Nov 2020 Chair/Governance Officer  
▪ Business 

Development 

Panel review 

▪ Resident Panel 

Review 

▪ Board Report 

Template Review 

 New Governance 
Framework agreed at 
Feb 21 Board.  

New structure 
comprises of 

Operations and 
Performance 
Committee 
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business for 
the future 

 

Finance and Audit 
Committee 

Governance and 
Remuneration 
Committee 

1.2 To Review the 
Board 
Structure – to 
ensure the 
Board reflects 
members that 
hold diverse 
skills and 
perspectives 

Dec 2020 Chair/Governance Officer   
 

 

 

% gender  

 

 

Average age  

 

Average tenure  

% BAME  

 

% Disability 

 Stats at Q4 2020/21 

67% (F) 33% (M)  

53 Q4  

3.26 years  

0% Q4  

11% Q4 

KPI’s introduced for 
transparency  

Balance of diversity vs 
skills required  

Future recruitment to be 
diversity led  

1.3 To develop 
Skills Matrix –
to review the 

Dec 2020 Chair/Governance Officer  
▪ Will inform 

recruitment 

process for 

 Skills Matrix completed 
ahead of Board 
recruitment in 
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current skills 
and 
experience of 
the Board to 
identify training 
needs, skill 
shortage and 
enable 
succession 
planning  

 

 

further Board 

Members 

▪ Improved Board 

Meeting 

Productivity 

▪ Evidence of 

succession plan  

▪ Will inform 

Meeting 

structures and 

ToR’s 

 

December to inform 
skills required  

Training plan in 
progress  

Turnover in Board due 
to Cllr changes and 
further recruitment will 
mean ongoing 
excercise 

1.4 Board 
Development 
& Culture – 
Directors have 
to use 
reasonable 
care, skill and 
diligence. 
Keeping the 
board informed 
and energised 
ensures that 
they can 
effectively 

March 
2022 (was 
September 
2021) 

Chair/Governance Officer  
▪ Improved Board 

Meeting 

Productivity 

▪ Shared learning  

▪ Resilient Board 

member 

interaction  

▪ Resident Board 

Member 

Development 

programme 

▪ Board Values  

▪ Board Away Days 

▪ Training Plan  

 Board values in place 
and discussed with new 
members  

Board has adopted the 
NHF Code of 
Governance  

Member training now 
shared through 
Convene for shared 
learning 

Board Away Days to be 
indentified 
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discharge this 
duty. 

 

 

 

Training Plan in 
progress 

TPAS Resident 
Training Programme for 
succession planning  

Board/Exec 
Relationship 
development – 
inductions and 
workshops  

1.5 E-
Competence 
and Enabling 
- To move to 
paperless 
governance 
and promote 
and encourage 
the 
expectation of 
higher levels of 
preparedness 
by Non-
Executives  

 

Oct 2020   
▪ Procurement of a 

third-party board 

management 

software 

▪ Training  

▪ Improved Board 

Meeting 

Productivity 

▪ Enhanced 

sharing of Board 

information 

 Convene procured and 
complete move to 
paperless governance  

Questions received 
ahead of Board through 
Convene and actions 
captured and tracked  

Approvals recorded in 
meetings  

Board librarys set up in 
Convene and review 
rooms and resolutions 
used to seek approvals 
out of meeting dates 
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1.6 External 
Review on 
Effectiveness 
of Board – to 
assess 
strengths, 
weaknesses 
and areas of 
development 
to achieve full 
potential.  

 

Nov 2021 Chair/Governance Officer  
▪ Main findings of 

the review 

▪ Approval of 

action plan to 

implement 

recommendations  

 

 G&R committee in 
September to review 
and approve the 
procurement of external 
auditor 

1.7 To ensure 
effective Risk 
Management - 
Good 
governance is 
based on good 
systems and 
structures. The 
way a housing 
provider uses 
its Risk 
Management 
Framework 
provides a 
clear view into 
how they 

Mar 2022 Director of Business 
Improvement/Governance 
Officer  

 
▪ Risk 

Management 

Framework  

▪ Risk Register  

▪ Board Risk 

Appetite 

▪ Board can 

demonstrate 

understanding 

and management 

of risks to the 

company 

▪ Evidenced Risk 

Training  

 Board Risk Workshop 
June 21 to implement 
more streamlined risk 
register  

Strategic Plan Working 
Group  

Risk Dashboard to 
Board Meetings  

F&A Deep Dives  
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handle and 
mitigate the 
impact of 
organisational 
risk. 

1.8 Improve 
Resident 
Voice - 
Resident 
scrutiny of the 
board is a key 
criterion 
providing 
insight into the 
influence 
afforded to 
residents 
within the 
housing 
provider’s 
decision-
making 
process 

Sept 2021 Chair/ Governance 
Officer  

 
▪ Customer stories 

are routinely used 

at board 

meetings and 

other meetings 

throughout CBH 

▪ The Board values 

and celebrates 

innovation by 

frontline staff to 

improve the 

experience of 

customers and 

specifically those 

who consistently 

exceed customer 

expectation 

▪ Review Customer 

Engagement 

Strategy 

▪ The Board will 

review customer 

 Customer stories 
coming to Board  

Quarterly 
complaints/compliments 
report to Ops and 
Performance 
Committee for scrutiny  

Residents panel 
relaunched as 
Residents Voice – 
chaired by Board 
Member. Increase in 
attendance recorded. 
Scrutiny of services  

Customer engagement 
strategy reviewed 

Comms strategy being 
reviewed with CBC  

STAR survey June 
2021 
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feedback data or 

other forms of 

involvement 

including 

compliments, 

complaints and 

testimonials. 

▪ Effective and 

robust scrutiny of 

services is 

important and the 

choices for this 

must be resident 

led.  
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14. CBC/CBH Management Agreement
actionsprogress - Karen Loweman
To Note



 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

Wednesday 28 July 2021  

 
Report Title   0014 CBC/CBH Management Agreement Actions Progress report 

Author Karen Loweman, Director of Operations 
Matthew Armstrong, Director of Business Improvement  

Report Objective: 
To provide the Board with an update on the Management Agreement 
actions.  

Matters to 
note/Exception 
Highlights 

  

 
 
 
Link to Consumer 
Standard 
objective 

Tenant involvement and empowerment ☒ 

Home ☒ 

Tenancy ☒ 

Neighbourhood and community ☐ 

Sensitivity Commercial  Action Assurance  
Confidential  Noting ✓ 

Open ✓ Approval  

 
 The Board is asked to: 
 
i. NOTE the progress on CBC/CBH Management Agreement Schedule of Actions (Appendix 1) 

  

  Executive summary 
  

In September 2020 the board considered the Overarching Outcomes from the review of the 
Management agreement with Colchester Borough Council (CBC). This has now been developed 
into a Schedule of Actions and has been agreed between CBC and CBH officers.  It was agreed 
that progress against this schedule will be monitored at the quarterly Principal Liaison officer 
meetings and by the CBH Board.  
 
The updated Schedule of Actions can be found at Appendix 1. 
 
Progress since the last meeting 
 
1. Key meetings with the Council scheduled – Social Housing White review meeting and Annual 

Strategic meeting (29 September 2021) 
2. Annual reports of services include for the first time a report on Corporate services complete in 
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June 
3. Current priorities are: the consideration of Management fee (schedule 3); the re draft of the 

Management agreement functional delegations (schedule 2) and Contract administrator roles 
and responsibilities (schedule 6) 

 
 

Strategic Plan  The CBC/CBH Management Agreement is the means by which 
delivery of housing services is delegated by CBC to CBH.  It is 
therefore the foundation upon which the Company’s strategic plan 
is based. 

Regulatory/Legal 
 

The Management Agreement is the foundation upon which the 
Company’s legal and regulatory activity is based. 

Financial/Budgetary The Management Agreement is the foundation upon which the 
Company’s financial resources and budget planning are based. 

Health & Safety 
The Management Agreement also sets out the Company’s 

responsibility to ensure a robust health and safety compliance 
system is in place. 

Risk Assessment  The 2020 review of the CBC/CBH Management Agreement was 
previously highlighted on the Company’s Strategic Risk Register.  
Risk 321 relates to relationship breakdown between CBC and CBH, 
the mitigations in place assist in completing the Action Plan 
attached to this report. 

Human Resources The Management Agreement sets out the basis upon which CBC 
staff were originally transferred to CBH and continue to perform the 
required housing functions. 

Equality and Diversity  The Management Agreement sets out the Company’s responsibility 
to ensure effective equality and diversity policies and plans are 
embedded in the Company’s operations. 

Value for Money The Management Agreement sets out the Company’s responsibility 
to ensure value for money is delivered for CBC and residents.   

Environmental and 
Sustainability  

The extension to the Management Agreement will enable the 
Company to play an important role in the Council’s Climate 
Emergency Action Plan. 
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1. APPENDIX 
1.1 The following document is appended to this report: - 

 
• Appendix 1 – CBC/CBH Management Agreement Schedule of Actions. 
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15. Matters for escalation (Risk Register)
To Note
Presented by Dirk Paterson
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